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General Notice No. 448 of 2018

LEGAL SUPPLEMENT

The undermentioned Proclamation and 
Government Notice are published in the Legal 
Supplement to this number of the Government 
Gazette:

Assumption of Office by the Acting President 
of the Republic, His Excellency Mr Paramasivum 
Pillay Vyapoory, G.O.S.K.

(Proclamation No. 12 of 2018)

The Dental Council (Medical Institutions) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2018.

(Government Notice No. 32 of 2018)

Prime Minister’s Office, 
Port Louis.

This 24th March, 2018.

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 449 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Pereybere as 
per title deed but in fact situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the public 
purpose of the construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 1 (Serial No. 1) [PIN; 1317070802] 
of an extent of one hundred and sixteen and seventy 
one hundredths square metres (116.71 m2) is 
excised from a portion of land being all that remains 
of seven thousand nine hundred and thirty four 
square metres (7934 m2) belonging to TROPICA 
BAIE LIMITED holder of a business registration 
number C14120863 as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV201408/001348 and is 
bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road on eight metres and fifty seven 
centimetres (8.57m).

Towards the South East by Vingt Pieds 
Road (B45) on fourteen metres and thirty seven 
centimetres (14.37m).

Towards the South West by the surplus of land 
on eight metres and two centimetres (8.02m).

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
on thirteen metres and eighty centimetres (13.80m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 24/11 /2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date 26/02/2018.
The Honourable 

Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower
Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 450 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Pereybere as 
per title deed but in fact situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the public 
purpose of the construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 2 (SerialNo. 2) [PIN: 1317070685] 
being all that remains of fifty one square perches 
(0 A 51P) or two thousand ohe hundred and fifty two 
and sixty four hundredths square metres (2152.64 
m2) belonging to Mr Rajsingh GUDDOY bom 
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on 01/06/1947 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number G0106470801164 as evidenced 
by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 1582/91 
has been found after survey to be of an extent of 
one thousand seven hundred and sixty metres and 
five hundredths square metres (1760.05 m2) and is 
bounded as follows

Towards the East by Vingt Pieds Road (B45) 
partly on a straight line measuring eighteen metres 
and eighty eight centimetres (18.88m) and partly 
on a developed length measuring seventeen metres 
and sixty one centimetres (17.61m).

Towards the South East by Vingt Pieds Road 
(B45) on two lines measuring twenty metres and 
forty centimetres (20.40m) and four metres and 
seventy nine centimetres (4.79m).

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road on eleven metres and 
ninety four centimetres (11.94 m).

Towards the North West partly by land 
belonging to Mr Jean Alain Louisovitch 
SEERUNGEN [TV 201505/00952] on three 
lines measuring twenty one metres and fifty one 
centimetres (21.51m), twenty metres and twenty 
one centimetres (20.21m) and four metres and 
sixty one centimetres (4.61m) respectively and 
partly by Portion No.3 (Serial No.3) of the plan 
mentioned below on thirty four metres and thirty 
centimetres (34.30m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr. Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 24/11/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to the 
Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the second 
publication of this Notice in the Gazette a written 
declaration of the nature of his interest in the land and 
the amount and details of his claim for compensation.

Date 26/02/2018.
The Honourable 

Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower, Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 451 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Pereybere, 
Beau Manguier as per title deed but in fact situate 
at Cap Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du 
Rempart for the public purpose of the construction 
of a bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 5 (SerialNo. 5) [PIN: 1317070806] 
of an extent of two hundred and sixty two and 
twenty seven hundredths square metres (262.27 
m2) is excised from a portion of land of an 
extent of three thousand seven hundred and 
sixty eight square metres (3768 m2) belonging 
jointly to (i)(a) Mr Faizul ROHOMUN born 
on 04/07/1961 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number R0407610803310 and (b) Mrs 
Sadekha ROHOMUN (born HOSSENBUX) 
bom on 29/04/1967 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number H2904670401642 civilly 
married under the legal community of goods 
to the aforesaid Mr Faizul ROHOMUN (ii) 
Heirs Goolam Mahamud PANCHOO (Late 
Mr Goolam Mahamud PANCHOO born on 
23/05/1950 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number P230550080251F) (iii)(a) 
Mr Salil AZMUTALLY born on 15/11/1958 
holder of a national identity card bearing number 
A151158080634A and (b) Mrs Beebee Rasida 
AZMUTALLY (born PARMESSUR) born 
on 19/04/1963 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number Pl904630802479 civilly 
married under the legal community of goods 
to the aforesaid Salil AZMUTALLY (iv)
(a) Mr Gora Bhai SUBROTTEE born on 
01/01/1960 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number S010160080066F and (b) Mrs 
Bibi Safia SUBROTTEE (born OOBAYE) 
born on 29/09/1961 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number 02909614105862 civilly 
married under the legal community of goods 
to the aforesaid Mr Gora Bhai SUBROTTEE
(v) Mr Feroz Abedeen ALLYMAMOD born 
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on 18/09/1959 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number A18095908050912 and
(vi) (a) Mr Mohamed Sowaley JHANGEER 
born on 17/01/1960 holder of a national 
identity card bearing number J1701600801054 
and (b) Mrs Beebee Begum JHANGEER 
(born PANCHOO) born on 27/12/1963 holder 
of a national identity card bearing number 
P2712630800125 civilly married under the legal 
community of goods to the aforesaid Mr Mohamed 
Sowaley JHANGEER as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 4239/52 is bounded as 
follows:-

Towards the East by Vingt Pieds Road (B45) 
on forty one metres and thirty eight centimetres 
(41.38m).

Towards the South East by Portion No.4 (Serial 
No.4) of the plan mentioned below on nine metres 
and nineteen centimetres (9.19m).

Towards the West by the surplus of land on two 
lines measuring six metres and five centimetres 
(6.05m) and thirty six metres and fifty seven 
centimetres (36.57m).

Towards the North West by Portion No. 6 
(Serial No.6) of the plan mentioned below on five 
metres and sixty centimetres (5.60m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 24/11/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

. Date 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO 

Minister of Housing and Lands 
Ebene Tower 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 452 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Mare Seche as 
per title deed but in fact situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the public 
purpose of the construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 7 (Serial No. 7) [PIN: 1317060385] 
of an extent of one hundred and twenty one and 
five hundredths square metres (121.05 m2) is 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of four 
arpents and thirteen square perches (4A 13P) or 
seventeen thousand four hundred and thirty two and 
nineteen hundredths square metres (17,432.19 m2) 
belonging to Mr Luchoomanah GENGADU bom 
on 22/06/1949 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number G2206491000088 as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume TV 1324/118 and 
is bounded as follows: -

Towards the East by the axis of a common 
and party road on fourteen metres and ninety 
centimetres (14.90m).

Towards the South by the surplus of land on six 
metres and sixty nine centimetres (6.69m).

Towards the South West by the surplus of 
land on eight metres and seventy four centimetres 
(8.74m).

Towards the North West by Vingt Pieds Road 
(B45) on seventeen metres and twenty eight 
centimetres (17.28m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 24/11/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
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written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 453 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Mare Seche as 
per title deed but in fact situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the public 
purpose of the construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 8 (Serial No. 8) [PIN: 1317060386] 
of an extent of two thousand four hundred and 
eighty eight and two hundredths square metres 
(2488.02 m2) is excised from a portion of land 
of an extent of three arpents (3 A OOP) or twelve 
thousand six hundred and sixty two and sixty one 
hundredths square metres (12662.61 m2) belonging 
to Mr Luchoomanah GENGADU born on 
22/06/1949 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number G2206491000088 as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume TV 1156/98 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the East by Union Road (B121) on 
sixty metres and eighty four centimetres (60.84m).

Towards the South West partly by the surplus 
of land on four lines measuring fifteen metres and 
twenty one centimetres (15.21m), fourteen metres 
and seventy four centimetres (14.74m), thirty eight 
metres and eighty seven centimetres (38.87m), 
forty metres and twenty centimetres (40.20m) 
respectively.

Towards the West by the axis of a common 
and party road on fourteen metres and ninety 
centimetres (14.90m).

Towards the North West by Vingt Pieds Road 
(B45) on two lines measuring fifty two metres 
and eighty two centimetres (52.82m) and on a 
developed length measuring six metres and forty 
seven centimetres (6.47m) respectively.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 24/11/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 454 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Pavilion 
(Mare Seche) as per title deed but in fact situate 
at Cap Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du 
Rempart for the public purpose of the construction 
of a bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 9 (Serial No. 9) [PIN: 1317060387] 
of an extent of one hundred and five and seventeen 
hundredths square metres (105.17 m2) is excised 
from a portion of land of an extent of two thousand 
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two hundred and seventy nine and twenty seven 
hundredths square metres (2279.27 m2) belonging 
jointly to (i) Mrs Bibi Waeza SEETUL (bom 
CHITBAHAL) born on 30/11/1973 holder 
of a national identity card bearing number 
C3011731000082 civilly married under the legal 
community of goods to Mr Fezal SEETUL bom on 
15/08/1971 holder of a national identity card bearing 
number S150871100161G (ii) Mrs Bibi Nilam 
KOORJAH (bom BAUKER) bom on 22/10/1985 
holder of a national identity card bearing number 
B2210854601911 civilly married under the legal 
community of goods to Mr Farhad KOORJAH 
bom on 04/10/1978 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number K041078462258G (iii) Mr 
Mustakin EMAMBOCUS bom on 08/10/1961 
holder of a national identity card bearing number 
E0810610602663 (iv) Mr Noorani EMAMBOCUS 
bom on 07/04/1965 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number E0704650601094 (v) Mr 
Saleem EMAMBOCUS born on 18/01/1979 
holder of a national identity card bearing number 
E180179460363B (vi) Mr Rehan BAUKER 
bom on 02/05/1982 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number B0205824603655 (vii) Mrs 
Bibi Mariam HINGAH (Bom BAUKER) bom 
on, 15/06/1979 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number B1506794616481 civilly married 
und^r the legal community of goods to Mr Abdool 
Nazim Omar Sharif HINGAH bom on 02/08/1972 
holder of a national identity card bearing number 
H0208724001710 as evidenced by title deeds 
transcribed in Volumes TV 8433/55, TV8460/17 
& TV 8386/33 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
on two lines measuring four metres and twelve 
centimetres (4.12m) and fourteen metres and 
seventy four centimetres (14.74m) respectively.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
on five metres and four centimetres (5.04m).

Towards the South West by Union Branch 
Road (Bl21) on eighteen metres and twenty five 
centimetres (18.25m).

Towards the North West by Portion No. 10 
(Serial No. 10) of the plan mentioned below on 
seven metres and sixty three centimetres (7.63m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 

drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 24/11/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 455 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Pereybere, 
Beau Manguier as per title deed but in fact situate 
at Cap Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du 
Rempart for the public purpose of the construction 
of a bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 3 (Serial No. 3) [PIN:1317070804] 
of an extent of four hundred and forty five 
and twenty three hundredths square metres 
(445.23 m2) is excised from a portion of land 
of an extent of one thousand four hundred and 
seventy square metres (1470 m2) belonging jointly 
to (i) Mr Abdul Kader RAMANKHAN born 
on 02/08/1951 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number R0208512921384 as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed by Volume 
TV 4239/52 and (ii) Mrs Narida DILHOSSAIN 
born on 13/10/1952 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number D131052100174E civilly 
married under the legal community of goods to 
Mr Abib Hossen DUSMAHOMED as evidenced 
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by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 4856/60 
and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the East by Vingt Pieds Road (B45) 
on nineteen metres and fourteen centimetres 
(19.14m).

Towards the South East by Portion No.2 
(Serial No.2) [Land being acquired from 
Mr Rajsingh GUDDOY] on thirty four metres 
and thirty centimetres (34.30m).

Towards the West by the surplus of land on 
twenty eight metres and eighty five centimetres 
(28.85m).

Towards the North West by Portion No. 4 
(Serial No.4) of the plan mentioned below on 
seventeen metres and one centimetre (17.01m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr. Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 24/11/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 456 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Pereybere, 
Beau Manguier as per title deed but in fact situate 

at Cap Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du 
Rempart for the public purpose of the construction 
of a bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 4 (Serial No. 4) [PIN: 1317070805] 
of an extent of three hundred and thirty eight and 
seven hundredths square metres (338.07 m2) is 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of 
two thousand one hundred and ten square metres 
(2110 m2) belonging to (i) Mr Mohammad 
Reza BOODHOO born on 04/07/1970 holder 
of a national identity card bearing number 
B040770381624C (ii) Mr Faeez PANCHOO 
born on 05/08/1983 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number P050883460174E and 
(iii) Mr Mohamed Saleem Reza BOODHOO 
born on 21/06/1972 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number B2106724605188 as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 4239/51 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the East by Vingt Pieds Road (B45) 
on twenty five metres and forty four centimetres 
(25.44m).

Towards the South East by Portion No.3 
(Serial No3) of the plan mentioned below on 
seventeen metres and one centimetre (17.01m).

Towards the West by the surplus of land on two 
lines measuring fifteen metres and seventy five 
centimetres (15.75m) and twelve metres and 
seventy eight centimetres (12.78m) respectively.

Towards the North West by Portion No.5 
(Serial No.5) [Land being acquired from 
Mr & Mrs Faizal ROHOMUN and others] on 
nine metres and nineteen centimetres (9.19m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 24/11/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
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the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO 

Minister of Housing and Lands 
Ebene Tower 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 457 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Pereybere, 
Beau Manguier as per title deed but in fact situate 
at Cap Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du 
Rempart for the public purpose of the construction 
of a bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 6 (Serial No. 6) [PIN: 1317070807] 
of an extent of two hundred and twenty one and 
forty hundredths square metres (221.40 m2) is 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of one 
arpent and seventy five square perches (1A 75P) or 
seven thousand three hundred and eighty six and 
fifty two hundredths square metres (7386.52 m2) 
belonging to Heirs Daramrajsing GUDDOY 
(Late Mr Daramrajsing GUDDOY deceased 
on 08/03/1985 as per death certificate No. 72 of 
1985) and as evidenced by title deed transcribed in 
Volume TV 1582/91 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the East by Vingt Pieds Road (B45) on 
forty four metres and six centimetres (44.06m).

Towards the South East by Portion No.5 
(Serial No.5) [Land being acquired from 
Mr & Mrs Faizal ROHOMUN and others] on 
five metres and sixty centimetres (5.60m).

Towards the West by the surplus of land on forty 
five metres and sixty centimetres (45.60m).

Towards the North West by the surplus of 
land on four metres and fifty one centimetres 
(4.51m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 24/11/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 458 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 13 (SerialNo. 13) [PIN: 1317070809] 
of an extent of eighty five and twenty two hundredths 
square metres (85.22 m2) is excised from a portion of 
land of an extent of three hundred and forty six and 
twenty seven hundredths square metres (346.27 m2) 
belonging to (i) Mr Vivekanand BUDREE born 
on 10/03/1967 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number B100367090043C and (ii) 
Mrs Daisy Rani BUDREE (born BEEKOO) 
born on 28/03/1975 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number B2803750801379 civilly 
married under the legal community of goods 
to the aforesaid Mr Vivekanand BUDREE as 
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evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 5996/44 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North West by Portion No.42 
(Serial No.42) of the plan mentioned below on 
six metres and twenty eight centimetres(6.28m).

Towards the East by the surplus of land on 
twelve metres and eighty four centimetres 
(12.84m).

Towards the South by Portion No. 12 
(Serial No. 12) [Land being acquired from 
SOCIETE CIVILE IMMOBILIERE 
D’ATTRIBUTION HAPPY HOME] on seven 
metres and nine centimetres (7.09m).

Towards the West by Vingt Pieds Road (B45) 
on twelve metres and sixty three centimetres 
(12.63m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 24/11/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 459 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Cap 

Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 42 (SerialNo. 42) [PIN: 1317070810] 
of an extent of four and fifteen hundredths square 
metres (4.15 m2) is excised from a portion of land 
of an extent of three hundred and forty one and 
ninety hundredths square metres (341.90 m2) 
belonging to Mr Krishen MAUNICK born on 
18/06/1969 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number M1806963001816 as evidenced 
by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 5937/65 
and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North by surplus of land on six 
metres and twenty seven centimetres (6.27m).

Towards the North East by surplus of land on 
fifty one centimetres (0.51m).

Towards the South by Portion No. 13 
(Serial No. 13) of the plan mentioned below 
on six metres and twenty eight centimetres 
(6.28m).

Towards the West by Vingt Pieds Road (B45) 
on eighty five centimetres (0.85m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 24/11/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Punnanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower 

Ebene
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Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 460 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Pavilion 
(Mare Seche) as per title deed but in fact situate 
at Cap Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du 
Rempart for the public purpose of the construction 
of a bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 10 (SerialNo. 10) [PIN: 1317060388] 
of an extent of four hundred and one and eighty 
eight hundredths square metres (401.88 m2) is 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of 
two thousand two hundred and six and sixty 
eight hundredths square metres (2206.68 m2) 
belonging jointly to (i) Mr Khaleck BAUKER 
born on 10/08/1957 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number B1008570901601 (ii) 
Mrs Beebee Anoka BAUKER born on 
20/09/1959 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number B200959100184C and (iii) 
Mrs Bibi Jaytoon TIRBHOOWON 
(born BAUKER) born on 15/12/1955 holder 
of a national identity card bearing number 
B1512551100082 civilly married under the 
legal community of goods to Mr Moontarza 
TIRBHOOWON born on 28/07/1946 holder 
of a national identity card bearing number 
T280746100164C as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 3912/10 and is bounded 
as follows:-

Towards the East by the surplus of land on two 
lines measuring nineteen metres and twenty two 
centimetres (19.22m) and twelve metres and ten 
centimetres (12.1Om) respectively.

Towards the South East by Portion No. 9 
(Serial No. 9) of the plan mentioned below 
on seven metres and sixty three centimetres 
(7.63m).

Towards the South West by Union Road 
(B121) on twenty six metres and thirty seven 
centimetres (26.37m).

Towards the North West by a common road on 
twenty four metres and eighty five centimetres 
(24.85m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 24/11/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 461 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Pavilion 
(Mare Seche) as per title deed but in fact situate 
at Cap Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du 
Rempart for the public purpose of the construction 
of a bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 11 (SerialNo. 11) [PIN: 1317060047] 
of an extent of one thousand and fifty five and 
twenty two hundredths square metres (1055.22 m2) 
belonging to Mr Mansoor BAUKER born on 
01/04/1963 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number B0104631000670 as evidenced 
by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 2700/24 is 
bounded as follows:-
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Towards the North East partly by Portion No. 14 
(Serial No. 14) of the plan mentioned below 
and partly by the surplus of land on twenty five 
metres and twenty centimetres (25.20m).

Towards the South East by a common road on 
thirty eight metres and thirty eight centimetres 
(38.38m).

Towards the South West by Union Road 
(B121) on twenty five metres and eighty eight 
centimetres (25.88m).

Towards the North West by a common road on 
thirty eight metres and thirty eight centimetres 
(38.38m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 24/11/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 462 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Union Ribet as 
per title deed but in fact situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the public 
purpose of the construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 12 (SerialNo. 12) [PIN: 1317070808] 
of an extent of three thousand two hundred and 
sixty nine and ninety eight hundredths square 
metres (3269.98 m2) is excised from a portion of 
land of an extent of sixteen thousand eight hundred 
and seventy one and fifty hundredths square metres 
(16871.50 m2) belonging to SOCIETE CIVILE 
IMMOBILIERE D’ATTRIBUTION HAPPY 
HOME as evidenced by title deed transcribed in 
Volume TV 7375/42 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North by Portion No. 13 
(Serial No. 13) of the plan mentioned below on 
seven metres and nine centimetres (7.09m).

Towards the East partly by the surplus of 
land and partly by a common road on six 
lines measuring ninety seven metres and ten 
centimetres (97.10m), fourteen metres and 
ninety five centimetres (14.95m), twelve 
metres and seventy one centimetres (12.71m), 
twenty nine metres and thirty three centimetres 
(29.33m), sixty seven metres and fifteen 
centimetres (67.15m) and six metres and fifty 
six centimetres (6.56m) respectively.

Towards the South East by a common road on 
one hundred and twenty one metres and fifty 
nine centimetres (121.59m) and on a developed 
length measuring two metres and eighty nine 
centimetres (2.89m).

Towards the West by Vingt Pieds Road (B45) 
on a developed length measuring one hundred 
and fifty two metres and eighty three centimetres 
(152.83m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 24/11/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in
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the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO 

Minister of Housing and Lands 
Ebene Tower 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 463 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Pavilion 
(Mare Seche) as per title deed but in fact situate 
at Cap Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du 
Rempart for the public purpose of the construction 
of a bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 14 (SerialNo. 14) [PIN:1317060389] 
of an extent of one thousand one hundred and 
fifty nine and sixty hundredths square metres 
(1159.60 m2) is excised from a portion of land of 
an extent of one thousand eight hundred and ninety 
seven and twenty hundredths square metres (1897.20 
m2) belonging jointly to (i) Mr Hussen BAUKER 
born on 30/11/1969 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number B3011691000034 (ii) 
Mrs Bibi Fatmah TOONAH (born BAUKER) 
born on 07/12/1965 holder of a national 
identity card bearing number B0712651002377 
civilly married under the legal community 
of goods to Mr Anowar TOONAH born on 
30/06/1956 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number T300656100137E and (iii) Mr 
Mansoor BAUKER born on 01/04/1963 holder 
of a national identity card bearing number 
B0104631000670 as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 3912/9 and is b'ounded 
as follows: -

Towards the East by a common road on nineteen 
metres and eighty nine centimetres (19.89m).

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
on two lines measuring fifty six metres and ten 
centimetres (56.10m) and eighteen metres and 
ninety nine centimetres (18.99m).

Towards the South West by Portion No. 11 
(Serial No. 11) of the plan mentioned below 
on twenty metres and eighty six centimetres 
(20.86m).

Towards the North West by a common road on 
eighty five metres and ninety two centimetres 
(85.92m).

• *
The whole as morefully shown on a plan 

registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 24/11/2017,

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 464 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 15 (SerialNo. 15) [PIN:1317060390] 
of an extent of three hundred and thirty and twenty 
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six square metres (330.26 m2) is excised from a 
portion of land of an extent of one thousand and 
fifty five square metres (1055.00 m2) belonging 
to Mrs Archana WOODUN (born GUDDOY) 
born on 13/09/1990 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number G130990310921C civilly 
married under the legal community of goods 
to Mr Dharam WOODUN born on 14/08/1987 
holder of a national identity card bearing 
number W1408873034911 and as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume TV 8549/34 and 
is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by Portion No. 16 
(Serial No. 16) of the plan mentioned below 
on four metres and twenty two centimetres 
(4.22m).

Towards the South East by a common road on 
forty nine metres and seventeen centimetres 
(49.17m).

Towards the South West by a common road on 
nine metres and forty six centimetres (9.46m).

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
on forty eight metres and thirty one centimetres 
(48.31m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 24/11/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO 

Minister of Housing and Lands 
Ebene Tower 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 465 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 16 (SerialNo. 16) [PIN:1317060391] 
of an extent of one hundred and four and seventy 
seven hundredths square metres (104.77 m2) 
is excised from a portion of land of an extent 
of seven hundred and seventeen square metres 
(717 m2) belonging to Mrs Marie Yeildy 
HENRY (born BISSON) born on 08/07/1954 
holder of a national identity card bearing 
number B0807540202097 civilly married 
under the system of legal separation of goods 
to Mr Daniel Andre Germain HENRY as per 
marriage certificate bearing number 60/1990 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 6700/68 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by Portion No. 17 
(Serial No. 17) of the plan mentioned below on 
one metre and sixty seven centimetres (1.67m).

Towards the South East by a common road on 
forty two metres and twenty six centimetres 
(42.26m).

Towards the South West by Portion No. 15 
(Serial No. 15) of the plan mentioned below 
on four metres and twenty two centimetres 
(4.22m).

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
on two lines measuring eighteen metres and 
eighty centimetres (18.80m) and twenty three 
metres and twenty three centimetres (23.23m) 
respectively.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 24/11/2017.
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The plan may be inspected by the public at 
the Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing 
and Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office 
hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO 

Minister of Housing and Lands 
Ebene Tower 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 466 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

PortionNo. 25 (SerialNo. 25) [PIN: 1317050418] 
of an extent of three thousand nine hundred and 
sixty six and ninety four hundredths square metres 
(3966.94 m2) is excised from a portion of land of 
an extent of seven arpents and thirty three square 
perches (7A 33P) or three hectares and nine 
hundred and thirty nine square metres (3Ha939 m2) 
belonging to SOCIETE ROUILLARD FRERES 
ET CIE holder of a business registration number 
F07000030 as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume TV 378/193 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North by the surplus of land on four 
lines measuring twenty one metres and seventy 
eight centimetres (21.78m), thirty six metres and 
fifty seven centimetres (36.57m), thirty six metres 
and eighteen centimetres (36.18m) and twenty 

three metres and eighteen centimetres (23.18m) 
respectively.

Towards the North East by Portion No. 26 
(Serial No. 26) of the plan mentioned below on 
fifty six metres and seventy seven centimetres 
(56.77m).

Towards the South by the surplus of land on 
five lines measuring sixteen metres and fifty 
centimetres (16.50m), thirty nine metres and eighty 
eight centimetres (39.88m), thirty nine metres 
and ninety centimetres (39.90m), forty metres 
and eighteen centimetres (40.18m) and thirty 
eight metres and forty eight centimetres (38.48m) 
respectively.

Towards the West by Portion No. 24 (Serial No. 
24) of the plan mentioned below on twenty eight 
metres and ninety nine centimetres (28.99m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/ 2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 467 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
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of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 26 (Serial No. 26) [PIN: 1317050419] 
of an extent of two thousand and sixteen and 
sixty five hundredths square metres (2016.65 m2) 
is excised from a portion of land of an extent of 
seven arpents and thirty three square perches (7A 
33P) or three hectares and nine hundred and thirty 
nine square metres (3Ha939 m2) belonging to 
SOCIETE ROUILLARD FRERES ET CIE holder 
of a business registration number F07000030 as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 
378/193 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North by the surplus of land on 
four lines measuring ten metres and ninety nine 
centimetres (10.99m), thirty seven metres and 
ninety eight centimetres (37.98m), thirty six 
metres and forty eight centimetres (36.48m) and 
twenty one metres and eight centimetres (21.08m) 
respectively.

Towards the South East by Portion No. 27 
(Serial No.27) of the plan mentioned below on 
thirty nine metres and eighty seven centimetres 
(39.87m).

Towards the South by the surplus of land on thirty 
five metres and forty five centimetres (35.45m).

Towards the South West by Portion No.25 
(Serial No.25) of the plan mentioned below on 
fifty six metres and seventy seven centimetres 
(56.77m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 

the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO 

Minister of Housing and Lands 
Ebene Tower, 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 468 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 27 (Serial No. 27) [PIN: 1317050420] 
of an extent of four thousand one hundred and 
eighty three and forty two hundredths square 
metres (4183.42 m2) is excised from a portion of 
land of an extent of three arpents and ninety three 
square perches (3A 93P) or sixteen thousand five 
hundred and eighty eight and two hundredths 
square metres (16588.02 m2) belonging to 
SOCIETE ROUILLARD FRERES ET CIE holder 
of a business registration number F07000030 as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 
382/144 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by Portion No.28 (Serial 
No. 28) of the plan mentioned below on forty nine 
metres and eighty eight centimetres (49.88m).

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
on four lines measuring forty one metres and sixty 
centimetres (41.60m), forty four metres and two 
centimetres (44.02m), forty one metres and thirty 
centimetres (41.30m) and twenty eight metres and 
seventy one centimetres (28.71m) respectively.

Towards the South West by Portion Np.26 (Serial 
No.26) of the plan mentioned below on thirty nine 
metres and eighty seven centimetres (39.87m).
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Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
on two lines measuring sixteen metres (16.00m) 
and seventy five metres and ninety six centimetres 
(75.96m) respectively.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 469 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at L’Union as 
per title deed but in fact situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the public 
purpose of the construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 28 (SerialNo. 28) [PIN: 1317160397] 
of an extent of twelve thousand three hundred and 
thirty five and seventy eight hundredths square 
metres (12335.78 m2) is excised from a portion of 
land of an extent of nine arpents and eighty square 
perches (9A 80P) or four hectares one thousand 
three hundred and sixty five square metres (4Ha 

1365 m2) belonging to SOCIETE ROUILLARD 
FRERES ET CIE holder of a business registration 
number F07000030 as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 318/484 and is bounded 
as follows: -

Towards the East by the surplus of land on 
eleven lines measuring fifty four metres and 
twenty eight centimetres (54.28m), thirty six 
metres and seventy seven centimetres (36.77m), 
forty metres and two centimetres (40.02m), twenty 
one metres and twenty four centimetres (21.24m), 
eighteen metres and ninety nine centimetres 
(18.99m), fifteen metres and seventy three 
centimetres (15.73m), sixteen metres and thirty 
two centimetres (16.32m), twenty nine metres 
and twenty nine centimetres (29.29m), six metres 
and five centimetres (6.05m), thirty one metres 
and forty nine centimetres (31.49m) and nineteen 
metres and eighty five centimetres (19.85m) 
respectively.

Towards the South East partly by Portion 
No.29 (Serial No.29) of the plan mentioned below 
and partly by the surplus of land on three lines 
measuring forty seven metres and ninety three 
centimetres (47.93m), seventeen metres and three 
centimetres (17.03m) and thirty six metres and 
sixty six centimetres (36.66m) respectively.

Towards the South West by Portion No.27 
(Serial No.27) of the plan mentioned below on 
forty nine metres and eighty eight centimetres 
(49.88m).

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
on eleven lines measuring sixty seven metres and 
fifty seven centimetres (67.57m), twenty four 
metres and eighty centimetres (24.80m), forty 
one metres and sixty centimetres (41.60m), fifty 
nine metres and ninety two centimetres (59.92m), 
eight metres and fifty seven centimetres (8.57m), 
twenty three metres and eighty centimetres 
(23.80m), twenty seven metres and seventeen 
centimetres (27.17m), sixty one metres and 
fourteen centimetres (61.14m), twenty one metres 
and eleven centimetres (21.11m), five metres and 
sixty three centimetres (5.63m) and five metres and 
fifty four centimetres (5.54m) respectively.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
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drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 470 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at L’Union as 
per title deed but in fact situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the public 
purpose of the construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

PortionNo. 29 (Serial No. 29) [PIN: 1317160398] 
of an extent of four thousand five hundred and 
thirty nine and three hundredths square metres 
(4539.03 m2) is excised from a portion of land of an 
extent of six arpents and twenty one square perches 
(6A 2IP) or two hectares and six thousand two 
hundred and twelve square metres (2Ha 6212m2) 
belonging to SOCIETE ROUILLARD FRERES 
ET CIE holder of a business registration number 
F07000030 as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume TV 317/403 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the surplus of land on 
six lines measuring twenty eight metres and twelve 

centimetres (28.12m), twenty five metres and 
fourteen centimetres (25.14m), twenty two metres 
and thirty two centimetres (22.32m), twenty one 
metres and sixty one centimetres (21.61m), forty 
eight metres and ninety six centimetres (48.96m) 
and three metres and fifty eight centimetres(3.58m) 
respectively.

Towards the South East by Portion No. 31 
(Serial No. 31) of the plan mentioned below on 
two lines measuring ten metres and thirty nine 
centimetres (10.39m) and ten metres and eighty 
six centimetres (10.86m) respectively.

Towards the South West partly by Portion 
No.30 (Serial No.30) of the plan mentioned below 
on thirty three metres" and seventy four centimetres 
(33.74m) and partly by the surplus of land and 
partly by a estate road on three lines measuring fifty 
one metres and thirty six centimetres (51.36m), 
forty metres and thirty six centimetres (40.36m) 
and ten metres and sixty six centimetres (10.66m) 
respectively.

Towards the North West by Portion No.28 
(Serial No.28) of the plan mentioned below on 
forty seven metres and ninety three centimetres 
(47.93m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower 

Ebene
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Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 471 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at L’Union 
Belcourt as per title deed but in fact situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

PortionNo. 5D(SerialNo. 30) [PIN: 1317050421] 
of an extent of two hundred and eighty three and 
twelve square metres (283.12 m2) is excised from 
a portion of land of an extent of four arpents 
and twenty five square perches (4A 25P) or one 
hectare and seven thousand nine hundred and thirty 
nine square metres (IHa 7939 m2) belonging to 
SOCIETE ROUILLARD FRERES ET CIE holder 
of a business registration number F07000030 as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 
381/335 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East partly by Portion No.29 
(Serial No.29) of the plan mentioned below on 
thirty three metres and seventy four centimetres 
(33.74m) and partly by Portion No. 31 (Serial 
No.31) of the plan mentioned below on fourteen 
metres and sixty centimetres (14.60m).

Towards the South East by Portion No.32 (Serial 
No.32) of the plan mentioned below on three lines 
measuring two metres and fifty six centimetres 
(2.56m), three metres and thirty seven centimetres 
(3.37m) and five metres and nineteen centimetres 
(5.19m) respectively.

Towards the South West by the surplus of land 
on two lines measuring twenty eight metres and 
sixty four centimetres (28.64m) and fifteen metres 
and ninety eight centimetres (15.98m) respectively.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.
The Honourable 

Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 472 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at L’Union as 
per title deed but in fact situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the public 
purpose of the construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

PortionNo. 31 (SerialNo. 31) [PIN: 1317160399] 
of an extent of nine hundred and thirty and sixty 
seven hundredths square metres (930.67 m2) is 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of 
four arpents and twenty eight square perches 
(4A 28P) or one hectare and eight thousand three 
hundred and nineteen square metres (IHa 8319 m2) 
belonging to SOCIETE ROUILLARD FRERES 
ET CIE holder of a business registration number 
F07000030 as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume TV 345/59 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of 
land on two lines measuring fifty two metres and 
sixteen centimetres (52.16m) and sixty six metres 
and sixty eight centimetres (66.68m) respectively.

Towards the South East by Portion No.33 
(Serial No.3 3) of the plan mentioned below on four 
metres and twenty one centimetres (4.21m).

Towards the South West by partly by Portion 
No.32 (Serial No.32) of the plan mentioned below 
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on ten lines measuring five metres and eighty 
centimetres (5.80m), four metres and ninety nine 
centimetres (4.99m), seven metres and seventy 
eight centimetres (7.78m), five metres and twenty 
six centimetres (5.26m), ten metres and five 
centimetres (10.05m), nine metres and twenty two 
centimetres (9.22m), eleven metres and forty six 
centimetres (11.46m), nineteen metres and sixty 
seven centimetres (19.67m), twenty metres and 
sixty eight centimetres (20.68m), seventeen metres 
and ninety four centimetres (17.94m) and partly by 
Portion No.30 (Serial No.30) on fourteen metres 
and sixty centimetres (14.60m) respectively.

Towards the North West by Portion No.29 
(Serial No.29) of the plan mentioned below on 
two lines measuring ten metres and eighty six 
centimetres (10.86m) and ten metres and thirty 
nine centimetres (10.39m) respectively.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO 

Minister of Housing and Lands 
Ebene Tower 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 473 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at L’Union 

Belcourt as per title deed but in fact situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 32 (Serial No. 32) [PIN: 1317050422] 
of an extent of three thousand seven hundred and 
forty six and seventy eight hundredths square 
metres (3746.78 m2) is excised from a portion of 
land of an extent of four arpents (4A OOP) or one 
hectare and six thousand eight hundred and eighty 
three square metres (lHa6883 m2) belonging to 
SOCIETE ROUILLARD FRERES ET CIE holder 
of a business registration number F07000030 as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 
365/582 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East partly by Portion No. 
31 (Serial No. 31) of the plan mentioned below on 
ten lines measuring seventeen metres and ninety 
four centimetres (17.94m), twenty metres and sixty 
eight centimetres (20.68m), nineteen metres and 
sixty seven centimetres (19.67m), eleven metres 
and forty six centimetres (11.46m), nine metres 
and twenty two centimetres (9.22m), ten metres 
and five centimetres (10.05m), five metres and 
twenty six centimetres (5.26m), seven metres and 
seventy eight centimetres (7.78m), four metres 
and ninety nine centimetres (4.99m) and on five 
metres and eighty centimetres (5.80m) respectively 
and partly by Portion No.33(Serial No.33) of the 
plan mentioned below on two lines measuring four 
metres and ninety four centimetres (4.94m) and 
six metres and ninety eight centimetres (6.98m) 
respectively.

Towards the South East by Portion No. 35 
(Serial No. 35) of the plan mentioned below on 
forty eight metres and fifty nine centimetres 
(48.59m).

Towards the South West by the surplus of land 
on one hundred and thirty four metres and forty 
three centimetres (134.43m).

Towards the North West by Portion No.30 
(Serial No.30) of the plan mentioned below on 
three lines measuring five metres and nineteen 
centimetres (5.19m), three metres and thirty seven 
centimetres (3.37m) and two metres and fifty six 
centimetres (2.56m) respectively.
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The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.
The Honourable 

Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 474 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at L’Union as 
per title deed but in fact situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the public 
purpose of the construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 33 (Serial No. 33) 
. [PIN: 1317160400] of an extent of three hundred 
and six and sixty five hundredths square metres 
(306.65 m2) is excised from a portion of land of 
an extent of four arpents and twenty eight square 
perches (4A 28P) or one hectare and eight hundred 
and six square metres (lHa806 m2) belonging to 
SOCIETE ROUILLARD FRERES ET CIE holder 
of a business registration number F07000030 as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 
345/59 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards North East by the surplus of land on 
three metres and seven centimetres (3.07m).

Towards the South East by Mon Choisy-Cap 
Malheureux Road (B13) and by a common road 
on four lines measuring twenty five metres and 
seventy nine centimetres (25.79m), seven metres 
and fifty seven centimetres (7.57m), five metres 
and twenty six centimetres (5.26m) and nine 
metres and eight centimetres (9.08m) respectively.

Towards the South West by Portion No. 32 
(Serial No. 32) of the plan mentioned below on 
two lines measuring six metres and ninety eight 
centimetres (6.98m) and four metres and ninety 
four centimetres (4.94m) respectively.

Towards the North West partly by Portion No. 
31 (Serial No.31) of the plan mentioned below on 
four metres and twenty one centimetres (4.21m) 
and partly by the surplus of land on forty two 
metres and sixty eight centimetres (42.68m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 475 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Cap
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Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 34 (Serial No. 34) [PIN: 1317160401 ] 
of an extent of one hundred and twenty seven and 
eighty three hundredths square metres (127.83 m2) 
is excised from a portion of land of an extent of 
nine arpents and nine square perches (9A 09P) or 
three hectare and eight thousand three hundred and 
forty nine square metres (3Ha 8349 m2) belonging 
to LONGCHAMPS INVESTMENT LTD holder 
of a business registration number C09090421 as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 
201602/001649 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
on three metres and seven centimetres (3.07m).

Towards the South East by the surplus of land on 
thirty three metres and two centimetres (33.02m).

Towards the North West by Mon Choisy- 
Cap Malheureux Road (Bl3) on a developed 
length measuring thirteen metres and twenty four 
centimetres (13.24m) and on three lines measuring 
six metres and twenty one centimetres (6.21m), 
five metres and sixty centimetres (5.60m) and on 
six metres and eighty seven centimetres (6.87m) 
respectively.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 476 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at L’Union 
Belcourt as per title deed but in fact situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 35 (Serial No. 35) 
[PIN: 1317050423] of an extent of seven thousand 
eight hundred and eighty seven and twenty six 
hundredths square metres (7887.26 m2) is excised 
from a portion of land of an extent of three arpents 
and seventy seven square perches (3A 77P) or 
one hectare five thousand nine hundred and 
thirteen square metres (lHa 5913 m2) belonging to 
SOCIETE ROUILLARD FRERES ET CIE holder 
of a business registration number F07000030 as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 
381/335 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by Mon Choisy-Cap 
Malheureux Road (Bl3) on three lines measuring 
eleven metres and ninety seven centimetres 
(11.97m), seventy metres and seventy four 
centimetres (70.74m) and sixteen metres and 
twenty two centimetres (16.22m) respectively.

Towards the South East partly by Mon Choisy- 
Cap Malheureux Road (Bl3) on a developed 
length measuring twenty eight metres and thirty 
two centimetres (28.32m) and on two lines 
measuring twenty seven metres and forty five 
centimetres (27.45m) and ten metres and forty six 
centimetres (10.46m) respectively and partly by a 
common road on twenty six metres and twenty six 
centimetres (26.26m).

Towards the South West by the surplus of land 
on one hundred and twenty eight metres and forty 
centimetres (128.40m).

Towards the North West by Portion No. 32 
(Serial No. 32) of the plan mentioned below on 
forty eight metres and fifty nine centimetres 
(48.59m).
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The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.
The Honourable 

Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower
Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 477 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

PortionNo. 36(SerialNo. 36) [PIN: 1317100359] 
of an extent of three thousand four hundred and 
twenty four and thirty hundredths square metres 
(3424.30 m2) is excised from a portion of land of an 
extent of one arpent (1A OOP) or four thousand two 
hundred and twenty and eighty seven hundredths 
square metres (4220.87 m2) belonging to 
Mrs Bagwanteea BEETASURbom on 15/03/1930 
holder of a national identity card bearing number 
Bl50330090102B as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 643/34 and is bounded 
as follows: -

Towards the North East along Mon Choisy- 
Cap Malheureux Road (Bl3) on a developed 

length measuring thirty three metres and 
thirty nine centimetres (33.39m), on five lines 
measuring twenty six metres and ninety three 
centimetres (26.93m), sixteen metres and seventy 
centimetres(l 6.70m), twenty four metres and fifty 
eight centimetres (24.58m), ten metres and twenty 
three centimetres (10.23m) and on seventeen metres 
and fifty two centimetres (17.52m) respectively and 
again on a developed length measuring forty seven 
metres and seventy six centimetres (47.76m).

Towards the South West partly by a common 
road four metres wide (4.00m) on seventy three 
metres and thirty six centimetres (73.36m) 
and partly by the surplus of land on two lines 
measuring seven metres and forty nine centimetres 
(7.49m) and seventy one metres and eighty eight 
centimetres (71.88m) respectively.

Towards the North West by a common road 
on twenty one metres and ninety two centimetres 
(21.92m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to the 
Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the second 
publication of this Notice in the Gazette a written 
declaration of tire nature of his interest in the land and 
the amount and details of his claim for compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018.
The Honourable

Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower
Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 478 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
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of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 17 (Serial No. 17) [PIN: 
1317060392] of an extent of twenty two and 
eighty hundredths square metres (22.80 m2) is 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of three 
hundred and thirty eight square metres (338 m2) 
belonging to Mr Hoopmendre CAUSSY born 
on 30/06/1976 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number C3006764610230 as evidenced 
by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 4902/42 
and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by a common road on 
sixty seven centimetres (0.67m).

Towards the South by a common road on twenty 
three metres and thirty one centimetres (23.31m).

Towards the South West by Portion No. 16 
(Serial No. 16) of the plan mentioned below on one 
metre and sixty seven centimetres (1.67m).

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
on two lines measuring sixteen metres and seventy 
eight centimetres (16.78m) and six metres and 
forty centimetres (6.40m) respectively.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 24/11/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO 

Minister of Housing and Lands 
Ebene Tower 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 479 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Mont 
Mascal as per title deed but in fact situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 18 (Serial No. 18) 
[PIN:1317060393] of an extent of four thousand 
nine hundred and sixty and nine hundredths square 
metres (4960.09 m2) is excised from a portion 
of land of an extent of seven arpents and nine 
square perches (7A 09P) or twenty nine thousand 
nine hundred and twenty five and ninety seven 
hundredths square metres (29925.97 m2) belonging 
to SOCIETE DE PREVOYANCE as evidenced 
by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 1540/119, 
7n,(b) and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North by a common road on three 
lines measuring ninety three metres and seventy 
two centimetres (93.72m), twenty nine metres 
and ninety centimetres (29.90m) and one hundred 
and eighty metres and thirty four centimetres 
(180.34m) respectively.

Towards the North East by a common road on 
sixty six centimetres (0.66m).

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
on five lines measuring one hundred and fifty four 
metres and forty seven centimetres (154.47m), forty 
one metres and fourteen centimetres (41.14m), 
forty one metres and thirty centimetres (41.30m), 
forty five metres and ninety six centimetres 
(45.96m) and thirty three metres and thirty one 
centimetres (33.31m) respectively.

Towards the West by a common road on sixteen 
metres and forty five centimetres (16.45m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 24/11/2017.
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The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Eveiy interested person is required to give to the 
Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the second 
publication of this Notice in the Gazette a written 
declaration of the nature of his interest in the land and 
the amount and details of his claim for compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018
The Honourable 

Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 480 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the 
State of Mauritius a portion of land situate at 
Labourdonnais as per title deed but in fact situate 
at Cap Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du 
Rempart for the public purpose of the construction 
of a bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 21 (Serial No. 21) 
[PIN:1317010236] of an extent of twelve 
thousand six hundred and ninety six and thirty five 
hundredths square metres (12696.35 m2) is excised 
from a portion of land being all that remains of 
seventy four arpents and forty one square perches 
(74A 4IP) or thirty one hectares and four thousand 
and seventy five square metres (31 ha 4075 m2) 
belonging to SOCIETE ROUILLARD FRERES 
ET CIE holder of a business registration number 
F07000030 as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume TV 422/577 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by Portion No. 22 (Serial 
No. 22) of the plan mentioned below on forty two 
metres and eighty nine centimetres (42.89m).

Towards the South East by a common road 
on three lines measuring nine metres and nine 

centimetres (9.09m), two hundred and forty 
seven metres and one centimetre (247.01m) and 
one hundred and fifty four metres and fourteen 
centimetres (154.14m) respectively.

Towards the South West by Portion No. 20 
(Serial No. 20) of the plan mentioned below on 
two lines measuring eight metres and eighty three 
centimetres (8.83m) and twenty three metres and 
twenty nine centimetres (23.29m) respectively.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land 
on six lines measuring two hundred and eighty 
metres and eighty eight centimetres (280.88m), 
forty metres and twenty nine centimetres (40.29m), 
fourteen metres and eighty three centimetres 
(14.83m), thirty metres and thirty eight centimetres 
(30.38m), twenty six metres and eighty eight 
centimetres (26.88m) and eight metres and eighty 
one centimetre (8.81m) respectively.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018
The Honourable 

Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 481 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT 

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that 1 have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
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of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 22 (Serial No. 22) 
[PIN:1317010237] of an extent of three thousand 
two hundred and fifty nine and sixty eight 
hundredths square metres (3259.68 m2) is excised 
from a portion of land of an extent of forty five 
arpents and fifty three and nine tenths square 
perches (45A 53.9P) or nineteen hectares and 
two thousand two hundred and fourteen square 
metres (19Ha 2214 m2) belonging to CREATIVE 
PROPERTIES LTD holder of a business 
registration number C15130203 as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume TV201509/000153 
and is bounded as follows

Towards the North by the surplus of land on 
two lines measuring thirty eight metres and twenty 
three centimetres (38.23m) and ten metres and 
seven centimetres (10.07m) respectively.

Towards the East by Portion No. 23 (Serial No. 
23) of the plan mentioned below on eighty nine 
metres and nineteen centimetres (89.19m).

Towards the South West partly by an Estate 
Road, partly by Portion No. 21 (Serial No. 21) of 
the plan mentioned below and partly by surplus of 
land on four lines measuring one metre and thirty 
six centimetres (1.36m), seven metres and fifty six 
centimetres (7.56m), forty two metres and eighty 
nine centimetres (42.89m) and sixteen metres and 
three centimetres (16.03m) respectively.

Towards the West by the surplus of land 
on forty metres and seventy six centimetres 
(40.76m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 

written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO 

Minister of Housing and. Lands 
Ebene Tower 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 482 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Sans Souci as 
per title deed but in fact situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the public 
purpose of the construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 23 (Serial No. 23) 
[PIN:1317010238] of an extent of sixteen 
thousand eight hundred and sixty nine and thirteen 
hundredths square metres (16869.13 m2) is excised 
from a portion of land of all that remains of an 
extent of fifty nine arpents and eighty four square 
perches (59A 84P) or twenty five hectares and two 
thousand five hundred and seventy seven square 
metres (25Ha 2577m2) belonging to SOCIETE 
ROUILLARD FRERES ET CIE holder of a 
business registration number F07000030 as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 703/174 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the surplus of land on 
nine lines measuring forty four metres and twenty 
four centimetres (44.24m), twenty seven metres 
and twenty two centimetres (27.22m), twenty six 
metres and one centimetre (26.01m), thirty five 
metres and seventy eight centimetres (35.78m), 
thirty five metres and fifty three centimetres 
(35.53m), forty nine metres and two centimetres 
(49.02m), one hundred and seventy eight metres 
and ninety three centimetres (178.93m), thirty
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metres and nine centimetres (30.09m) and thirty 
metres and nine centimetres (30.09m) respectively.

Towards the South East by Portion No. 24 
(Serial No. 24) of the plan mentioned below on 
thirty eight metres and thirty nine centimetres 
(38.39m).

Towards the South West by an estate road on 
three lines measuring one hundred and seventy 
four metres and seventy six centimetres (174.76m), 
one hundred and twenty three metres and five 
centimetres (123.05m) and seven metres and 
fourteen centimetres (7.14m) respectively.

Towards the West by Portion No. 22 (Serial 
No. 22) of the plan mentioned below on eighty 
nine metres and nineteen centimetres (89.19m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO 

Minister of Housing and Lands 
Ebene Tower 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 483 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 

for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 24 (Serial No. 24) [PIN: 
1317050417] of an extent of twelve thousand and 
one hundred and eighty one and eighty hundredths 
square metres (12181.80 m2) is excised from a 
portion of land of an extent of seventy five arpents 
(75A OOP) belonging to SOCIETE ROUILLARD 
FRERES ET CIE holder of a business 
registration number F07000030 as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume TV 187/363 and 
is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
on five lines measuring fifty nine metres and 
eighty two centimetres (59.82m), two hundred and 
thirty two metres and seventy seven centimetres 
(232.77m), twenty seven metres and thirty five 
centimetres (27.35m), forty metres and seventeen 
centimetres (40.17m) and thirty four metres and 
sixty four centimetres (34.64m) respectively.

Towards the South East by Portion No.25 (Serial 
No.25) of the plan mentioned below on twenty 
nine metres and fourteen centimetres (29.14m).

Towards the South West partly by the surplus 
of land, partly by land belonging to SOCIETE 
ROUILLARD FRERE ET CIE and partly by land 
belonging to Mr Mohammad Cassim HOSSEN 
on thirteen lines measuring forty three metres and 
forty seven centimetres (43.47m), forty metres and 
thirty three centimetres (40.33m), twenty metres 
and seventeen centimetres (20.17m), sixty metres 
and two centimetres (60.02m), fifty eight metres 
and forty seven centimetres (58.47m), twenty 
four metres and eighty one centimetres (24.81m), 
twenty eight metres and fifty four centimetres 
(28.54m), twenty three metres and forty four 
centimetres (23.44m), eleven metres and eighty 
nine centimetres (11,89m), twenty five metres and 
ninety one centimetres (25.91m), eighteen metres 
and seventy three centimetres (18.73m), twenty 
nine metres and twenty eight centimetres (29.28m) 
and nine metres and twenty six centimetres (9.26m) 
respectively.

Towards the North West by Portion No. 23 
(Serial No. 23) of the plan mentioned below on 
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thirty eight metres and thirty nine centimetres 
(38.39m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 484 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 6)

Notice is hereby given that one (1) portion of 
land situate at Cap Malheureux, in the district of 
Riviere du Rempart is likely to be acquired by 
the State of Mauritius for the public purpose of 
constructing a bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 19 (Serial No. 19) of an approximate 
extent of two thousand square metres (2000 m2) is 
to be excised from a portion of land of an extent 
of nineteen thousand four hundred and fifteen and 
ninety six hundredths square metres (19415.96 
m2) belonging to Mr Stephane ROBERT as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 
201606/002019 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by a common road.

Towards the South East by a common road.

Towards the South West by a common road.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

This notice under Section 6 of the Land 
Acquisition Act cancels and replaces the 
description of the Portion of land being Portion 
No. 19(Serial No.19) in the previous notice under 
Section 6 of the Land Acquisition Act dated 
03/05/2017 and published in the Government 
Gazette in its issues of 13/05/2017 and 27/05/2017 
under General Notices No. 680 of 2017 and 744 
of 2017 respectively.

Date: 26/02/2018

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO 

Minister of Housing and Lands 
Ebene Tower 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 485 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 6)

Notice is hereby given that one (1) portion of 
land situate at Cap Malheureux, in the district of 
Riviere du Rempart is likely to be acquired by 
the State of Mauritius for the public purpose of 
constructing a bypass at Cap Malheureux.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 20 (Serial No. 20) of an approximate 
extent of two thousand square metres (2000 m2) is 
to be excised from a portion of land of an extent of 
one arpent and fifty three square perches (1A 53P) 
or six thousand four hundred and fifty seven and 
ninety three hundredths square metres (6457.93 m2) 
belonging to Mr Ramprakashsing RAMDANY 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 1761/77 and is bounded as follows:

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

Towards the North East by a common road.

Towards the South East by a common road.

Towards the South West by a common road.

Observation is hereby made that this present 
notice under Section 6 of the Land Acquisition 
Act deletes and replaces the description of Portion
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No. 20 (Serial No.20) in the previous notice given 
under Section 6 of the Land Acquisition Act dated 
24/08/2017 and published in the Government 
Gazette in its issues of 09/09/2017 and 23/09/2017 
under GN 1312 of 2017 and GN 1405 of 2017 
respectively.

Date: 26/02/2018

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO 

Minister of Housing and Lands 
Ebene Tower, 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 486 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at L’Union as 
per title deed but in fact situate at Cap Malheureux, 
in the district of Riviere du Rempart for the public 
purpose of the construction of a bypass at Cap 
Malheureux.

Description

Portion No. 37 (Serial No. 37) 
[PIN:1317160402] of an extent of forty and ninety 
three hundredths square metres (40.93 m2) is 
excised from a portion of land being all that remains 
of an extent of three arpents and sixty seven square 
perches (3A 67P) or one hectare and five thousand 
four hundred and ninety one square metres (IHa 
5491 m2) belonging to SOCIETE ROUILLARD 
FRERES ET CIE holder of a business registration 
number F07000030 as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 324/179 and is bounded 
as follows:-

Towards the North by the surplus of land 
on thirteen metres and thirty five centimetres 
(13.35m).

Towards the South East by Mon Choisy-Cap 
Malheureux Road (Bl3) on a developed length 
measuring fourteen metres and eleven centimetres 
(14.11m).

Towards the South West by Mon Choisy-Cap 
Malheureux Road (Bl3) on three metres and 
twenty three centimetres (3.23m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018
The Honourable 

Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower
Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 487 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 
for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

Description

Portion No. 38a (Serial No. 38 a) [PIN: 
1317100360] of an extent of three hundred and thirty 
hundredths square metres (300.30 m2) belonging to 
Mrs Bibi Hafiza MORABY (born KURMOO) 
born on 02/07/1971 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number K0207713814786 civilly 
married under the legal community of goods 
married to Mr Mohamad Saoud MORABY as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 
6088/19 and is bounded as follows:-
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Towards the North East by a common road four 
metres wide (4.00m) on three metres and fifteen 
centimetres (3.15m) and on a developed length 
measuring four metres and sixteen centimetres 
(4.16m).

Towards the East by Mon Choisy-Cap 
Malheureux Road (B13) on twenty five metres and 
twenty three centimetres (25.23m).

Towards the South West by Portion No.39 
(Serial No. 39) of the plan mentioned below on 
twenty one metres and ninety three centimetres 
(21.93m).

Towards the North West by Portion No. 38b 
(Serial No.38b) of the plan mentioned below on 
twenty two metres and six centimetres (22.06m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018
The Honourable 

Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower
Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 488 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State 
of Mauritius a portion of land situate at Cap 
Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du Rempart 

for the public purpose of the construction of a 
bypass at Cap Malheureux.

Description

Portion No. 38b (Serial No. 38b) [PIN: 
1317100368] of an extent of three hundred and 
thirty hundredths square metres (300.30 m2) 
belonging to Mrs Seherabanon DOOKHOO 
(born KURMOO) born on 26/01/1968 holder 
of a national identity card bearing number 
K260168380235A civilly married under the legal 
community of goods to Mr Mahmud Farouk 
DOOKHOO bom on 23/12/1957 holder of a national 
identity card bearing number D2312570103475 as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 
6088/19 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by a common road of 
four metres wide (4.00m) on thirteen metres and 
fifty nine centimetres (13.59m).

Towards the South East by Portion No.38a 
(Serial No. 38a) of the plan mentioned below on 
twenty two metres and six centimetres (22.06m).

Towards the South West by Portion No.39 
(Serial No.39) of the plan mentioned below on 
thirteen metres and fifty nine centimetres (13.59m).

Towards the North East by Portion No.38c 
(Serial No.38c) of the plan mentioned below 
on twenty two metres and thirteen centimetres 
(22.13m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018
The Honourable 

Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower, Ebene
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Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 489 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at L’Union 
(Anse La Raie) as per title deed but in fact situate 
at Cap Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du 
Rempart for the public purpose of the construction 
of a bypass at Cap Malheureux.

Description

Portion No. 39 (Serial No. 39) 
[PIN:1317100361] of an extent of six hundred 
and forty three and thirty nine hundredths square 
metres (643.39 m2) is excised from a portion of 
land of an extent of one arpent (1A OOP) or four 
thousand two hundred and twenty and eighty 
seven hundredths square metres (4220.87 m2) 
belonging to Mrs Kamlavalli MOOTYEN 
[born DARMALINGUM] (widow of Late 
Mr Soocramanien Soobrooyen MOOTYEN) 
born on 18/10/1943 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number D181043411982B for 
the usufruct and Mr Kreshnacoomaden 
Soobrooyen MOOTYEN born on 19/06/1973 
holder of a national identity card bearing number 
Ml906734101950 for the bare ownership as 
evidenced by title deeds transcribed in Volumes 
TV 1260/12 & TV 3913/1 and is bounded as 
follows:-

Towards the North East partly by Portion No. 
38b (Serial No. 38b) of the plan mentioned below 
on thirteen metres and fifty nine centimetres 
(13.59m) and partly by Portion No. 38a (Serial No. 
38a) of the plan mentioned below on twenty one 
metres and ninety three centimetres (21.93m).

Towards the East by Mon Choisy-Cap 
Malheureux Road (B13) on twenty nine metres and 
twenty five centimetres (29.25m).

Towards the South West by a common road 
of three metres and sixty six centimetres (3.66m) 
wide on twenty metres and thirty five centimetres 
(20.35m).

Towards the West by the surplus of land on 
two lines measuring twenty metres and ninety six 

centimetres (20.96m) and nineteen metres and 
fifteen centimetres (19.15m) respectively.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018

The Honourable 
Purmanund JHUGROO 

Minister of Housing and Lands 
Ebene Tower 

Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 490 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at L’Union 
(Saint Francois) as per title deed but in fact situate 
at Cap Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du 
Rempart for the public purpose of the construction 
of a bypass at Cap Malheureux.

Description

Portion No. 40 (Serial No. 40) [PIN: 
1317100362] of an extent of two hundred and 
fourteen and fifteen hundredths square metres 
(214.15 m2) is excised from a portion of land of an 
extent of three hundred and eighteen and fifty five 
hundredths square metres (318.55 m2) belonging 
to Heirs Mrs Soomeetree BHEEKHARRY 
(born BOODHUN) born on 01/05/1940 holder 
of a national identity card bearing number 
B0105400901652 as evidenced by title deed 
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transcribed in Volume TV 7181/66 and is bounded 
as follows:-

Towards the North East by a common road three 
metres and sixty six centimetres (3.66m) wide on 
ten metres and thirty eight centimetres (10.38m).

Towards the East by reserves of Mon Choisy- 
Cap Malheureux Road (Bl3) on twenty three 
metres and ninety four centimetres (23.94m).

Towards the South West by Portion No. 41 
(Serial No. 41) of the plan mentioned below on 
nine metres and eighty four centimetres (9.84m).

Towards the West by the surplus of land on 
two lines measuring ten metres and fifty four 
centimetres (10.54m) and ten metres and ninety 
one centimetres (10.91m) respectively.

Towards the North East by Portion No. 45 
(Serial No.45) of the plan mentioned below on 
three metres and fifty five centimetres (3.55m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018
The Honourable 

Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower
Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 491 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT 
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 

Mauritius a portion of land situate at L’Union 
(Saint Francois) as per title deed but in fact situate 
at Cap Malheureux, in the district of Riviere du 
Rempart for the public purpose of the construction 
of a bypass at Cap Malheureux.

Description

Portion No. 41 (Serial No. 41) [PIN: 
1317100363] of an extent of one hundred and 
seventy nine and twenty six hundredths square 
metres (179.26 m2) is excised from a portion 
of land of an original extent of six hundred and 
twelve square metres (612 m2) belonging to 
Mrs Ww Lutchmeeparsad BHOJOO (born 
Parmowtee BEETASUR) born on 27/09/1963 
holder of a national identity card bearing number 
B190141090075B as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 5865/17 and is bounded 
as follows:-

Towards the North East partly by Portion No. 
40 (Serial No. 40) of the plan mentioned below and 
partly by reserves of Mon Choisy-Cap Malheureux 
Road (Bl3) on fifteen metres and forty one 
centimetres (15.41m).

Towards the East by Mon Choisy - Cap 
Malheureux Road (Bl3) on ten metres and eighty 
six centimetres (10.86m).

Towards the South by the surplus of land 
on eleven metres and twenty one centimetres 
(11.21m).

Towards the West by the surplus of land on 
nineteen metres and eighty nine centimetres 
(19.89m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000388, 
drawn up by Mr Rajendra Kumar BABOOLALL, 
Land Surveyor on the 26/10/2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 



1074 The Mauritius Government Gazette

the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 26/02/2018
The Honourable 

Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

General Notice No. 492 of 2018

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM

In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 
Acquisition Act dated 16/04/2014 containing the 
description of a portion of land of the extent of 
110m2 [PIN 1741030165] being Portion No.6 
situate at Floreal in the district of Plaines Wilhems 
compulsorily acquired for the public purpose of the 
Mauritius Light Rapid Transit Project, published in 
the Government Gazette in its issues of 19/04/2014 
and 26/04/2014 under General Notices No.1015 
of 2014 and No. 1095 of 2014 respectively and 
transcribed in Volume TV 201406/001398 on 
24/06/2014, there shall be substituted the following 
words and figures:

“The said portion of land being Portion No.6 
of an extent of one hundred and ninety and sixty 
hundredths square metres (190.60m2) [PIN 
1741030165] is excised from a plot of land of 
an extent of three hundred and forty eight and 
twenty hundredths square metres (348.20m2) 
belonging to Mrs. Premila KASI born on 
14/10/1966, ID No. K1410663301660 married 
to Mr. Duljeet KOOLASH born on 28/12/1958, 
ID No. K2812580500427 as evidenced by a 
deed transcribed in Volume TV 2087/71 and is 
bounded as follows:

Towards the North by Old Railway Land on 
twenty one metres and ninety four centimetres 
(21.94m).

Towards the East by Portion No.5 on the plan 
mentioned below on seven metres and seventy' 
centimetres (7.70m).

Towards the South by the surplus of the 
property belonging to Mrs. Premila Kasi 
on twenty metres and fifty four centimetres 
(20.54m).

Towards the West by an access road three 
metres and sixty six centimetres (3.66m) wide 
on eleven metres and eighty nine centimetres 
(11.89m).”

for the following words and figures: “The said 
portion of land being PORTION No.6 of an 
extent of one hundred and ten square metres 
(110m2) [PIN 1741030165] is excised from a 
plot of land of an extent of three hundred and 
forty eight and twenty hundredths square 
metres (348.20m2) belonging to Mrs. PREMILA 
DULJEET KOOLASH as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume TV 2087/71 and is 
bounded as follows:

Towards the North by Ex-railway 
land along Swami Sivananda Avenue on 
two lines measuring thirteen metres and 
seventeen centimetres (13.17m) and eight 
metres and thirty nine centimetres (8.39m) 
respectively.

Towards the East by Portion No.5 on the plan 
mentioned below on three metres and ninety six 
centimetres (3.96m).

Towards the South by the surplus of 
property belonging to Mrs. Premila Duljeet 
on twenty metres and eighty two centimetres 
(20.82m).

Towards the West by an access road three 
metres and sixty six centimetres (3.66m) wide on 
six metres and fifty three centimetres (6.53m)”, 
wherever they appear.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastre Unit of the Ministry of 
Housing and Lands as ACQ/75/000424 drawn up 
by Mr. Zafrullah-bin-Ismet SOOKIA Government 
Land Surveyor on the twenty seventh day of 
February two thousand and eighteen.

The plan may be inspected by the public at 
the Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing 
and Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene during office 
hours.
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Date: 16/03/2018

The Honourable
Purmanund JHUGROO

Minister of Housing and Lands
Ebene Tower

Ebene

First Publication

General Notice No. 493 of 2018

MINISTRY OF SOCIAL SECURITY, NATIONAL 
SOLIDARITY,, AND ENVIRONMENT AND 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
(ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABLE 

DEVELOPMENT DIVISION)

NOTICE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION 
OF EIA REPORT

Notice is hereby given under Section 20 of 
the Environment Protection Act 2002 by the 
Department of Environment, Ministry of Social 
Security, National solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development (Environment 
and Sustainable Development Division) that an 
application for an EIA Licence has been submitted 
on 21 March 2018 under Section 18(1) of the Act 
for a scheduled undertaking and that the EIA report 
shall be opened for public inspection.

(a) The undertaking concerns the Proposed 
Residential Development under the 
Property Development Scheme (Jacaranda 
Luxury Villas) over a portion of land of 
272,949.20m2 by JIMEI INTERNATIONAL 
INVESTMENT LTD.

(b) The location of the proposed undertaking is at 
Balaclava ,in the district of Pamplemousses.

(c) The report may be inspected during normal 
office working hours (i.e. 08.45 to 12.00 hrs 
and 12.30 hrs to 16.00 hrs) at the Resource 
Centre of the Department of Environment, 
Ground Floor, Ken Lee Tower, Cnr. Barracks 
and St. Georges Streets, Port Louis and at the 
District Council of Pamplemousses.

The report may also be inspected on the 
Ministry’s website at the following address: 
http://environment, 20vmu.org.

(d) Public comments should be submitted in 
writing to the Director of Environment on 09 
April 2018 at latest. The envelope should be 
marked “EIA comments”, on the top left hand 
comer and addressed to:

The EIA Desk
Department of Environment
Ministry of Social Security, National 
Solidarity, and Environment and 
Sustainable Development
(Environment and Sustainable 
Development Division)
5th Floor, Ken Lee Tower
Cnr. Barracks and St. Georges Streets 
Port Louis

Date: 21 March 2018

Department of Environment 
Ministry of Social Security,

National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development

First Publication

General Notice No. 494 of 2018

MINISTRY OF SOCIAL SECURITY, NATIONAL 
SOLIDARITY,, AND ENVIRONMENT AND 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
(ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABLE 

DEVELOPMENT DIVISION)

NOTICE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION 
OF EIA REPORT

Notice is hereby given under Section 20 of 
the Environment Protection Act 2002 by the 
Department of Environment, Ministry of Social 
Security, National solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development (Environment 
and Sustainable Development Division) that an 
application for an EIA Licence has been submitted 
on 20 March 2018 under Section 18(1) of the Act 
for a scheduled undertaking and that the EIA report 
shall be opened for public inspection.

(a) The undertaking concerns the Proposed 
Residential Development Project over a 
portion of land of 28,544m2 by Plaisance 
Estate Ltd.

(b) The location of the proposed undertaking is at 
Plaisance ,in the district of Grand Port.

http://environment,_20vmu.org
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(c) The report may be inspected during normal 
office working hours (i.e. 08.45 to 12.00 hrs 
and 12.30 hrs to 16.00 hrs) at the Resource 
Centre of the Department of Environment, 
Ground Floor, Ken Lee Tower, Cnr. Barracks 
and St. Georges Streets, Port Louis and at the 
District Council of Grand Port.

The report may also be inspected on the 
Ministry’s website at the following address: 
httn://en vironment. sovmu. ors.

(d) Public comments should be submitted in 
writing to the Director of Environment on 09 
Anril 2018 at latest. The envelope should be 
marked “EIA comments”, on the top left hand 
corner and addressed to:

The EIA Desk
Department of Environment
Ministry of Social Security, National 
Solidarity, and Environment and 
Sustainable Development 
(Environment and Sustainable 
Development Division) 
5th Floor, Ken Lee Tower
Cnr. Barracks and St. Georges Streets 
Port Louis

Date: 21 March 2018

Department of Environment 
Ministry of Social Security, 

National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development

General Notice No. 495 of 2018

THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF PAMPLEMOUSSES

DECLARATION OF VACANCY

Under the provision of Section 39(1) of the 
Local Government Act 2011,1 hereby declare the 
office of Mr. Joseph Richard Perrine, elected 
member of The Village Council of Terre Rouge 
to be vacant.

Mr. Joseph Richard Perrine has become 
disqualified as Councillor by virtue of Section 
38(b) of the Local Government Act 2011.

This notice of declaration of vacancy is made 
pursuant to Section 39(2) of the Local Government 
Act 2011.

R. Gangadeen 
Chief Executive 

District Council Office 
2 February 2018

General Notice No. 496 of 2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
ST ANDREW’S COLLEGE

Foundation for the year 2018

In accordance with Section 5(2) of the 
St Andrew’s College Foundation Act 1950, the 
Board of Trustees of the St Andrew’s College 
Foundation has been constituted for the year 2018 
as follows:

(i) Hon. Ivan Collendavelloo;

(ii) Mr John Leung Yinko;

(iii) Mr Ricaud Aukbur;

(iv) The Venerable Stenio Andre;

(v) Mrs Catherine Jangeerkhan; and

(vi) Mr Premchand Saddul

Dated this 14th day of March 2018.

Ministry of Education and 
Human Resources, 

Tertiary Education and 
Scientific Research

MITD House 
Phoenix

General Notice No. 497 of 2018

PROFESSIONAL QUANTITY SURVEYORS’ COUNCIL

LIST OF PROFESSIONAL QUANTITY 
SURVEYORS FOR THE YEAR 2018

Name .SKV .■> ■
Reg. No

Abeeluck Sanjeev Kumar 061

Awotar Nilcant 054

Bauhal Mohammad Anas 064

Beetul Marvind 016
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Name Reg. No

Bhagloo Rooplall 015

Bhoosee-Nisa Bibi Sairah> 004

Bhurtun Jugmohun 020

Boodhoo Sailash Kumar 042

Burman Michael Robert 028

Chadee Shyamsoondur 031

Chekhori Gowtamsingh 022

Chonee Mohammad Riad 062

Chundoo Zeinoule Ahbedine Oil

Chuttur Kissoonlall 047

Coocaram Seewajee 068

Coowar Shakeel Mahmood 032

Cridlan Mark Colin 058

Dabee Direshsingh 072

Dabeesingh Dahramsingh 051

Deepchand Satyen 038

Dhonye Akhtar Parvez 065

Domun Anwar 048

Dooreemeah Abdool Cader 
Deelanee

009

Dumazel Johnny Thierry 
Dieudonne

012

Etwaro Kamal 043

Foondun Muhammad Sameer 070

Goburdhun Vivakanundsing 044

Gopaul Ajay Lutchmeesing 057

Gungah-Burthun Sushma 005

Gunput Jeetendra 060

Hanoomanjee Naila Kishani 071

Hay Douglas Robert 033

Henry Jean Robert 069

Hooloomann Navindranath 025

Hooloomann Vanita 056

Hurhangee Jovind 066

Jeetab Vikramaditya Chakravarty 021

Name Reg. No

Juddoo Prem Anand Kumarsingh 059

Koo Hing Cheun Koo Choong
Emmanuel Flore

023

Lee Luen Len Tony 049

Marrierd’Unienville Marie Joseph
Vincent

034

Meenowa Beeneshree Juanita 006

Mohabeer Vikram
Chandrashekarsingh

027

Mooroogan Normanda 003

Nabeemeeah Muhammad Abdallah
Yusuf

040

Naggea Maheswamath Yestwantrao 039

Nemchand Rouvin 036

Nuckcheddy Sanjit Kumar 037

Nuseeb Mohammad Jeelani 026

Ong Seng Louis Michel 013

Onsiong Man Shung 053

Oogarah Gyaneswar 010

Padaruth Niraj Keshav 002

Panchoo Yanish 073

Pondor Mohammad Imraan 024

Pratap Vikash 008

Prayag Pravesh 035

Ragoo Santaram 001

Rajcoomarsing Manish 041

Ramdyal Sanjay Kumar 007

Ramjutun Bhopendra 014

Rampersand Alvin 030

Ramsoondur Shashikant 019

Sadeo Veerprakash 046

Salehmohamed Junaid Haroon 067

Scetaram Ramdoolar Vinay Singh 018

Sobrun Meelah 045

Somah Chandrasen 029

Sonah Geerish 017
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Name Reg. No

Subramanien Ian Joseph 050

Sumputh Shakeel 055

Thannoo Rajendra 052

Thomson Serge Vivian Nicolas 063

FOREIGNERS

Sheard Nicolas Lieben Greville F02

Bratton Lee Stephen F04

Professional Quantity Surveyors’ Council 
Ministry of Public Infrastructure 

and Land Transport 
(Public Infrastructure Division)

General Notice No. 498 of 2018

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 33 OF THE 
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT 2005

In accordance with Section 33 of the 
Occupational Safety and Health Act 2005, 
Mr. Devdass GUJADHUR has been registered 
as Machinery Inspector for the examination of 
“Air Receivers” and “Vehicles Lifts”.

Date: 16 March 2018.

Ministry of Labour, Industrial Relations, 
Employment and Training

General Notice No. 499 of 2018

INDEPENDENT COMMISSION AGAINST CORRUPTION 
(ICAC)

(established under s.19(1) of PoCA2002 as 
subsequently amended)

NOTICE PUBLISHED UNDER SECTION 56(3)(a) 
OF THE PREVENTION OF CORRUPTION ACT 2002 

(PoCA 2002)
Notice is hereby given that, on an application 

made by the Independent Commission Against 
Corruption (ICAC), an Order has been made on 
28th February 2018 by the Honourable Judge at 
Chambers, as follows:-

(a) attaching in the hands of Afrasia Bank 
Ltd, all money and other property due or 

owing or belonging to or held on behalf 
of Edmore Andy Chijena, a pastor of 
Christ Embassy Church and holder of 
Zimbabwean passport No CN915018;

(b) requiring the said bank, within 48 hours of 
service of the Order, to declare in writing 
to the Applicant, the nature and source of 
all moneys and other property so attached;

(c) prohibiting the said bank from 
transferring, pledging or otherwise 
disposing of any money or other property 
so attached, except by an Order of the 
Honourable Judge upon good cause shown 
to his/her satisfaction; and

(d) declaring that any period of time during 
which the said Edmore Andy Chijena 
is absent from Mauritius, shall not be 
reckoned as part of any period of validity 
of the Attachment Order.

The said Order has been filed in the Registry of 
the Supreme Court of Mauritius.

The attention of all banks, financial institutions, 
cash dealers and any other person who may hold 
or be vested with property belonging to or held on 
behalf of the abovenamed person, is hereby drawn 
to the above Order so that they may take note 
thereof and govern themselves accordingly.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Le Reduit, this 14th day of March, 
2018.

Sultan SOHAWON 
of ICAC Headquarters, 
Reduit Triangle, Moka 

Applicant’s Attorney

General Notice No. 500 of 2018

REGISTRATION OF A TRADE UNION

Notice is hereby given under Section 5(5) of the 
Employment Relations Act that the “Solidarity 
Staff Union of FAREI”, a trade union whose 
membership is open to “any person of either sex who 
is employed by the Food and Agricultural Research and 
Extension Institute on a permanent or contractual 
basis as - Accountant, Accounts Clerk, Accounts 
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Officer/Senior Accounts Officer, Administrative 
Manager, Agricultural Coordinator, Agricultural 
Engineer/Senior Agricultural Engineer, Assistant 
Director, Assistant Procurement and Supply Officer, 
Assistant Research Scientist, Biometrician/Senior 
Biometrician, Business Development Officer, Business 
Development Manager, Clerk/Senior Clerk, Clerk/ 
Word Processing Operator, Correspondence Clerk/ 
Word Processing Operator, Confidential Secretary, 
Data Processing Assistant, Economist/Senior 
Economist, Extension Assistant, .Extension Officer/ 
Senior Extension Officer, Field Support Assistant, 
Higher Executive Officer, Human Resource Officer, 
Human Resource Officer/ Senior Human Resource 
Officer, Internal Control Officer/Senior Internal 
Control Officer, Internal Auditor/Senior Internal 
Auditor, Laboratory and Nursery Manager, Librarian, 
Library Clerk, Laboratory Technician, Maintenance 
Officer, Management Support Officer, Manager FSC, 
Manager Finance, Office Management Assistant, 
Office Superintendent, Principal Agricultural 
Engineer, Principal Biometrician, Principal Extension 
Assistant, Principal Extension Officer, Principal 
Research Assistant, Principal Research Scientist, 
Procurement and Supply Officer /Senior Procurement 
and Supply Officer, Research Assistant, Research 
Scientist/Senior Research Scientist, Safety and Health 
Officer/Senior Safety and Health Officer, Senior Clerk, 
Senior Extension Assistant, Senior Extension Officer 
(Personal), Senior Technical Assistant, Senior Research 
Assistant, Station/Laboratory Manager, Stores Officer, 
Stores Superintendent, Telephonist/Receptionist, 
Transport Organiser, Word Processing Operator 
provided that he/she is not a member of another trade 
union in the enterprise where he is employed or his 
bargaining unit” has been registered by me with 
registration number TU 773 on 08 March 2018 and 
the address of its registered office is at Morcellement 
MTMD, Highlands, Phoenix.

Any other registered trade union aggrieved by my 
decision to register the “Solidarity Staff Union of 
FAREI” may, under section 5(8) of the said Act, 
within 21 days of the publication of this notice in the 
Gazette appeal against the decision to the Employment 
Relations Tribunal.

Dated: 08 March 2018

V. Sanasy 
Registrar of Associations

General Notice No. 501 of 2018

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney General is pleased to authorise Marie 
Joelle CAPRICE to change her surname CAPRICE 
into that of PE so that in the future she shall bear 
the names and surname of Marie Joelle PE.

Date: 21st February 2018.
D. Sewpal (Mrs) 

Ag. Senior State Counsel

General Notice No. 502 of 2018

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney General is pleased to authorise Mr and 
Mrs Sivalingum TEEROOVENGADUM to 
change the name of their minor son Tarunen into 
those of Josh Tarunen so that in the future he shall 
bear the names and surname of Josh Tarunen 
TEEROOVENGADUM.

Date: 23/02/2018.
A. Daby (Mrs) 
State Counsel

General Notice No. 503 of 2018

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney General is pleased to authorise 
Chohunlall DEENOO to change his name 
Chohunlall into that of Akash so that in future 
he shall bear the name and surname of Akash 
DEENOO.

Date: 21 February 2018.

S. Hajee Abdoula (Mrs) 
State Counsel

General Notice No. 504 of 2018

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney General is pleased to authorise 
Abdool Waasim CAULEECHURN to change 
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his names Abdool Waasim into that of Avi so that 
in future he shall bear the names and surname of 
Avi CAULEECHURN.

Date: 26/02/2018.
H. V. Adeen 

State Counsel 

bear the names and surname of Bibi Khadiijah 
SHEIK HEERAH .

Date: 19/02/2018.

S. Gigabhoy-Sauhoboa (Mrs) 
State Counsel

General Notice No. 505 of 2018

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney General is pleased to authorise Madhvi 
CURPEN to change her name and surname 
Madhvi CURPEN into those of Bibi Mariam 
Madinah CASSIM so that in the future she shall 
bear the names and surname of Bibi Mariam 
Madinah CASSIM.

Date: 26th February 2018.
N. A. Caunhye 
State Counsel

General Notice No. 506 of 2018

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney General is pleased to authorise Anil 
Kumar LUFFUR to change his surname 
LUFFUR into that of MANNICK so that in 
future he shall bear the names and surname of Anil 
Kumar MANNICK.

Date: 14 December 2017.
K. Davay (Ms) 
State Counsel

General Notice No. 507 of 2018

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney General is pleased to authorise Bibi 
Jasbeer Goolab Shah LAROULETTE to change 
her names and surname Bibi Jasbeer Goolab Shah 
LAROULETTE into those of Bibi Khadiijah 
SHEIK HEERAH so that in the future she shall

General Notice No. 508 of 2018

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney General is pleased to authorise Marie 
Noel LAGAMELLE to change his surname 
LAGAMELLE into that of JEANNETON so that 
in future he shall bear the names and surname of 
Marie Noel JEANNETON.

Date: 28th February 2018.

S. Sohawon-Abdulatiff (Mrs) 
State Counsel

General Notice No. 509 of 2018

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney General is pleased to authorise 
Devaneyan MANIKKAM to change his surname 
MANIKKAM into that of MOODELLY so that 
in future he shall bear the name and surname of 
Devaneyan MOODELLY.

Date: 27/02/2018.

S. Gigabhoy-Sauhoboa (Mrs) 
State Counsel

General Notice No. 510 of 2018

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney General is pleased to authorise Mr and 
Mrs Nilesh Kumar RAMYEAD to change the 
names of their minor son Rudhir Sharma into 
those of Rudhransh Sharma so that in the future 
he shall bear the names and surname of Rudhransh 
Sharma RAMYEAD .

Date: 26th February 2018.
N. Pern (Ms) 

State Counsel
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General Notice No. 511 of 2018

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney General is pleased to authorise Mr Jean 
Daniel Emilien AGATHE and Mrs Marie Peggy 
KEATING PAUL to change the names of their 
minor son Josua Emilien into those of Joshua 
Emilien so that in the future he shall bear the names 
and surname of Joshua Emilien AGATHE.

Date: 02 March 2018.
R. Chineah 

State Counsel

General Notice No. 512 of 2018

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney General is pleased to authorise Ashvin 
LODEECHUN to change his name Ashvin into 
those of Mohammad Parwez so that in future he 
shall bear the names and surname of Mohammad 
Parwez LODEECHUN.

Date: 15 February 2018.

A. Rohamally 
State Counsel

General Notice No. 513 of 2018

MINISTRY OF SOCIAL SECURITY, NATIONAL SOLIDARITY, AND ENVIRONMENT 
AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT (ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT DIVISION)

NOTICE UNDER THE ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION ACT

NOTICE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION OF DECISION ON EIA APPLICATION

Notice is hereby given under Section 23(5) of the Environment Protection Act 2002 that the Minister of 
Social Security, National Solidarity, and Environment and Sustainable Development will proceed with the 
following undertakings :

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT SITE

Proposed Coastal Protection, Landscaping & Infrastructure Works 
at Residence La Chaux Site

Residence La Chaux

A copy of the above List of Conditions is available for inspection during normal working hours 
(i.e 08:45 to 12:00 hrs and 12:30 to 16.00 hrs) at the Resource Centre of the Department of Environment, 
Ground Floor, Ken Lee Tower, Cnr Barracks & St Georges Streets, Port Louis.

The conditions attached to the EIA Licences may be inspected at this Ministry’s website on the following 
address: http://environment.sovmu.ors

16 March 2018
Director of Environment 

Department of Environment 
Ministry of Social Security, National Solidarity, 
and Environment and Sustainable Development 

(Environment and Sustainable Development Division)

http://environment.sovmu.ors
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General Notice No. 514 of 2018

MINISTRY OF SOCIAL SECURITY, NATIONAL SOLIDARITY, AND ENVIRONMENT 
AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT (ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT DIVISION)

NOTICE UNDER THE ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION ACT

NOTICE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION OF DECISION ON EIA APPLICATION

Notice is hereby given under Section 23(5) of the Environment Protection Act 2002 that the Minister 
of Social Security, National Solidarity, and Environment and Sustainable Development has approved the 
issue of EIA Licences for the following undertakings :

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT SITE PROPONENT DATE OF EIA 
LICENCE

Proposed Setting Up of a Five 
Star Hotel of 198 bedrooms on 
a plot of state land of an extent 
of 66,446.90m2

Bel Ombre in the 
district of Savanne

KPMM (Mauritius) Ltd 13 March 2018

Proposed Construction of 59 
Luxury Villas under PDS over 
a plot of land of extent 14Ha 
5,367.03m2

Pointe de Flacq in the 
district of Flacq

One & Only Villas at St 
Geran Ltd

13 March 2018

Proposed Setting Up of a 
15MW Photovoltaic Solar 
Farm

Henrietta in the 
district of Plaine 
Wilhems

Akuo Energy (MTIUS) 
Ltd

13 March 2018

Proposed Combined Cycle 
Gas Turbine Power Plant on a 
plot of land of extent 2Ha

Chaussee Tromelin, 
Fort George in the 
district of Port Louis

Central Electricity Board 13 March 2018

A copy of the above EIA Licence is available for inspection during normal working hours (i.e 08:45 to 
12:00 hrs and 12:30 to 16.00 hrs) at the Resource Centre of the Department of Environment, Ground Floor, 
Ken Lee Tower, Cnr Barracks & St Georges Streets, Port Louis.

The conditions attached to the EIA Licences may be inspected at this Ministry’s website on the following 
address: littp://environment.eovmu.ore

16 March 2018

Director of Environment 
Department of Environment 

Ministry of Social Security, National Solidarity, 
and Environment and Sustainable Development 

(Environment and Sustainable Development Division)
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General Notice No. 515 of 2018

NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY

Notice is hereby given that the following applications have been received by the Authority and the 

Authority will shortly hear the said applications.

APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC ‘A’ CARRIER’S LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF 
APPLICANT

148 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18483 Roadlink Ltd

149 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18484 Roadlink Ltd

150 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18485 DHOORUNDHUR 
Aboo Showallay

151 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18486 ANNUT
Nawsheen Bibi

152 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18487 Velogic Haulage 
Services Ltd

153 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18488 Velogic Haulage 
Services Ltd

154 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18489 Velogic Haulage 
Services Ltd

VEHICLE 
NUMBER & 
MAXIMUM 

GROSS 
WEIGHT

BASE OF 
OPERATION

GOODS 
TO BE 

CARRIED

NYP 
20000Kg 

GV

Branch Road, 
Bon Accueil

General 
Goods

NYP 
20000Kg 

GV

Branch Road, 
Bon Accueil

General 
Goods

NYP
17000Kg 

GV

Eidgah Street, 
Belle Vue, 

Chemin-Grenier

General 
Goods

NYP Crimea Street, General
5700Kg Vallee Pitot, Goods +

GV Port Louis Waste

NYP 
8000Kg 

GV

Pailles, Petroleum
Les Pailles Products

NYP
8000Kg Pailles, 

Les Pailles

General 
Goods + 

Petroleum
GV Products

NYP
8000Kg 

GV

Pailles, 
Les Pailles

Petroleum 
Products
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155

156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

S.N REF NO NAME OF 
APPLICANT

VEHICLE 
NUMBER & 
MAXIMUM 

GROSS 
WEIGHT

BASE OF 
OPERATION

GOODS 
TO BE 

CARRIED

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18490 Velogic Haulage
Services Ltd

NYP 
8000Kg 

GV

Pailles,
Les Pailles

Petroleum 
Products

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18491

Heirs SAHABOOLEEA
Abdool Rafiff 
represented by

Mr SAHABOOLEEA 
Mohammad Reaz

BM483
9810Kg

GV

Ducray Road, 
Notre Dame

General
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18492 SOOKUN
Kaviraj

NYP 
10400Kg 

GV

Trou Aux Biches 
Road, 
Triolet

General
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18493 MUNGUL
Revindrasingh

1043ZX04
32000Kg 

GV

Tamil Temple 
Road, 

Goodlands

General
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18494 Smart Move Ltd
NYP 

40000Kg 
GV

Thomy D'Arifat 
Street, 

Curepipe

General
Goods +
Waste

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18495 BABET
Marie Christelle Isabelle

NYP 
4955Kg 

GV

Avenue Maillard, 
Roche Brunes

General 
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18496
NAUZEER

Muhammad Ashraf
Ahmed

NYP 
7000Kg 

GV

Cardinal 2, 
Pailles

General
Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18497 EMAMDHULLY 
Sameer

NYP 
23175Kg 
Trailer

Camp Hosseny
Road,Highlands, 

Phoenix

General 
Goods + 

Containers

NTA/PUB/A/LC/18498 RAMJAHN
Moogleeazam

NYP
24390Kg 

GV

Avenue de Petrel,
Medine Camp de

Masque

General
Goods
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NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

VEHICLE

S.N REF NO NAME OF 
APPLICANT

NUMBER & 
MAXIMUM 

GROSS 
WEIGHT

BASE OF 
OPERATION

GOODS 
TO BE 

CARRIED

164 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18499 KHOORDY
Pradip

3529AG09 
7000Kg 

GV

School Road, 
Dagotiere

General
Goods

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF PUBLIC SERVICE VEHICLE (TAXI) 
LICENCE

to be represented by
Mrs. Leelawtee BOODHUN

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT VEHICLE 
NUMBER

BASE OF OPERATION

16 29747/C From: (Late) Dowlutramsingh GUDDOY

To: Heirs Dowlutramsingh GUDDOY 
to be represented by 
Mrs. Khemwantee GUDDOY

Taxi Car
1984MR13

Pereybere

17 17256/C From: Heirs Fareed TEGALLY 
Represented by
Mrs. Fadeea TEGALLY

To: Sajal IBRAHIM

Taxi Car
3045ZY10

27, Hospital Street, 
Stanley, Rose Hill

18 29143/C From: APPADOO Ramoty

To: SUNGUM Narain

Taxi Car
AS1183

Olivia

19 39986/C From: (Late) Teeluckdharry 
JUDHOONUNNEN

To: Chitanand JUDHOONUNNEN

Taxi Car
4017ZK98

Bon Accueil

20 39118/C From: (Late) Indradeo BOODHUN

To: Heirs Indradeo BOODHUN

Taxi Car
1540ZZ10

Pavilion, Cap Malheureux
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NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT VEHICLE 
NUMBER

BASE OF OPERATION

21 5434/C From: (Late) Veerasamy POTHIAH

To: Heirs Veerasamy POTHIAH 
to be represented by 
Mrs. Lachmi POTHIAH

Taxi Car
6604SP16

La Pirogue Hotel

To: Lutchmeekumar BANARSEE

22 3868/1/C From: Heirs LAN HING WAI Lew Kiong 
Foung Represented by 
Mrs. LAN HING WAI Ah-Mouye

To: LAN HING WAI Mario Law Hyew 
Chin

Taxi Car
3574MY15

SSR International Airport

23 3083/C From: Mamode BHUGELOO

To: Nazim Uddin BHUGELOO

Taxi Car
3857ZL97

Place Margeot, Rose Hill

24 15943//C From: Heirs Abdool Hamid GOOMANY 
Represented by
Mrs. Roukhian Bibi Sayed Ibrahim 
GOOMANY

To: Mohamad Nadeem JUMON

Taxi Car
5473ZV07

Plaine Verte Center

25 43986/C From: Narainduth MANDHUB

To: Jean Christophe JOSEPH

Taxi Car
57JN11

Ste Croix

26 26120/C From: Heirs Banymadhoo JEETOO 
Represented by
Mrs. Suttee Savitree JEETOO

To: Nishal Singh KALIDIN

Taxi Car
3419ZY09

Pamplemousses

27 26419/C From: Heirs Benyparsad BANARSEE 
Represented by
Mrs. Santanee BANARSEE

Taxi Car
1839ZX09

Lallmatie



24 March 2018 1087

NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT

28 41933/C From: (Late) Purmanand Singh
RAMSEWOCK

VEHICLE BASE OF OPERATION 
NUMBER

Taxi Car La Rampe, Le Moirt, 
5200 Mare D’Albert

(Ex. 2951AP16)
To: Heirs Purmanand Singh 

RAMSEWOCK 
to be represented by 
Mr. Trivedsingh RAMSEWOCK

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF PUBLIC SERVICE VEHICLE 
(CONTRACT CAR) LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT VEHICLE 
NUMBER BASE OF OPERATION

9 19661/71/D From: Beach Car Ltd 10 Cars From: CTR Lane, Mesnil
19661/70/D 7708OC12
19661/69/D To: Barin Car Rental Ltd 7718OC12 To: Reduit Road, C/o Shell
19661/72/D 7728OC12 Filling Station, Ebene
19661/74/D 7768OC12
19661/5/D 8918NV12

19661/76/D 7748DC11
19661/68/D 248JN13
19661/50/D 6938SP12
19661/67/D 6918SP12

6928SP12

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF PUBLIC SERVICE VEHICLE 
(CONTRACT BUS) LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT
VEHICLE
NUMBER BASE OF OPERATION

5 30820/E From: Mrs. Revtee LULITH 4645OC04 From: Canal Road, St Julien D’Hotman
29 Seater

To: Canal Road, St Julien D’Hotman
To: DECOINT LTD

To: VI & VI EXPRESS LTD

6 30073/E From: Mr. Rameswar LORI V1081 From: Allee Brillant, Vacoas
15 Seater

To: Allee Brillant, Vacoas
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NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF ROAD SERVICE LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT ITINERARY

NTA 20/63/4691 From: Soonilduth MUNNEE

To: Highway Fighter Ltd

In respect of 66 seater bus 3425JL06 
operating along route 15

4

5 NTA 20/63/6059 From: Darma MAHADEA

To: Sajesh Kumar KOWLESSUR

In respect of 54 seater bus 2922SP02 
operating along route 15 & 15A

6 NTA 20/63/6382 From: Vickram RAMDONEE

To: JAY Transport Ltd

In respect of 69 seater bus 
1797MY01 operating along route 9, 
9A, 90 & 252

APPLICATION FOR VARIATION OF ROUTE OF ROAD SERVICE LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT ITINERARY

NTA 20/63/6254 Road Warrior Co Ltd From: Route 66/66A7

To: Route 150

In respect of bus AH487
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NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

Applications for Public Service Vehicle (Taxi) License to operate from 
Intercontinental Mauritian Resort, Balaclava

S.N Name
1. Prem JEETOO
2. Devina RAMESSUR
3. Indirene RAMSAMY
4. Khaleed AMEERUN
5. Bassisty GOBURDHUN
6. Louis Patrick John SHAM
7. Abdol LIAKUTALLY
8. Razcoomar BACHONEE
9. Vecvekanand LOUNG
10. Bhedendrakumar BENIDIN
11. Sassun RAGOOBAR
12. Vijay MUTTUR
13. Bhai AsrafPEERBOCUS
14. Navin SEEWOOLOLL
15. Sarvan Kumar SUNGKUR
16. Rakesh HAURADHUN
17. Bhaloopratab JOGEEA
18. Rajeshkumar RAMTOHUL
19. Abdool Siddick BAHADOOR
20. Ranjit KOOBARAWA
21. Luc Alain ROUSSETY
22. Vareniyam Sharma SUNGKUR
23. Bhardwaz UNUTH
24. Paramah PALLANY
25. Dhirendra AUMEER
26. Mario Michel NELSON
27. Dilshad SUDOOLLAH
28. Mohammad Muammar Hadiy NUNHUCK
29. Dinesh CHUTURDHAREE
30. Tarkeshwomath AUMEER
31. Prithiraj GUNGAH
32. Bruno Linlay OLIVA
33. Amalsingh AMOROO
34. Cassam BAHADOOR
35. Omi Kumar DEERPAUL
36. Nuvin CANHEA
37. Deoprakashsing RAMDOWAR
38. Pazanee PARIANEN
39. Soobhasingh GOOLJAR
40. Namnarain JEKARAHJEE
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NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

Any person legally entitled to do so may set out his objection/s or other representation/s together 
with his name and address and must give the reasons thereof in writing so that these may reach 
the Secretary to the Board, National Transport Authority, MSI Building, Royal Road, Cassis, 
Port Louis not later than on the seventh day of publication of this notice, in the Government 
Gazette. Any objection that reaches the Secretary to the Board after the prescribed time limit will 
not be entertained.

MSI Building
Les Cassis 
Port Louis
21 March 2018
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General Notice No. 516 of 2018

TRADEMARK NOTICES

Data Identification Codes

The data identification codes appearing in the tables below are WIPO standards and are known as 
Internationally recognised Numbers for the Identification of Data (INID) Codes.

NID Codes For Marks

Code Interpretation Code Interpretation Code Interpretation
(310) Application (151) Registration Date (Hl) Registration Number

Number
(511) Nice Classification (730) Applicant’s Name & Address

(320) Filing Date
(540) Description of the (740) Representative’s Name &

(330) Priority Data Mark Address

PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002
(Regulation 38)

Notice is hereby given that the following marks have been accepted under Section 38 of the Patents, Industrial 
Design &Trademarks Act 2002:-

(310) 26260/2017 (320) 30/11/2017
(730) The Glenallachie Distillers Co Limited

Glenallachie Distillery, Glenallachie, Aberlour, 
Banffshire, AB38 9LR, United Kingdom 

(740) Mary Anne Philips, Attorney at Law
Etude Philips International Ltd
Room 310, St James Court, St Denis Street, 
Port-Louis

(511) (33)

<M” WHITE HEATHER

(310) MU/M/2018/26679 (320) 14/02/2018
(730) ROYAL CAR RENTAL LTD
(730) Prudent Lane, Sadally Road,

Vacoas, Republic of Mauritius
(511) 35 and 39
(540) ROYAL CAR RENTAL & Logo

12 ROYAL
CAR RENTAL

(310) MU/M/2018/26681 (320) 15/02/2018
(730) Catherine ISAMBOURG
(730) BP 20, Royal Road, Tamarin,

Republic of Mauritius
(511) 14
(540) FILAO - Bijoux des ties (and logo)

bijoux ck ik

(310) 26259/2017 (320) 30/11/2017
(730) The Glenallachie Distillers Co Limited

Glenallachie Distillery, Glenallachie, Aberlour, 
Banffshire, AB38 9LR, United Kingdom 

(740) Mary Anne Philips, Attorney at Law
Etude Philips International Ltd
Room 310, St James Court, St Denis Street, 
Port-Louis

(511) (33) 

<540) GLENALLACHIE
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PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 — continued

(310) MU/M/2018/26620 (320) 06/02/2018 
(730) Joint Aid Management International Ltd 
(730) Les Cascades, Edith Cavell Street,

1116-07 Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius
(740) Mary Anne Philips, Attorney at Law 

Etude Philips International Ltd, 
Suite 310, St James Court, 
St Denis Street, Port-Louis

(511) 36 and 41
(540) Africa Squiggle Logo

(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

26365/2017 (320) 15/12/2017
CHEZBIZ TRADING (Pty) LTD
No 4 Chaplin Road, Chaplin Comer, Illovo, 
Gauteng 2196, South Africa
Eversheds (Mauritius) Ltd
Suite 310, 3rd Floor, Barkly Wharf, 
Le Caudan Waterfront, Port Louis 
(41 and 43)
HARBOUR HOUSE RESTAURANT (and 
logo)

(310) 26366/2017 (320) 15/12/2017
(730) CHEZBIZ TRADING (Pty) LTD

No 4 Chaplin Road, Chaplin Comer, Illovo, 
Gauteng 2196, South Africa

(740) Eversheds (Mauritius) Ltd
Suite 310, 3rd Floor, Barkly Wharf, 
Le Caudan Waterfront, Port Louis

(511) (41 and 43)
(540) TIGER'S MILK KITCHEN/BAR (and 

logo)

TIGER'S MILK
KITCHEN/BAR

(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

26367/2017 (320) 15/12/2017
CHEZBIZ TRADING (Pty) LTD
No 4 Chaplin Road, Chaplin Comer, Illovo, 
Gauteng 2196, South Africa
Eversheds (Mauritius) Ltd
Suite 310, 3rd Floor, Barkly Wharf,
Le Caudan Waterfront, Port Louis
(41 and 43)
LA PARADA BAR DE TAPAS (and logo)

BAR DE TAPAS

LA PARADA

(310) 26572/2018 (320) 29/01/2018
(730) WORLDWIDE DIAMOND CORPORATION 

LIMITED
Wellington, HP Tower 171 Featherston Street, 
Wellington, 6011, New Zealand

(740) Me Vashish Bhugoo, Attomey-at-Law 
8th Floor, Astor Court, Block B, 
Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) (36)

50 DIAMOND
BULLION

(310) 26413/2017 (320) 22/12/2017
(730) COMPAGNIE DES SALINS DU MIDI ET 

DES SALINES DE L'EST
92-98 BOULEVARD VICTOR HUGO, 92115, 
CLICHY CEDEX, France

(740) Mary Anne Philips, Attomey-at-Law 
Etude Philips International Ltd, Suite 310, 
St James Court, St Denis Street, Port-Louis

(511) (30)

(54” LABALEINE
ESSENTIEL
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PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 — continued

(310) 26544/2018 (320) 24/01/2018
(330) 017096066 11/08/2017 EU
(730) Mabanaft GmbH & Co. KG, a German 

company
Koreastrasse 7, 20459 Hamburg, Germany 

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (1,4 and 39)
(540) BOMIN (word and device) in Colour

B O M 1IM

(310) 26368/2017 ■ (320) 15/12/2017
(730) CHEZBIZ TRADING (Pty) LTD

No 4 Chaplin Road, Chaplin Corner, Illovo, 
Gauteng 2196, South Africa 

(740) Eversheds (Mauritius) Ltd
Suite 310, 3rd Floor, Barkly Wharf, 
Le Caudan Waterfront, Port Louis 

(511) (41 and 43)
(540) GRAND (Africa Cafe & Beach) (and logo)

\ )

(}

GRAND

(310) 26607/2018 (320) 02/02/2018
(730) Bahlsen GmbH & Co. KG

Podbielskistrasse 11, 30163 Hannover 
2Germany

(740) Mr Pravin BARTHIA, Trademark Agent 
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port-Louis

(511) (29, 30 and 41)

5 0) BAHLSEN

(310) 26624/2018 (320) 06/02/2018
(730) WORLDWIDE DIAMOND CORPORATION 

LIMITED
Wellington, HP Tower, 171 Featherston Street, 
Wellington, 6011, New Zealand

(740) Me. Vashish BHUGOO, Attorney at Law 
8th Floor, Astor Court, Block B, 
Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(5H) (36)

5 0 DIAMOND COIN
(310) 26634/2018 (320) 08/02/2018
(730) WORLDWIDE DIAMOND CORPORATION 

LIMITED
Wellington, HP Tower, 171 Featherston Street, 
Wellington, 6011, New Zealand

(740) Me Vashish BHUGOO, Attorney-at-Law 
8th Floor, Astor Court, Block B, 
Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) (36)

540 KINGDOM
SWITCH

(310) 26653/2018 (320) 09/02/2018
(330) 302017000135915 27/11/2017 IT
(730) COMDATA S.p.A, a company organised and 

existing under the Laws of Italy
Via Sebastiano Caboto, 1, CORSICO (Milano), 
Italy

(740) Etude Guy Rivalland, Attorneys at Law
7th Floor, Chancery House, Lislet Geof&oy 
Street, Port Louis

(511) (35, 38,41 and 42)
(540) COMDATA GROUP IMPROVING YOUR 

CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE figurative 
with colours (and logo)

Comdata Group
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(310) 26661/2018 (320) 09/02/2018
(730) SBS WATER SYSTEMS (PTY) LTD

Unit 6 Surprise Park, 11 Surprise Road, 
Maxmead, 3610 South Africa

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent 
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port-Louis

(511) (6 and 11)

” SBS

(310) 26662/2018 (320) 09/02/2018
(730) SBS WATER SYSTEMS (PTY) LTD

Unit 6 Surprise Park, 11 Surprise Road, 
Maxmead 3610 South Africa

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent 
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port-Louis

(511) (6 and 11)
(540) SBS & Device

(310) 26663/2018 (320) 09/02/2018
(730) SBS WATER SYSTEMS (PTY) LTD

Unit 6 Surprise Park, 11 Surprise Road, 
Maxmead 3610, South Africa

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent 
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port-Louis

(511) (6 and 11)
(540) SBS TANKS Device

^S>Tanks

(310) 26739/2018 (320) 26/02/2018
(730) NANTONG MODERN SPORTING

INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD.
Building 1, No. 80 Waihuan East Road, 
Nantong City, Jiangsu,
Peoples Republic of China 

(740) Pravin BARTHIA, Trademark Agent
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port-Louis

(511) (28)
(540) MDBuddy Logo

MDBuddy

(310) 26746/2018 (320) 27/02/2018
(330) 17/4395 174 10/10/2017 FR
(730) CFAO

18, rue Troyon, 92316 SEVRES, France
(740) Mr Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent, 

ENSafrica (Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(511) (9 and 12)
(540) CFAO WITH AFRICA FOR AFRICA 

(device in colors) 

0cfao
* WITH AFRICA FOR AFRICA

(310) 26780/2018 (320) 05/03/2018
(730) EMTEL LIMITED

EmtelWorld, 10, Ebene Cybercity, Ebene 
72201, Republic of Mauritius

(511) (35, 36 and 38)
(540) Emtel (and logo)

@ 6MT6L
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(310) 26783/2018 (320) 05/03/2018
(730) Nisshinbo Holdings Inc.

31-11, Nihonbashi Ningyo-cho 2-chome, 
Chuo-ku Tokyo 103-8650, Japan

(740) ENSafrica (Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(511) (12)
(540) NISSHINBO Stylized

<l» <l»

NilSSHMBO

(310) 26784/2018 (320) 06/03/2018
(730) Zoona Transactions International Limited

IFS Court, Bank Street, TwentyEight, 
Cybercity, Ebene 72201, Republic ofMauritius 

(511) (36 and 42)
(540) ZOONA - LET’S MAKE IT REAL &

LOGO

T LETS /iWKE IT REAL

(310) 26797/2018 (320) 09/03/2018
(730) Karen LAM MOK SING

17, Avenue Surcouf, Quatre Bomes, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (29 and 30)

(540) Popo and device

-'i^y

(310) 26800/2018 (320) 09/03/2018
(730) DG HOLDING

Les Vallades - Chemin des Valladets, 13510 
EGUILLES, France

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis

(511) (6,9, 11, 18,20,21,24,25,28,35,41 and 45)

40 KEEP COOL

(310) 26801/2018 (320) 09/03/2018
(730) DG HOLDING

Les Vallades - Chemin des Valladets, 
13510 EGUILLES, France 

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis 

(511) (6,9,11, 18,20,21,24,25, 28,35,41 and 45) 
(540) KeepCool Logo

(310) 26802/2018 (320) 09/03/2018
(730) DG HOLDING

Les Vallades - Chemin des Valladets, 13510
EGUILLES, France

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis 

(511) (6,9, 11, 18,20,21,24,25,28,35,41 and 45) 
(540) KEEP COOL le sport bonheur (Stylised) &

Device

Keep Coo I
■ le sport bonheur •
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(310) 26803/2018 (320) 09/03/2018
(730) COMPAGN1E DE GROS CAILLOUX 

LIMITEE

(740)

(5H)
(540)

c/o The United Basalt Products Ltd, Trianon, 
Quatre Bomes, Republic of Mauritius 
Mardemootoo Solicitors
3rd Floor, Les Jamalacs Building,
Vieux Conseil Street, Port-Louis
(8 and 31)
bio kit (and logo)

(310) 26804/2018 (320) 09/03/2018
(730) COMPAGNIE DE GROS CAILLOUX 

LIMITEE

(740)

(511)
(540)

c/o The United Basalt Products Ltd, Trianon, 
Quatre Bomes, Republic of Mauritius 
Mardemootoo Solicitors
3rd Floor, Les Jamalacs Building, Vieux 
Conseil Street, Port-Louis
(8 and 31)
bio kids (and logo)

(310) 26805/2018 (320) 09/03/2018
(730) COMPAGNIE DE GROS CAILLOUX 

LIMITEE
c/o The United Basalt Products Ltd, Trianon, 
Quatre Bomes, Republic of Mauritius

(740) Mardemootoo Solicitors
3rd Floor, Les Jamalacs Building, Vieux 
Conseil Street, Port-Louis

(511) (8 and 31)
(540) Veg Kids (and logo)

(310) 26806/2018 (320) 09/03/2018
(730) ISLAND FOCUS CO. LTD

33, Stanley Avenue, Quatre Bomes, 
Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (35, 39 and 43)
(540) Emotions Destination Management (and 

logo)

emotions
--------------------------------- Destination Management

(310) 26807/2018 (320) 09/03/2018
(730) ISLAND FOCUS CO. LTD

33, Stanley Avenue, Quatre Bomes, 
Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (35, 39 and 43)
(540) O'Chic by Emotions (and logo)

(310)
(730)

(5H) 
(540)

26817/2018 (320) 13/03/2018
JALILL & SONS CO LTD
Royal Road, Nouvelle France, 
Republic of Mauritius
(35)
CRAZY PRICE (and logo)

(Mctzy juce ]
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(310) 26822/2018 (320) 13/03/2018
(730) SAILUN JINYU GROUP CO., LTD 

No. 588, Maoshan Road, Huangdao District, 
Qingdao City, Shandong,
Peoples Republic of China

(740) Mr R.C Payen, Trademark Agent 
IBL Ltd, 10, Dr Ferriere Street, Port-Louis

(511) (12)
(540) SAILUN JINYU GROUP DEVICE

(310) 26824/2018 (320) 14/03/2018
(730) Jean Valery Properties Ltd

Office 103 B, Moka Business Centre, Mount 
Ory Road, Moka 80813, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (36)
(540) JV PROPERTIES (and logo)

(310) 26825/2018 (320) 14/03/2018
(730) LES 3 STERLIZIE LTEE

Office 103 B, Moka Business Centre, Mount
Ory Road, Moka 80813, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (36)

<540) MARINA BAY

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

26826/2018 (320) 14/03/2018
Mauritius Cosmetics Ltd
Bonne Terre, Vacoas, Republic of Mauritius 
(3 and 16)

Baby Pro

(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

26830/2018 (320) 14/03/2018
Abbott Point of Care Inc.
400 College Road East, Princeton, New Jersey 
08540, United States of America
Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis
(1)

TNI-NX

(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

26828/2018 (320) 14/03/2018
Abbott Point of Care Inc.
400 College Road East, Princeton, New Jersey 
08540, United States of America
Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis 
(10)

TNI-NX
(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

26827/2018 (320) 14/03/2018
Le Savoyard Ltee
Nautica Commercial Centre, No 4 & 5, Ground 
Floor, Royal Road, Black River, Republic of 
Mauritius
(41 and 43)
Bistrot de la Poste (and logo)

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

26831/2018 (320) 14/03/2018
MILBORROW ANIMAL HEALTH LTD 
Bon Air, Moka 80805, Republic of Mauritius 
(32 and 43)
RUBICON & LOGO



1098 The Mauritius Government Gazette

PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 — continued

(310) 26833/2018 (320) 15/03/2018
(730) Abdool Gaffour JOHOLEE

Boundary Road, Quatre-Bornes, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (43)
(540) Islanders Biryani - Fiesta of Flavours Logo

(310) 26845/2018 (320) 15/03/2018
(730) CAUDAN DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

8th Floor, Dias Pier Building, Le Caudan 
Waterfront, Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (35, 36 and 43)
(540) LE CAUDAN WATERFRONT & LOGO

of Flavour!

(310) 26846/2018 (320) 15/03/2018
(730) SALAMA FIKIRA INTERNATIONAL LTD 

Level 3, Alexander House, 35 Cybercity, 
Ebene, Republic of Mauritius

(511) (35 and 45)
(540) SALAMA FIKIRA - LOGO 2017

(310) 26847/2018 (320) 15/03/2018
(730) Haydar Aly PANAWOOLLA

1 Imam B.Sobdar Street, Port Louis, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (29 and 30)

40 Sandwizza

(310) 26849/2018 (320) 15/03/2018
(730) 1 dentity International Ltd

7th FLOOR, TOWER 1, NEXTERACOM 
CYBERCITY, EBENE, 72201 
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent 
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port Louis

(511) (35 and 45)

540 ONE IDENTITY

(310)
(730)

(740)

(5H) 
(540)

26850/2018 (320) 15/03/2018
Identity International Ltd
7th FLOOR, TOWER 1, NEXTERACOM 
CYBERCITY, EBENE, 72201
Republic of Mauritius
Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent 
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port Louis
(35 and 45)
Identity - One Identity & Logo

Identity
One Identity
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(316) 26851/2018 (320) 15/03/2018
(730) Jasmina Roberta RUBEN

c/o Mrs Koodoruth, Royal Road, Pavilions, 
Cap Malheureux, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (9 and 41)
(540) THE RUBENIST

MJBENIST

(310) 26854/2018 (320) 16/03/2018
(730) GIFT FOR LIFE LTD

Monseigneur Leen, Port Louis, 
Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (25 and 35)
(540) Veneela Fashion (and logo)

Opposition, if any, to be lodged with the Controller, The Industrial Property Office, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, 
Regional Integration and International Trade (International Trade Division), 11 th Floor, Sterling House, Lislet 
Geoffroy Street, Port-Louis, Republic of Mauritius by way of notice and within the delay prescribed by law (2 
months) in accordance with the Patents, Industrial Designs and Trademarks Act 2002.

Date: 22 March, 2018 Ag. Controller 
Industrial Property Office
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General Notice No. 517 of 2018

EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS TRIBUNAL

ERT/RN 132/2017

AWARD

Before:-

Shameer Janhangeer Vice-President

Vijay Kumar Mohit Member

Andy Ryan Hau Kee Hee Member

Ghianeswar Gokhool Member

In the matter of: -

Mr Kevin JUGROO
Disputant

and

Orange Business Services Mauritius Ltd
Respondent

The present matter has been referred to the Tribunal for arbitration by the Commission 
for Conciliation and Mediation ("CCM") pursuant to section 69 (7) of the Employment Relations 
Act. The Terms of Reference of the dispute read as follows:

Whether Orange Business Services- Mauritius should classify me in the job band 
'Middle Management - Lead Professional (MLP)' instead of 'Professional (PRO)' 
following my promotion since July 1, 2015 from Level 2 Messaging & MS 
Exchange specialist to Team Leader and pay me 15% bonus incentive instead of 
10% annually.

1
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Both parties were assisted by Counsel. Mr Y. Ramsohok appeared on behalf of the 
Disputant. Whereas, Mrs V. R. Bunwaree Goburdhun appeared on behalf of the Respondent. 
Both parties have each submitted a Statement of Case in the matter.

THE DISPUTANT'S STATEMENT OF CASE

The Disputant has averred that he is employed by the Respondent since 27 July 2009 as 
Messaging & MS Exchange Specialist and has a contract of employment to this effect. The 
permanent jobs at Respondent are classified into five broad job bands, namely Executive 
Management (EXC), Senior Management/Expert Professional (SEP), Middle Management/Lead 
Professional (MLP), Professional (PRO) and Support/Associate (SPA). As per his contract of 
employment, Disputant was employed in the Middle Management/Lead Professional (MLP) 
grade. He is also entitled to the company's performance bonus scheme which implies that he 
may receive each half year a performance related bonus against company targets and personal 
objectives. The bonus is set at 15% of the annual base salary for on target company and 
individual performance.

The Disputant has averred that on 10 April 2015, he was informed, in an email from the 
Human Resources Department, of several internal vacancies at the Respondent. He applied for 
the post of SCS Service Desk Team Leader, which is higher in hierarchy to his post. On 6 May 
2015, he was conveyed to an interview and the interview panel made it clear to him that if 
selected as Team Leader, his role and responsibilities will significantly change and be at a higher 
level than what he was doing. On 1 June 2015, the Disputant attended a feedback interview 
and was informed that he had been selected for the position of SCS Service Desk Team Leader. 
He was informed that if he accepted, he would be responsible for service desk activities and a 
team; and he would be entitled to a 24% basic salary increment as adequate compensation for 
joining the position. Disputant was led to believe that all his terms and conditions of 
employment remained the same except that his basic salary was being increased by 24%. The 
Disputant accepted the position on condition that a new contract of employment be 
communicated to him. He was told to join the position and that the new contract of 
employment would be communicated to him in due course.
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On 21 September 2015, the Disputant received an email from the Respondent's Global 
Human Resources with a letter dated 21 September 2014 attached wherein he was informed of 
appointment as Team Leader, his new job band as PRO and that all other working conditions 
remain unchanged as per his employment contract. The Disputant was dissatisfied with his job 
band being changed from Middle Management/Lead Professional (MLP) to Professional (PRO) 
and did not accept the new conditions offered to him in the email dated 21 September 2015. In 
September 2015, Disputant discovered that his bonus was calculated on 10% of his annual basic 
salary instead of 15%; and he was no longer granted any shift allowance amounting to 10% of 
his basic salary. He requested the Human Resources Department to provide him with a written 
contract of employment for his new position and has not been provided with same up to date. 
On 22 June 2017, he received a letter via email which simply certified his annual base salary at 
MUR 462,991.

Disputant avers that he requested several meetings with the Head of Department of 
Human Resources to solve the matter internally but to no avail. Disputant has been promoted 
but downgraded in his job band which is completely inconsistent with company policy and 
common sense and his bonus has decreased from 15% to 10% despite undertaking higher 
responsibilities. He seeks to be classified in the Middle Management - Lead Professional (MLP) 
job band instead of Professional (PRO) following his promotion since 1 July 2015 to Team 
Leader and to receive a 15% bonus incentive instead of 10% annually.

Annexed to the Disputant's Statement of Case is the referral letter dated 21 September 
2017 from the CCM; an employment contract dated 27 June 2009; an internal vacancy notice; 
an email dated 21 September 2015; a letter dated 21 September 2014; and a letter dated 21 
June 2017.

THE RESPONDENT'S STATEMENT OF CASE

The Respondent has averred that the Disputant took employment with Orange Business 
Services (Mauritius) Ltd on 15 July 2009 as Messaging & MS Exchange Specialist on an MLP job 
band, which earns, among other benefits, a maximum 15% performance bonus. The 
performance bonus scheme is discretionary comprising three parts: 20% based on the business 
performance of Orange Business Services globally; 20% based on the business performance of
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Customer Services and Operations; and 60% based on the employee's performance against 
objectives. The employee's performance is rated based on a performance review and this rating 
is then applied to a percentage payout range set by the company.

The post of Team Leader SCS was advertised internally in April 2015 listed as being on a 
PRO job band, earning a maximum 10% performance bonus. The Disputant applied for the post 
on 17 April 2015 and was selected and appointed by letter dated 21 September 2015 
(mistakenly dated 2014). He accepted the new conditions of the post he was proposed. The 
new conditions included amongst others an increase of 24% on his then basic salary with a 5% 
diminution in performance bonus being consolidated as a fixed performance in his basic salary. 
He was also not entitled to the shift allowance. Disputant expressed his discontent with the 
payment of his performance bonus as from June 2017.

It is averred that the move of the Disputant is not a promotion but termed as an internal 
mobility within the company. The Disputant, in knowingly applying for a post on the PRO job 
band, has waived any right to claim a change in working conditions. The letter of offer dated 21 
September 2014 clearly stipulates that the change in job band is one of the "changes brought to 
your employment conditions...". The Respondent denies that the Disputant was led to believe 
that all his terms and conditions of employment remained the same except for his salary. 
Information related to his remuneration is listed in his personal PIMS records and Disputant 
cannot plead ignorance of same. The Disputant does not have a guaranteed right to a fixed 
performance bonus as this element in his salary is variable in all job bands. The 5% diminution 
in performance bonus has been consolidated as a fixed component in the Disputant's salary.

The Respondent has averred that it disputes that the Disputant has been downgraded in 
his job band as he knowingly applied for the post in the PRO band and that a 24% increase was 
given to make up for those allowances for which a post in the PRO band had no entitlement. 
The Disputant cannot request the Tribunal to classify his present job in the MLP band as he was 
fully aware that the post was in the PRO band when he applied. The Disputant's request has 
repercussions on the whole company and concern other employees not involved in the present 
dispute. The Disputant has not suffered from any loss in salary. It has also been averred that 
Disputant has no valid claim and that the dispute should be set aside.
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THE EVIDENCE OF WITNESSES

Mr Kevin Jugroo, Team Leader at Orange Business Services, was called to adduce 
evidence. He affirmed as to truth of the contents of his Statement of Case and the veracity of 
the annexes attached thereto. He identified his contract of employment issued to him when he 
started work at Orange Business Services ("OBS") as Annex B to his Statement of Case. As per 
his contract, his job band was MLP and his bonus was set at 15% of his annual basic salary 
payable in two terms after six months. The bonus is made up of three parts: one part is made 
up of the individual performance accounting for 60%; the second part is the collective part 
which is divided into two further sub parts which is made of 20% each. This is accounted for in 
the calculation of the 15% bonus at the end of six months. When in the MLP job band, he has 
always touched a 15% range bonus. According to the Corporate Bonus Plan, MLP can range 
between 10 to 20% same as PRO. He produced a copy of the Corporate Bonus Plan (Document 
A). He elaborated on how he has upgraded his qualifications. He is currently occupying the post 
of Team Leader since 1 July 2015, being currently responsible for a team of 10 members and 
this involves more responsibility compared to his previous post of Level 2 Messaging and MS 
Exchange Specialist.

Mr Jugroo explained how he got an advertisement, which he identified as Annex C to his 
Statement of Case, and he contacted the Manager Mr Arnaud Quirin on the local messaging 
application asking for a Personal Information Management System ("PIMS") ID. He applied for 
the vacancy of SCS Service Desk Team Leader by mail. There needed to be a PIMS ID for 
referencing the job advert. He was not given much information about the job. On 29 April, he 
received an invite for an interview on 6 May. At the interview, Mrs Deeya Nursimloo, Head of 
Department of Expertise and Solution Centre, and Mr Arnaud Quirin, the Hiring Manager, were 
present. The interview was mostly centered on how he could bring his contribution and was 
presented to him as a promotion as he will be leading a team. After the interview, he received 
an invite for a feedback interview on 1 June 2015, wherein he was informed that he was 
selected; not much was discussed during the feedback interview apart from the fact that he 
would be having the responsibility of people under him. He did not accept on the spot and 
asked for a day to give his decision. He asked for a contract addendum which he was not given. 
He received a letter from Human Resources on 21 September 2015 to which was attached a 
letter dated 21 September 2014. He identified these two letters as Annexes D and E to his 
Statement of Case. In the letter (Annex E), it is mentioned that his job band will become PRO 
and he understood that his other employment conditions would remain the same including his 
bonus. He did not agree to his job band being reviewed to PRO as MLP is above PRO in the 
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organisation. He went to his Line Manager and Head of Department as he did not agree to his 
job band being reviewed. He never approved to this in writing or verbally. The bonus he is now 
receiving is at 10%.

Mr Jugroo also stated that his move to Team Leader from Level 2 is a promotion as he 
was now accountable for 20 people, their career development, day to day performance of their 
duties, the facilitation of their duties and so on. He produced a screenshot from PIMS from 15 
September 2017 (Document B) highlighting "OOC (Out of Cycle) Promotion/Position Change". 
He referred to the Mauritius Major Service Centre Mobility guidelines, producing an extract of 
same (Document C) referring to "Section 5.4 Continuity of Service". According to this, his job 
band MLP is accrued and should be preserved whenever he was effecting a mobility or job 
promotion. The bonus component is to be preserved as well, it is an accrued right. He also 
referred to the global transfer policy of the group and produced an extract of same (Document 
D). He is being caused prejudice with his bonus at 10% as he is losing money and was earning 
more in his previous post. He is asking the Tribunal to restore his job band and his corporate 
bonus plan to 15%.

Mr Jugroo was lengthily questioned by Counsel for the Respondent. He notably stated 
that he did not look through PIMS at the time he applied for the job although he was aware 
that it was present on the PIMS tool. He requested the PIMS reference for the vacancy but did 
not look into the PIMS system. He produced a copy of the application for the post of Team 
Leader email dated 17 April 2015 (Document E) containing a reference of the PIMS ID. He 
agreed that from the PIMS advertisement for the post for Team Leader SCS, the job band is 
PRO. He was not officially aware that post was in PRO before receiving the mobility letter in 
September 2015. The job band was mentioned to him during the feedback interview and he 
contested same. Mrs Deeya Nursimloo, during the initial interview on 6 May 2015, told him 
that it was a promotion. He opted to wait for an official document to start grievance 
procedures which he mentioned to Mrs Nursimloo in a meeting on 2 June 2015 with Mr Arnaud 
Quirin not present. He started the grievance procedure on 2 June 2015. His first email regarding 
grievance is dated 13 April 2017. From the start of his duties as Team Leader, he went verbally 
every time he had the occasion to speak to his Line Managers so as not to spoil his relationship, 
during the course of 2015, 2016 and early 2017. He asked his Line Manager Mr Arnaud Quirin 
for a contract addendum and exposed all the facts and figures he had in his possession and that 
he is losing money. None of the meetings he had with Mr Arnaud Quirin were documented. 
When paid the bonus in March 2016 and September 2016, he contested verbally. In March
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2017, he contested in writing as his grievances were not followed up accurately. He applied for 
a job in 2017 asking for a higher salary which was not agreed to by the company.

Mr Jugroo went on further to state that the mobility letter arrived a day before the 
payroll date which is 22 September and that it is only then he discovered that his bonus was 
reduced to 10%. He was not aware that PRO earns 10% bonus. He was not aware since 6 May 
2015 that there would be a change in his job band. He contested verbally with his Line Manager 
and contested in writing on 17 April 2017. In an email dated 25 July 2017 (produced as 
Document F), he wrote "/ accept the fact that I have been briefed during a feedback meeting, 
with HOD and Manager though, where the conditions for the position were laid down.". He is 
asking for his job band to be restored as it is an acquis. He applied for the post voluntarily. The 
60% part of the bonus is discretionary upon management's assessment of his performance. For 
six years, he received the bonus at 15%. After the mobility, there was a 24% increase to his 
basic salary. He was only given a breakdown of the 24% at the CCM and not at the feedback 
interview. 6% of his shift allowance was brought back into his new salary added in the 24% 
increase of his basic salary. He did not agree that the difference of 5% in bonus is added to his 
basic salary as a fixed component. He did not agree that he is not suffering from any financial 
loss.

Following questions in re-examination from his Counsel, Mr Jugroo notably stated that 
there is a culture that things are discussed verbally and he wanted to preserve a good 
employment relationship. He has not received any formal communication as to his new terms 
and conditions of employment. When on the MLP job band, he was consistently receiving a 
15% bonus every six months. He has not received any document explaining the breakdown of 
the 24% raise in his basic salary although he was verbally told, by Mrs Deeya Nursimloo and Mr 
Arnaud Quirin, around 22 September 2015 that there was a buy out of his bonus at 5%, 10% for 
his shift allowance and the rest for his mobility. The Corporate Bonus Plan mentions the range 
of the bonus for PRO and MLP and there is nothing on paper setting a bonus rate of 15% for 
MLP and 10% for PRO. He produced a document showing the loss he has suffered with his 
bonus now at 10% (Document G). The Disputant also stated that the 24% increase in salary is 
not inclusive of the bonus and is compensation for the post of Team Leader.

Mr Akshay Servansingh Muckoon, Technical Operations Owner, was called as a witness 
on behalf of the Disputant. He notably stated that he joined OBS at Level 2 in 2009 in the MLP 
job band with a bonus of 15%. Since 2015, he is currently a Technical Operations Owner, which 
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is a promotion compared to what he was previously doing. The post of Team Leader is higher to 
his in the hierarchy. He was given the responsibilities of his present post verbally and in January 
2015, the post was advertised and he applied. He is still on the MLP job band but his bonus is 
now 10%. He has not been communicated anything in writing nor was he given a new contract. 
He considers becoming a Team Leader from Level 2 to be a promotion as a Team Leader 
manages a team.

In reply to questions from Counsel for the Respondent, the witness notably stated that 
unofficially he manages a team. As he has previously managed a team, he understands the 
responsibility of Team Leader and can say that appointment to same is a promotion. He has no 
issues for which he has had to go to Human Resources for. He does not agree that his move to 
his present post is a mobility. He was informed on PIMS that MLP carries a 15% bonus. He is in 
the same situation as the Disputant regarding the reduction in bonus but has never made a 
complaint.

Mr Noowanjay Seeballack, Technical Operations Owner, was also called as a witness on 
behalf of the Disputant. He joined OBS in 2009 at Level 1 in the PRO job band and in 2010 
became Messaging Specialist at Level 2 in the MLP job band. On 1 July 2015, he moved to 
Technical Operations Owner. He applied for the post of SCS Team Leader on 1 June 2015. The 
post of Team Leader has more responsibilities than the Level 2 post. If ever he became Team 
Leader, he would see it as a promotion with the job band remaining the same or better. He was 
not selected for the post of Team Leader and management verbally proposed him his present 
post. The post was formalized in September 2015 and was in the PRO job band with a 10% 
bonus. Management verbally informed him that the 5% of bonus he lost would be added to his 
basic salary.

Pursuant to questions from Counsel for the Respondent, the witness notably stated that 
it was around September or October 2015 that he was informed that 5% of the bonus will be 
added to his basic salary. He undertook the post of Technical Operations Owner on 1 July 2015 
although the post was advertised on PIMS in September 2015. According to the system, he 
assumed the post as from November 2015. The post of Team Leader is a management post and 
his present post is a technical one having technical responsibilities. It does not mean that 
because he is not managing a team that his post has less responsibilities than a management 
post.
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The representative of the Respondent, Mrs Jennifer Kevan, Head of Human Resources, 
was called to depose on behalf of OBS Mauritius Ltd. She has worked for the Respondent since 
2012 being originally in the UK, where she was the Human Resources Business Partner. She 
confirmed that the contents of the Respondent's Statement of Case is the truth. She stated that 
the move of Mr Jugroo to Team Leader is an internal mobility, explaining that there are three 
streams which are technical, project management and people management; it depends where 
somebody is in each of these streams as to whether there is a promotion or mobility. A mobility 
is always reviewed within the group. Mr Jugroo was given a compensation of 24% when he 
moved to Team Leader. There was a 5% buyout of the bonus, which was put into basic pay; 
there was a 6% change added to basic pay which is the difference between how overtime is 
calculated and how inconvenience hours are calculated; the remainder 13% is the mobility 
amount. The bonus entitlement is discretionary as theoretically the company may not be able 
to afford to pay the bonus at some point. She produced a document regarding the payment of 
the bonus (Document H). The payment of the bonus is budget dependent and management has 
to use its discretion to come within the budget. Mr Jugroo is not at loss with his bonus being 
brought from 15% to 10% as he is receiving the 5% in his basic pay. In theory, there is- a 
discretion for the bonus to be increased to a maximum of 20% from 10%. A decision was made 
for all Team Leaders to be placed on 10% bonus. Information about the bonus can be found on 
the HR portal called IRIS.

Mrs Kevan also stated that the PIMS system holds personal data for all employees in 
terms of birthdate, spouse, remuneration and recruitment. There was a description of the job 
of Team Leader SCS, for which Mr Jugroo had applied, on PIMS. She produced an extract from 
PIMS for the post Mr Jugroo applied (Document J). From this document, the job band is clearly 
PRO. The PIMS ID for the job matches the reference as noted by Mr Jugroo in his email of 17 
April 2015 produced as Document E. With reference to the MMSC guidelines and the global 
policy (produced as Documents C and D), Mrs Kevan stated that every effort has been made to 
maintain or preserve the benefits especially in relation to the bonus Mr Jugroo was earning as 
MLP upon his move. The information on the job band for Team Leader was already on PIMS. 
The company does not give addendums to the contract when there is mobility and there is an 
automated generated letter, which is what Mr Jugroo received and is also the mobility letter. 
The company has acted on the mobility letter as Mr Jugroo's title has been changed to Team 
Leader, he reports to the Head of Customer Technical Support, his job band is PRO, he has been 
paid a bonus on PRO of 10% and the effective date of his contract is 1 July 2015. It has been 
communicated to Mr Jugroo in a meeting that he had been compensated for the difference in 
bonus as had the difference in overtime pay. When someone has an issue, he can write to his
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Manager or it can be verbal; if they do not get a response within two days, they can escalate 
either in writing or verbally to a member of management. There is also an online system called 
HR whereby an employee can raise any issue for human resources related queries and there is a 
two-day response time.

Mrs Kevan was thoroughly cross-examined by Counsel for the Disputant. She notably 
stated that the contract of employment annexed to the Disputant's Statement of Case is a true 
copy and that the clause under the heading of remuneration allows for a salary review. She 
confirmed that vacancies are sent to employees by email and the job vacancies are also posted 
on PIMS, which gives the full job description. It is possible to apply for a job from the PIMS 
system. Mr Jugroo applied for the post of SCS Team Leader via email but she cannot track 
whether he opened PIMS and looked up the position. The normal interview process involves 
the Recruiting Manager interviewing internal candidates; for external candidates, the Recruiting 
Manager will see them and there is usually a second interview. The Recruiting Manager and the 
Manager interviews either at the same time or at two separate moments. A Recruiting Manager 
is one who recruits for a member of their own team. Mr Jugroo being a Team Leader can be a 
Recruiting Manager. The job advertisement sent by email does not mention anything, people 
have to refer to PIMS for more details. PIMS shows the post of Team Leader to be on PRO and it 
is known in the business that PRO pays 10% in Mauritius. There is no document to the effect 
that PRO pays at a rate of 10%.

Mrs Kevan was referred to the Corporate Bonus Plan produced as Document A. The 
range for PRO is 10% to 20% same as for MLP. Interviewers use an interview sheet, which 
covers standard questions and information which is there to provide a guideline to the 
Recruiting Manager at the interview. Terms and conditions of employment have been 
determined at the level of the Human Resources Department and the Head of Business but 
most Managers, during interview, will confirm those to the internal candidate and certainly gets 
to explain same to the external candidates. She disagreed that there is a flaw in the interview 
process at OBS and believes that their Managers are very competent at interviewing. Mrs Kevan 
was referred to Annexes D and E of the Disputant's Statement of Case. She confirmed that Mr 
Jugroo was asked whether he accepts the change in his employment conditions by replying 
'read and approved'. If there is no document to evidence that Mr Jugroo has approved the 
change in job band, he has accepted the increase to his pay which means he has accepted the 
job with all the conditions. She does not know if there is any document stating that the 
Disputant has been given a salary increase and of changes therein. The job band MLP is higher 
than PRO. The post of Team Leader is a people management position not just a technical 
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position. She did not agree that the move made by Mr Jugroo from MS Level 2 Specialist to the 
post of Team Leader is a promotion. There is no document which sets out the differences 
between internal mobility and promotion. Movements can be upwards, downwards and lateral. 
The move made by Mr Jugroo was a horizontal move. A lateral or horizontal move is not 
necessarily within the same job band.

Mrs Kevan, being referred to Annex E of the Disputant's Statement of Case, confirmed 
that it is written “all other working conditions remained unchanged as per your contract of 
employment'’; the contract of employment states that the bonus is set at 15% and when read in 
conjunction with the mobility letter, this has not been altered and nor has the salary been 
altered. However, there is a clause which permits the review in salary. Referring to the 
Mauritius Mobility Guidelines produced as Document C, Mrs Kevan did not agree that the 
target bonus of 15% given to Mr Jugroo consistently since 2009 is an accrued right as it is what 
was agreed in his contract he was doing for the period; had he remained in the job, he would 
have continued to receive his previous salary with a 15% bonus. She did not agree that it is 
unfair for Mr Jugroo, being a Team Leader, for his job band to be lower than someone who 
reports to a Team Leader. She could not say if there is nothing mentioned in the PIMS of Mr 
Jugroo about the breakdown to the 24% increase in salary and was advised that he was 
informed of same by his Manager Mr Quirin. She is not aware of any complaint made by Mr 
Jugroo to his immediate superior Mr Quirin or Mrs Nursimloo when offered the post of Team 
Leader. She did not expect a grievance to take two years before bringing it formally as there is 
an HR system on which a formal complaint can be made online and the person can also see the 
Head of Business. She disagreed that the income of Disputant has decreased since his job band 
has been lowered to PRO. The bonus is performance related. Mr Jugroo was compensated for 
the change in job band and thrs was explained to him by his Manager.

Under re-examination from her Counsel, Mrs Kevan produced a document showing the 
breakdown of the 24% increase in the Disputant's salary (Document K). The first part of the 
document is an extract of her view in PIMS. The PRO job band bonus is fixed at 10% in 
Mauritius and this was fixed by the Head of Department, Head of Business, the HR Manager 
and the HR Business Partner some years ago. Mrs Kevan also stated that the Document 
mentions “promotion/position change” which is not necessarily just promotion, it could be a 
lateral movement. The breakdown of 24% increase was clearly communicated to Mr Jugroo by 
the Managers.
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Mr Arnaud Quirin, Senior Operations Manager at OBS, was called to adduce evidence on 
behalf of the Respondent. He stated that he is the direct superior of Mr Jugroo. On 26 March 
2015, he opened the post of Team Leader SCS by making a demand in the PIMS tool, which was 
validated on 10 April. A communication was sent to the employees of the company inviting 
them to apply. The communication was identified as Annex C to the Disputant's Statement of 
Case. Employees could apply through the PIMS tool, or directly by sending an email to the 
Hiring Manager. Mr Jugroo applied on 17 April 2015 by mail mentioning the job ID, the details 
of which can be found on PIMS. He identified Document E as the application email sent by Mr 
Jugroo as well as the job description to be found on PIMS (Document J) which corresponds to 
job ID 537238. The job advert does not mention the PIMS reference and logically the postulant 
must access PIMS to obtain this information. Mr Jugroo was interviewed on 6 May 2015 and he 
took notes of the interview, which he produced (Document L). Mrs Deeya Nursimloo was also 
present during the interview. Salary conditions were not discussed during the interview.

Mr Quirin also goes on to state that it was decided to select Mr Jugroo as Team Leader 
and they met with him to inform him of same on 1 June 2015. Salary conditions attached to the 
post of Team Leader were the principal subject of this meeting. It was explained to Mr Jugroo 
that he will benefit from an increase of 24% with a breakdown of 13-6-5, including the 5% 
which corresponds to the absorption of transferring from MLP to PRO, the loss of the bonus 
from 15% to 10%. He identified Document K as containing a table illustrating the breakdown of 
the 24% increase in salary. An increase of 13% which corresponds to the assumption of the new 
post on his basic salary, 5% which corresponds to the compensation of the MLP bonus to PRO 
and 6% compensation as Mr Jugroo was drawing a shift allowance, the difference between the 
inconvenience allowance whiph is available in this post. The breakdown was clearly explained, 
however Mr Jugroo asked for time to decide. Three days later, on 4 June 2015, he met Mr 
Jugroo who was motivated to take up the new post. On 4 June, there was no issue regarding 
whether Mr Jugroo agreed or not with this or that. Mr Jugroo took up the new post officially on 
lJuly 2015.

Mr Quirin also stated that in 2015, he had two individual one to one (meetings) with Mr 
Jugroo on 28 October and 17 November and he produced two emails containing the notes of 
meeting respectively (Documents M and N). He also had two one to one meetings during the 
first semester of 2016. He produced an email dated 15 April 2016 containing the notes of 
meeting for the two meetings (Document O). These emails were sent to Mr Jugroo following 
the meetings. During these four meetings, there was never any issue of Mr Jugroo's salary 
conditions raised and Mr Jugroo never mentioned that he does not agree with the shift in his 

12



1112 The Mauritius Government Gazette

job band from MLP to PRO. The first time he hears of Mr Jugroo's issues is in about February 
2017, when Mr Jugroo invokes the loss he is experiencing in his new post and produced some 
salary slips, saying that he does not agree to the loss in job band from MLP to PRO. Mr Jugroo 
had already received his bonus on a PRO basis twice in 2016 and once in 2015. Mr Jugroo 
complaints came following an application in December 2016 or early 2017 for another post of 
Team Leader, for which he did not accept the proposal of a 10% increase; Mr Jugroo was 
seeking an increase of 22%, which the company did not accept. There were other posts in the 
MLP job band which Mr Jugroo could have applied for at the company between July 2015 and 
today.

Mr Quirin, following questions put by Counsel for the Disputant, has notably stated that 
before applying for a vacancy, one must at least be informed of the expectations and for this, 
he refers to the PIMS tool; this is the basic thing to do before applying. He denied that Mr 
Jugroo asked him for the PIMS ID for the post. The PIMS ID can be found by making a search (on 
PIMS). He agreed that the employees can send a mail directly without consulting PIMS. No 
notes were taken during the feedback interview of 1 June 2015. Mr Jugroo received an increase 
of 24% and the breakdown was explained to him; the breakdown is not mentioned in the PIMS 
tool. An email was sent to Mr Jugroo's Manager stating that Mr Jugroo agreed to the new post. 
There are no notes of meeting of the meeting with Mr Jugroo on 4 June 2015. The one to one 
meetings with Mr Jugroo were in relation to progress regarding objectives, defining objectives, 
operations and other subjects related to the function. Given that the issues regarding the salary 
conditions are not in the notes of meeting, they were not invoked; if not, Mr Jugroo would have 
replied to the emails to say that he omitted a point. He is not aware if Mr Jugroo replied to the 
letter dated 21 September 2014 (Annex E to the Disputant's Statement of Case). According to 
their discussion, Mr Jugroo did accept the post of Team Leader and it is in February 2017 that 
he started to express his disaccord. He did not agree that Mr Jugroo did not accept the 
conditions proposed in the feedback interview and that Mr Jugroo always expressed his 
objections as he did not accept the conditions attached to the post. He maintained that Mr 
Jugroo first informed him of same in February 2017.

Mr Quirin, under re-examination from Counsel for the Respondent, produced an email 
dated 4 June 2015 (Document P) which was sent to Mr Jugroo's former Manager following the 
meeting held with Mr Jugroo when the latter agreed (to the post). Mr Jugroo was in the course 
of his handing over and effecting his change in post.
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THE SUBMISSIONS OF COUNSEL

Both Counsel have submitted comprehensive written submissions to the Tribunal in the 
present matter. Mr Y. Ramsohok for the Disputant has, in essence, submitted that the point in 
dispute constitutes of two mutually exclusive limbs, i.e. whether the Disputant should be 
classified in the MLP job band instead of PRO following his promotion to Team Leader; and 
whether OBS Mauritius should pay the Disputant 15% bonus incentive instead of 10% annually. 
Counsel for the Disputant has first considered whether the move made by Mr Jugroo is a 
promotion and after considering the evidence in relation to same, concludes that it is so. If it is 
an internal mobility, it is an upward vertical move. The terms and conditions of the worker 
cannot therefore become less favourable than they already were. As the worker was promoted 
and never expressly or impliedly accepted the lower job band, same should therefore be 
maintained at MLP and cannot be lowered to PRO.

On the second limb of the dispute, Counsel for the Disputant has submitted that the 
target bonus is a right which has accrued over the years relying on the case of The New 
Mauritius Hotels Group v Benoit [1982 MR 109]. Reference has also been made to the Mauritius 
Mobility Guidelines (produced as Document C) to show that "every effort should be made to 
maintain or preserve benefits where rights have accrued as a result of service”. He disagrees 
that given that the job band is PRO, the target bonus is set at 10% as there is no document to 
show same; the Corporate Bonus Plan sets the bonus range for PRO between 10 - 20%; and the 
fact that the employer has brought off 5% of the bonus was never communicated to the 
Disputant. It is therefore prayed that the Disputant be classified in the MLP job band instead of 
PRO following his promotion since 1 July 2015 to Team Leader and he be paid 15% bonus 
incentive instead of 10% annually.

Counsel for the Respondent has, on the other hand, essentially submitted that the gist 
of the Disputant's case is that his change in post is'effectively a promotion; and secondly, that 
the 15% bonus incentive is a droit acquis, which could not be changed without his specific 
consent. It has been submitted that the Disputant's move is an internal mobility as it was a 
move from the technical to the managerial stream and it cannot be equated to a promotion. In 
reviewing the evidence, the Respondent submits that as at 1 June 2015, the Disputant became 
aware of his new post being classified as PRO and he accepted his new conditions. There has 
been no unilateral modification of the employee's contract of employment, the Disputant 
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having prevailed of an opportunity to apply for a new position within the company and thus 
engaged into a new contract with the employer.

It has also been submitted that the Disputant was offered substantial compensation so 
that he would not lose out on his former pay. The bonus incentive was consolidated as a 5% 
fixed component in his basic salary. The bonus incentive, it has been submitted, cannot be 
considered as an usage and therefore an acquired right as it does not meet the criteria of 
generalite, Constance et fixite. Reference has been made to Jurisclasseur Travail Traite Fasc 1- 
20: Usages ler Mai 2012 in this regard. The employer cannot create an exception in the case of 
the Disputant by awarding him a 15% bonus incentive as this would open the floodgates for 
other employees and create a situation where employees in the same job band will not be 
benefiting from the same conditions of pay. The Disputant's claim is not legitimate as he has 
been amply compensated for the loss in his bonus incentive. The Respondent therefore submits 
that the dispute should be set aside.

THE MERITS OF THE DISPUTE

The Tribunal, in the present matter, is being asked to enquire into whether OBS 
Mauritius should classify the Disputant in the MLP job band instead of PRO following his 
■promotion from Level 2 Messaging & MS Exchange Specialist since 1 July 2015 and that he be 
paid 15% bonus incentive instead of 10% annually.

The Disputant, Mr Kevin Jugroo, joined OBS Mauritius in 2009 as Level 2 Messaging & 
MS Exchange Specialist. OBS Mauritius applies a job band policy to its posts and Mr Jugroo's 
post was classified in the Middle Management - Lead Professional, i.e. MLP, job band. 
According to his contract of employment, Mr Jugroo was also entitled to a 15% bonus of his 
annual basic salary provided inter alia that he met certain targets and depending on the 
company's performance. The other job bands which exist at OBS Mauritius are Executive 
Management (EXE), Senior Management/Expert Professional (SEP), Professional (PRO) and 
Support/Associate (SPA).
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Upon receiving a notice regarding internal vacancies on 10 April 2015, Mr Jugroo 
applied for the post of SCS Service Desk Team Leader ("Team Leader") on 17 April 2015. He was 
interviewed for the vacancy on 6 May 2015 and was conveyed to a feedback interview on 1 
June 2015, whereby he was informed that he was selected for the post and of the salary 
conditions attached thereto. He did not accept immediately, but asked for time to reflect and 
eventually signified his acceptance for the aforesaid post a few days after. He stated work as 
Team Leader as from 1 July 2015. The new post afforded him an increase of 24% on his basic 
salary.

On 21 September 2015, Mr Jugroo received an email to which was attached an 
appointment letter (mistakenly) dated 21 September 2014 informing him of his appointment as 
Team Leader; that his job band is PRO; and that all other working conditions are unchanged as 
per his employment contract. Mr Jugroo also discovered that his bonus was now at 10% instead 
of the 15% that he previously earned in his previous post. Mr Jugroo is dissatisfied with his new 
working conditions, namely the change in job band from MLP to PRO and that his bonus is now 
at 10% instead of 15%. He therefore wishes to be reclassified in the MLP job band in his 
position as Team Leader and draw an annual bonus of 15%.

One of the pertinent issues which has arisen out of the hearing of the matter is when 
was Mr Jugroo aware of the change in job band? As per his evidence, Mr Jugroo has contended 
that he became aware that his new post was classified in the PRO job band when he received 
the appointment letter - also referred to as the mobility letter - dated 21 September 2014, 
which was attached to an email dated 21 September 2015. This is being disputed by the 
Respondent.

The Tribunal has noted that the version of Mr Jugroo is not completely coherent on this 
issue. In his evidence in chief, Mr Jugroo has notably stated that he became aware of the 
change in job band through the appointment letter dated 21 September 2014. However, when 
questioned by Counsel for the Respondent, he stated that the job band for the post of Team 
Leader was mentioned to him during the feedback interview on 1 June 2015 and that he did not 
agree to same. He however contended that he was officially aware that the post of Team 
Leader was on PRO when he received the appointment letter dated 21 September 2014.
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The Tribunal has also considered the evidence of Mr Arnaud Quirin on this issue. Mr 
Quirin is Mr Jugroo's direct supervisor. He was present as Hiring Manager at the interview for 
the post of Team Leader on 6 May 2015 and also during the feedback interview on 1 June 2015. 
Mr Quirin has unequivocally stated that during the feedback interview, salary conditions were 
the principal subject discussed, whereby Mr Jugroo was explained the breakdown of the 24% 
increase in salary including that he will be receiving a 5% absorption in his new salary in 
transferring from MLP to PRO.

Furthermore, it has not been contested that the information regarding the job band for 
the post of Team Leader, as well as other information pertaining to the post, can be found on 
the PIMS tool which operates at OBS. Although, Mr Jugroo has recognised that the job band is 
present on PIMS, he maintained that he did not verify the PIMS prior to applying for the post. It 
must be noted that Mr Jugroo did in fact include the PIMS reference of the post when applying 
for the post of Team Leader by email on 17 April 2015.

Although Mr Jugroo stated that he obtained the PIMS reference for the post of Team 
Leader from Mr Quirin, the latter has denied that Mr Jugroo asked him for the PIMS reference 
of the aforesaid post. It is not also disputed that the PIMS reference is not required for one to 
apply for the post as the advertisement for the vacancy clearly mentions that one can apply "by 
sending your CV and motivation letter to the Hiring Manager and copy to your Manager/Team 
Leader/HOD, Recruitment Consultant". The Tribunal, however, finds it questionable for Mr 
Jugroo to have included the PIMS reference to the post of Team Leader while not having 
consulted the post on PIMS, the more so that the PIMS reference was not a requisite to 
applying for the post. It cannot also be overlooked that the PIMS reference may be obtained by 
making a simple search on the PIMS tool itself.

It should also be noted that Mr Jugroo has himself written in his grievance email dated 
25 July 2017 (produced as Document F) that he "took up the new position whilst voicing my 
disagreement on the job band & bonus incentive change;" at paragraph 4. a. x. of same. It is not 
disputed that Mr Jugroo took up the post of Team Leader as from 1 July 2015, which is before 
the date he received the appointment letter on 21 September 2015.

Having considered the evidence in relation to the change in job band, the Tribunal is of 
the view that it is highly likely that Mr Jugroo was well aware that the post of Team Leader was
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in the PRO job band prior to his application for the post on 17 April 2017 and that he was, at the 
very least, made aware of same during the feedback interview on 1 June 2015.

Another issue which has been disputed in the present matter is whether Mr Jugroo was 
actually promoted to the post of Team Leader from the post of Level 2 Messaging & MS 
Exchange Specialist. Although, Mr Jugroo is contending that his move to the post of Team 
Leader is a promotion and has found some support from the two witnesses working at OBS 
Mauritius who were called on his behalf, it cannot be overlooked that Mr Jugroo applied for the 
post of Team Leader and was thereafter selected for same after having been interviewed. He 
was not afforded an automatic advancement from his initial post of Level 2 Messaging & MS 
Exchange Specialist at OBS Mauritius to the post of Team Leader nor has it been shown that the 
latter post is one of selection from the former post.

Although Mr Jugroo has emphasised the different nature of the job of Team Leader 
compared to his previous post, it does not automatically follow that he has been promoted to 
the post of Team Leader merely because of its higher responsibilities. The evidence of Mrs 
Kevan on this issue is also of relevance, she having described the move as an internal mobility 
and explained that there are three streams, namely technical, project management and people 
management, and it depends where one is in each of these streams to know if there is a 
promotion or a mobility. The Tribunal has also noted that Mrs Kevan has maintained, under 
firm cross-examination, that Mr Jugroo made a horizontal move. It must also be noted that the 
email dated 21 September 2015 refers to the term "internal mobility" in relation to Mr Jugroo's 
appointment as Team Leader.

Furthermore, although the PIMS view (produced as Document K) mentions the term 
"OOC Promotion/Position Change” to describe the "Pay Change Action/Reason", it does not 
necessarily mean that the change is exclusively due to a promotion as a position change is also 
mentioned. The same also applies to the PIMS screenshot, which displays "OOC 
Promotion/Position Change”, produced by Mr Jugroo (Document B).

In the circumstances, the Tribunal is not wholly satisfied that Mr Jugroo's move to the 
post of Team Leader on 1 July 2015 can be viewed as a promotion and finds that it can, more 
appropriately, be termed as an internal mobility within OBS Mauritius.

18



1118 The Mauritius Government Gazette

ir

Could it therefore be said that Mr Jugroo should be classified in the MLP job band 
instead of PRO in his post as Team Leader at OBS Mauritius? Though Mr Jugroo is now 
performing in a different job with higher responsibilities since July 2015, the post of Team 
Leader he occupies is classified in the PRO job band by the employer.

In this regard, the rights of the employer to organise its business for the efficient 
running of the enterprise must be considered. Indeed, the following may be noted from what 
was stated by the Supreme Court in Hong Kong Restaurant Group Ltd v Manick [1997SCJ105]:

It must be borne in mind that the employer has the inherent power of administration 
and he can organize his business according to the exigencies of the service but within 
the labour law and its remuneration orders.

The following may also be noted from what was stated by the Supreme Court in Dyers 
and Finishers Ltd. v Permanent Arbitration Tribunal & Ors. [2010 SCJ 176]:

It is settled law in France, from which country we inspire ourselves in matters of labour 
law, and in Mauritius, that the employer is at liberty to organise his enterprise in the 
best interests of that enterprise. But he must also comply with the law of the country 
with respect to the rights of the employees.

It must also be noted that it is settled law that the employer in organising his business 
should not interfere with the substantial elements of the employee's contract of employment. 
It would be pertinent to note what was stated by the Supreme Court in A.J. Maurel 
Construction Ltee v Froget [2008 MR 6]:

In any case, as has been stated in Dalloz, Camerlynck, Droit du Travail (ibid.), 
the law does not interfere with the power of the employer to do so except that when 
he does so he does not interfere with the acquired rights of the employees:

« L'employeur, maltre selon la jurisprudence de ^organisation et du 
bon fonctionnement de ses services, peut librement, et sans engager sa 
responsabilite, apporter « dans les limites de son pouvoir de direction » des 
changements dans la structure de son entreprise et des amenagements dans 
I'execution de la prestation de travail,... »
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However, when he does so, he should ensure that he does not interfere with 
the acquired rights of the employees. The exercise of the power of the employer to 
manage his business as he thinks fit is permissible:

« des /'instant ou il ne porte pas atteinte pour autant aux « elements 
substantiels du contrat» (4) ou ne lui apporte pas de « modification essentielle 
(5) - concernant la qualification, les attributions principales, les conditions de 
travail ou la remuneration. »

In the present matter, Mr Jugroo applied to join a new post from his previous post of 
Level 2 Messaging & MS Exchange Specialist and has been given new terms and conditions of 
employment in his new post of Team Leader as is apparent from the appointment letter dated 
21 September 2014. The Disputant, in this regard, has voluntarily moved from one post to 
another in the organisation although he does not agree to certain conditions attached to the 
new post. It cannot therefore be said that the employer is interfering with the acquired rights 
of the employee inasmuch as the latter has assumed a new role within the organisation which 
carries with it different terms and conditions of employment to what he previously enjoyed.

The Tribunal, having considered that Mr Jugroo ought to have been aware that the job 
band for the post of Team Leader was classified as PRO when having applied for same or at the 
very least made aware of same when conveyed to the feedback interview of 1 June 2015; that 
the move to the post of Team Leader was not a promotion but an internal mobility within the 
organisation; and that the employer is at liberty to organise the running of its business, which 
would include classifying its posts in different job bands, as has been considered above, can 
only find that there is no basis for Mr Jugroo to be classified in the MLP job band instead of PRO 
in the post of Team Leader at OBS Mauritius.

As per the Terms of Reference of the dispute, the Tribunal must also enquire as to 
whether Mr Jugroo should be paid a 15% bonus incentive instead of 10% annually. The 
evidence has borne out that the payment of the bonus is linked to the job band that the 
employee falls under. As per Mrs Kevan, the PRO job band carries a bonus of 10% at OBS 
Mauritius. Whereas, Mr Jugroo previously received a bonus of 15% when classified in the MLP 
job band in his role as Level 2 Messaging & MS Exchange Specialist. Moreover, as per the 
Corporate Bonus Plan produced by Mr Jugroo, the bonus ranges for the PRO and MLP job bands 
is between 10% and 20%. Although there is no document to show that the bonus is fixed at 10% 
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for the post of Team Leader or that PRO carries a bonus of 10%, the percentage bonus is within 
the range for the PRO job band as set in the Corporate Bonus Plan produced.

The corporate bonus scheme which operates at OBS Mauritius comprises three 
components, namely the personal part, which rates individual performance and accounts for 
60% of the bonus; the OBS part, based on OBS objectives and which accounts for 20%; and the 
collective part, based on performance for the region and which accounts for 20%. The 60% 
component of the bonus is assessed on a performance rating scale which is matched to a 
corresponding payout range. The payment of the bonus is dependent on the performance of 
the three aforementioned components and is variable in nature. Mr Jugroo, in evidence, has 
not disputed that the 60% component is totally discretionary depending on performance. It 
should also be noted that the Disputant's employment contract describes the bonus as 
“performance related”.

It may be noted that the appointment letter dated 21 September 2014 has set the new 
conditions of employment attached to the post of Team Leader. It has notably highlighted the 
changes brought to Mr Jugroo's employment conditions in his job title, reporting line and job 
band and further mentions that “All your other working conditions remain unchanged as per 
your employment contract".

Referring to Mr Jugroo's employment contract, it may be clearly seen that he was 
classified in the MLP job band and he is entitled to the company's performance bonus scheme 
which implies that he may receive each half year a performance related bonus against company 
targets and personal objectives. The contract also mentions that the “bonus is set at 15% of 
your annual base salary for 'on-target' company and individual performance".

When reading the appointment letter of 21 September 2015 in conjunction with the 
contract of employment to which the letter makes reference, it would therefore follow that the 
bonus rate has remained unchanged upon Mr Jugroo assuming the role of Team Leader. Then 
why is it that Mr Jugroo is receiving a bonus incentive at the rate of 10% in his new role at OBS 
Mauritius?
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The evidence on record has revealed that when Mr Jugroo was selected for the post of 
Team Leader, he was offered a 24% increase in his salary. The Respondent has asserted that 
this 24% increase comprises of a 13% increase for the new role of Team Leader; a 6% 
compensation for shift allowance in base pay considering an approximately 4% inconvenience 
allowance in the new role; and more importantly, a 5% compensation in base salary for the 
bonus incentive in transferring from MLP to the PRO job band.

Therefore, as the post of Team Leader falls under the PRO job band, which implies a 
10% bonus incentive, OBS Mauritius has compensated Mr Jugroo for the 5% loss in the 15% 
bonus he previously received as Level 2 Messaging & MS Exchange Specialist by consolidating 
the percentage loss in his new salary as Team Leader. Therefore, Mr Jugroo now receives 10% 
bonus, which is performance related, together with inter alia a 5% increase in his salary of 
Team Leader to compensate for the 5% reduction in the bonus he previously received.

Although Mr Jugroo has stated that he was unaware of the breakdown of the 24% salary 
increase in the post of Team Leader until being informed of same at conciliation meetings held 
at the CCM, Mr Quirin has in his unflinching evidence to the Tribunal clearly stated that Mr 
Jugroo was explained the breakdown of the increase in salary at the feedback interview of 1 
June 2015, where salary conditions of the new post were the principal subject discussed 
between him and Mr Jugroo. Mrs Kevan has also throughout maintained that Mr Jugroo was 
explained of the breakdown of the 24% increase by Mr Quirin. The grievance email dated 25 
July 2017 from Mr Jugroo also mentions (at paragraph 5. b. iii. of same) that the Head of 
Department and Manager in a meeting on 24 July 2017 "pointed out that the job promotion 
package proposed at the time was inclusive of ALL benefits & allowances "forfeited", namely 
shift allowance at 10% of basic salary, 5% taken off MLP bonus plan and 9% as effective job 
promotion increase", which shows that Mr Jugroo was given a notion of the breakdown prior 
to meetings at the CCM. Mr Jugroo also admitted that he was verbally told of the breakdown of 
the 24% increase in his salary by Mrs Nursimloo and Mr Quirin around 22 September 2015.

In the circumstances, the Tribunal has no hesitation in accepting the evidence of the 
Respondent on this issue. Thus, it cannot be said that Mr Jugroo has suffered a loss in the 
percentage rate of the bonus on assuming his new role as Team Leader.
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Moreover, in considering that Mr Jugroo has been compensated for the loss of bonus in 
the post of Team Leader, it cannot be said that OBS Mauritius has not respected its own 
transfer policy in the case of Mr Jugroo assuming the post of Team Leader. The Global Transfer 
Policy, as produced by the Disputant, has notably provided:

Continuity of Service will be preserved with respect to employment rights and 
every effort should be made to maintain or preserve benefits where rights have 
accrued as a result of service with an Orange Business Services or Orange 
Group Company, e.g. pension, shares, etc

Counsel for the Disputant has submitted that for the bonus to be due and demandable, 
it must be Constance in payment and have f/x/te dans le montant relying on the authority of The 
New Mauritius Hotels Group v Benoit [1982 MR 109], Counsel for the Respondent has 
concurred that for the bonus to be considered as usage and therefore as an acquired right, it 
must possess the characteristics of generality, Constance et fixite. The Respondent however 
denies that the bonus holds these attributes.

The Tribunal in considering the nature of the bonus incentive paid to Mr Jugroo has 
found same to be performance related, as stipulated in the contract of employment, variable in 
nature as well as discretionary. It would be useful to note what J. Pelissier, G. Auzero and E. 
Dockes in Droit du travail, Precis Dalloz, 26e edition, note 862 have stated in relation to the 
criteria of fixite:

Fixite : cette exigence prive de caractere obligatoire des versements variables dans leur 
montant et leur mode de calcul parce qu'elle revele un choix chaque fois singulier, 
indice d'animus donandi. Un employeur pouvait done, en variant chaque annee le 
montant du versement, lui conserver son caractere de gratification-liberalite.

Furthermore, the following may be noted from Jurisclasseur Travail Traite Fasc 1-20: 
Usages ler Mai 2012, as submitted by Counsel for the Respondent, in relation to the same 
criteria:

d) Fixite

18. - Notion de fixite - Pour caracteriser un usage, I'avantage alloue doit etre fixe 
dans son montant, a defaut dans ses modalites de calcul, e'est-a-dire sans reference a 
des facteurs subjectifs lies au comportement des salaries (comportement, aptitude 
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professionnelle, etc.) ou aleatoires (devolution des resultats ou de la tresorerie de 
I'entreprise, etc.)

20. - Pratiques non reconnues fixes - Ne repond pas au caractere de fixite 
permettant de caracteriser un usage :

une prime dont le montant etait determine, pour partie, en fonction de 
/'aptitude professionnelle et de I'absenteisme de chaque salarie (Cass. 
Soc., 22 janv. 1981, n° 79-40.050: Bull. civ. 1981, V, n°56);
une prime versee aux salaries suivant un mode de calcul defini par 
I'employeur en fonction de leur attitude professionnelle et de leur assiduite 
dont le montant etait fixe par le conseil d'administration en fonction des 
resultats de I'entreprise (Cass. Soc., 20 oct. 1982, n° 80-41.143 : Bull, civ 
1982, V, n°560);

It cannot therefore be said that the bonus incentive scheme of OBS Mauritius meets 
inter alia the criteria of fixite in its payment as same depends on the performance factors 
relating to the three components of the bonus incentive. Although the percentage rate of the 
bonus may be fixed, the payment of its amount is variable according to the performance of its 
three components. The bonus incentive would thus fall short of being an usage or an acquired 
right as is being contended by the Disputant. . <

The Tribunal, having notably considered the nature of the bonus incentive, that Mr 4 ,: 
Jugroo has been compensated for the 5% loss in his bonus on assuming his new role of Team 
Leader in the 24% increase of salary and whether the bonus is an acquired right, cannot ■ ;
therefore find that OBS Mauritius should pay him a 15% bonus incentive instead of 10% '
annually. ?'

In the circumstances, the Tribunal cannot award that OBS Mauritius should classify Mr 
Jugroo in the MLP job band instead of PRO following his move to the post of Team Leader and \ 
pay him 15% bonus incentive instead of 10% annually. >

The dispute is therefore set aside.
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SD Shameer Janhangeer 
(Vice-President)

SD Vijay Kumar Mohit 
(Member)

SD Andy Ryan Hau Kee Hee 
(Member)

SD Ghianeswar Gokhool 
(Member)

Date: 23rd March 2018
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Preamble

Mission

(i) “To efficiently and effectively exercise and enforce the collection and distribution of 
royalties for the benefit of its members.”

(ii) “To play a leading role in the African region and in the unification of African cultural 
actors especially with the challenges brought by a more high-tech era.”

Vision

“To make arts and culture the vector boosting cultural diversity, through better promotion 
and protection of artists’ interests, as an impetus of economic development.”

Objectives

(i) “To professionally administer with excellence the Copyrights and Neighbouring rights 
of Rights Owners.”

(ii) “To represent, defend and maximise the interest of all creators of Artistic, Literary and 
scientific works so that they are duly remunerated.”

(iii) “To enable its members / creators to contribute in a sustainable cultural industry in 
Mauritius.”

Values

(i) “To promote a culture of quality, transparency, integrity and honesty within the 
Copyright and Neighbouring right area.”

(ii) “To inculcate a passion for excellence in all it does.
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MAURITIUS SOCIETY OF AUTHORS
STATUTE 2018

Statute made for the organization, administration and management of the Mauritius Society of 
Authors (MASA).
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MAURITIUS SOCIETY OF AUTHORS
STATUTES 2018

Section 1 - Name

The Society shall bear the name of:

Mauritius Society of Authors” and hereinafter referred to as “MASA”.

Section 2 - Interpretation

“Associate member” means:

A person who is a copyright owner in respect of a work satisfying the criteria for 
membership but who has deposited a work which had not yet generated economic rights up to 
rupees 50,000/-;

“Author” means the natural people who created the work;

“BIEM” means Bureau International des Societes gerant les Droits d’Enregistremeht et de 
Reproduction Mecanique ;

“Board” means the Board of Mauritius Society of Authors - MASA;

“CISAC” means International Confederation of Societies of Authors and Composers;

“Copyright” has the same meaning as defined in the Copyright Act 2014;

“Copyright owner” means where-

(a) the economic rights are vested in the author;
(b) the economic rights are originally vested in a natural person other than the author or in 

a legal entity, that person or entity;
(c) the ownership of the economic rights has been transferred to a natural person or legal 

entity, that person or entity;

“CMO” means Collective Management Organisation

“Equitable remuneration” means -

(a) such remuneration as may be prescribed; or
(b) where no such remuneration has been prescribed, such remuneration as may, in default 

of agreement between the relevant parties, be determined by a recognized dispute 
settlement mechanism or a court of law;

“Depositor” means a person having deposited an unpublished work which generates no 
remuneration;

“Dormant Member” means any member or associate member who has not received any royalties 
from MASA for five consecutive years;

“IFRRO” means International Federation of Reproduction Rights Organisations;

Page 1



24 March 2018 1129

“Mauritius” means the territory of the Republic of Mauritius;

“Member” means a person or legal entity satisfying the criteria for membership whose work is 
exploited and generates economic rights exceeding rupees 50,000/-;

“Society” means -Mauritius Society of Authors-MASA;

“WIPO” means World Intellectual Property Organisation;

“Work” means a production in the musical, artistic, literary, dramatic, audio-visual, visual art, 
photographic, lecture, scientific and computer programs;

Section 3 - Legal Domicile

3.1. MASA shall have its legal domicile at MASA House, Avenue des Artistes, Beau-Bassin, 
Mauritius.

3.2. Representation

The MASA shall be validly represented by the Director or his representatives in any matter, 
litigation, suit, civil proceedings and/or criminal proceedings.

Section 4 - Assignments of Rights

4.1. Every member or associate member shall, on admission assign or cause to be assigned to 
the Society all rights to be administered on his behalf.

4.2. Each assignment to the Society pursuant to Article 4.1 shall be in such form as the Board 
may from time to time prescribe and shall operate for and during the period of membership.

4.3. (i) The rights to be administered by the Society on behalf of a member shall be those listed 
in Section 45(i)(a) of the Copyright Act 2014 and such other rights, or such parts of the 
rights mentioned in the aforesaid section as the Board may direct.

(ii) Any decision that the Society shall administer rights other than performing rights shall 
be binding upon any member at the time of the decision unless the latter contests, in writing 
that the decision shall not apply to him.

4.4. (i) By virtue of the assignments of his rights to the Society every member or associate 
member shall entrust to the Society, the sole power and authority to institute civil 
proceedings and report such matter to the police against all persons infringing the said 
rights.

(ii) If the Society in its discretion thinks fit to defend or oppose any proceedings taken 
against any Member in respect of such rights it may compound, compromise, refer to 
arbitration or submit to judgement in any proceeding, and generally to represent the 
members in all matters concerning the said rights.

4.5. A member may at any stage of the procedure in relation to any infringement of Copyright or 
any other law, require that an action initiated by the Society on his behalf be discontinued. 
He shall refund the Society any expenses already incurred therefor.

4.6. With respect to members of the MASA and those of the CISAC, each and every 
member/associate member shall be required to fill in the log sheet which will be used for its 
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distribution exercise prior to or after a public performance and return it to the Society within 
a delay of three months. The same rule shall be applied to event organisers.

4.7. (i) A member/associate member shall declare that he is the genuine creator of his work 
and guarantee that the work is neither a plagiarism nor a copy - in part or full - of some 
other works.

(ii) The member shall produce a proof of the work to the Society.

Section 5 - Requirements - Members/Associate Members

5.1. MASA shall administer the rights of authors, other copyright owners or exclusive 
licensees (hereinafter called “the right-holders”) registered with the Society and henceforth 
mandate it with such administration.

5.2. A member, associate member or depositor shall mandate MASA in writing, which 
mandate shall include the assignments or transfer of the rights to MASA for a determined period.

5.3. MASA is under no obligation of providing a mandate as at 5.2.

5.4. Membership/Associate membership may apply:

(i) In the case of authors, to all works that have already been or may in the future 
be created by them;

(ii) In the case of publishers, to all works on which they have acquired copyright;
(iii) In the case of heirs and their legal representatives, to the copyrights which have 

been transferred to them.

5.5. Works which an author or publisher does not wish to entrust wholly or partly to the 
Society may be excluded from the operation at 5.4 above.

5.6. The membership of an associate member shall be valid for all countries in which the 
associate member may enjoy copyright at the time when the mandates are granted.

Section 6 - Equal Treatment

6.1. MASA shall observe the principle of equal treatment in dealing with all the rights it 
administers.

Section 7 - Membership

(i) The membership of an author, publisher, producer and/or copyright owner shall 
commence on the 1st day of the month following the decision of the Board to accept him 
as member or associate member.

(ii) Membership shall within a period of three months be approved by the Board on the 
recommendation of the Director under such terms and conditions as may be decided by 
the Board.

(iii) For a publisher to be eligible for membership he should have published at least five 
Artistic, Literary or Scientific Works.
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(iv) Members are deemed to produce adequate documents for proof of works. In case MASA 
is not satisfied with the document submitted, the party should endeavour to resolve the 
matter.

7.2. Subscription Fees

(a) The Board may determine a membership fee to be paid at the time of application to the 
MASA.

(b) The amount for such fee shall be fixed by the Board.

7.3. Membership of the MASA shall cease by:

(i) winding up of business;

(ii) disposal of interest;

(iii) decision of the Board;

(iv) the death of the member or associate member;

(v) in case of gross misconduct and after disciplinary proceedings as provided in the Rule;

(vi) transfer of membership;

(vii) Resignation.

7.4. Resignation

Notice of resignation must be submitted in writing at least three months in advance at the 
registered office of the Society. All encumbrances and dues to the Society must have been cleared 
before any withdrawal by any member, failing which membership will automatically continue.

7.5. Dormant Member

A Dormant Member shall not have the right to vote or be entitled to stand as candidate in the 
General Assembly.

7.6. Membership - Conditions

MASA shall accept as members and associate members:

(a) authors/composers/arrangers/publishers/play writers/ visual artists and copyright 
owners who are -

(i) Citizens of Mauritius or
(ii) Resident of Mauritius for at least one year.

(b) Publishers having invested in Mauritius, provided that only one publisher in a publishing 
company shall be eligible for membership.

(c) Exclusive Licensees and Performers.
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7.7. Transferability

Membership shall not be transferrable.

7.8. Take-over of Publishers

On the take-over of a publishing house, membership shall be passed on to the transferee 
provided that the requirements for membership are fulfilled.

Section 8 - Administration of Copyright and Related rights

8.1. Administration of Copyright -

(i) MASA may offer its services to Copyright Owners of the Republic of Mauritius and 
other countries.

(ii) It shall ensure that the copyright fees resulting from the use of works can be 
collected with minimum cost.

(iii) It shall as far as possible, perform its tasks in collaboration with stakeholders in 
all areas of intellectual property.

(iv) MASA may authorise any applicant, in return for an appropriate royalty, the use 
of a protected work.

8.2. The economic rights (herein called “the rights”) to be administered by the MASA shall be 
determined by the Board.

8.3. MASA shall exercise all rights that are assigned or transferred to it. It shall be the competent 
body to deal with all legal businesses, to institute legal proceedings and to effect compromises 
regarding Copyright and Related Rights.

8.4. It may refuse such assignment or transfer of rights if the applicant fails to abide by or distort 
in any way or manner in the use of protected works, or if he is unable to offer sufficient guarantee 
for the payment of the royalties.

8.5. MASA shall draw up and publish general applicable fees for the various kinds of uses.

8.6. It may waive claims to such rights if, under special circumstances, it appears inopportune 
to assert them.

8.7. MASA shall safeguard such rights as assigned to it by authors, composers, publishers, play 
writers, visual artists, or any copyright owners or transferred to it by foreign societies.

8.8. For the fulfilment of its duties and objectives abroad, the Mauritius Society of Authors shall 
forfeit the rights assigned to it and transfer same to foreign sister societies.

8.9. The Mauritius Society of Authors may become a member of international associations and/ 
or organisations.

8.10. MASA shall administer over the whole world or such part or parts thereof, any works or 
parts of works, present and future, of which its members are the authors, composers, publishers, 
play writers, visual artists or any other copyright owners.
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8.11. MASA may exercise and enforce the rights of its members and/or any member of any sister 
society pursuant to the terms of any reciprocal agreement or contract now existing or which may 
hereafter be made between the MASA and such affiliated Society.

8.12. MASA may exercise and enforce rules governing copyright belonging to persons who are 
not members or associate members of the Society or members of any affiliated Society pursuant 
to the terms of any contract which may be made between the Society and such persons.

8.13. Every member or associate member shall, for and during the period of membership, 
empower MASA in writing:

(i) to authorise, permit or forbid the exercise of the rights to be assigned by MASA on behalf 
of the member;

(ii) to grant licences on his behalf for the exercise of such rights;

(iii) to collect fees, subscription, or monies whether for authorised use of any members’ works, 
or by way of damages or compensation for the authorised use of such works;

(iv) to institute and initiate proceedings against all persons infringing the said rights and, if 
the Society in its discretion thinks fit, to defend or oppose any proceedings taken against 
any member in respect of such rights and to compound, compromise, refer to arbitration 
or submit to judgement in any such proceedings, and generally to represent members in 
all the said rights;

(v) to protect generally the said rights in the member’s works; and

(vi) to delegate authority to do any act as aforesaid to any Affiliated Society and to any agent 
or representative in territories overseas, for the purpose of exercising the said rights in 
such territories.

Section 9 - General Assembly

9.1. The MASA shall hold an Annual General Meeting in addition to another meeting during 
that year and not more than three (3) months after the close of financial year.

9.2. No business shall be transacted at any General Assembly unless a quorum representing 
one fifth of the Member is present at the time of the opening of the Meeting.

9.3. Subject to clause 9.1, the AGM and any other general meeting shall be held at the time and 
place as the Board shall approve.

9.4. In case of lack of quorum, within thirty (30) minutes after the time appointed for the 
Meeting, the General Assembly shall be adjourned to a date to be fixed by the Board and 
which shall not be less than one (1) week but not more than three (3) weeks after the 
adjournment.

9.5. Each member shall have one vote in the General Assembly.

9.6. The General Assembly shall be presided over by the Chairperson of the Board and in his 
unavoidable absence by one of its members to be appointed by the Board.
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9.7. The General Assembly shall have the powers to:

(i) elect members of the Board in accordance with the Copyright Act and the Statute 
of the Society;

(ii) approve the accounts of the Society;

(hi) ratify the allocation of fund disbursed:

(a) In favour of members for their social welfare,
(b) For cultural promotion,
(c) For provision to the Provident and Benevolent Funds;

(iv) decide upon the administration of other rights and works;

(v) change, modify and amend the present Statute;

(vi) deal with any cognate matters put before the Annual General Meeting by the Board.

9.8. The Society shall call for a General Meeting with associate members and members once a 
year to review the activities of the Society and ratify a programme thereof for the following 
year.

9.9. (i) The date of the General Assembly and General Meeting shall be communicated to 
members at least one month in advance;

(ii) Pursuant to the above, the Board shall convene the members to the said meeting in 
writing at least 15 days before it is held.

9.10. The Board may convene an extraordinary General Assembly to deal with any urgent and 
important matters which it deems fit to be put before the Assembly.

9.11. (i) It shall be the Board’s duty to convene an extraordinary General Assembly at the 
request of at least 50% of the Compliant Members or by vote during a General Assembly;

(ii) The request shall be in writing and the holding of the extraordinary General Assembly 
shall be within a delay of 45 days from the date of the receipt of the request and shall 
include an agenda specifying clearly the matters or motion to be determined;

(iii) In case a motion has been presented for an amendment to the Statutes, the particulars 
of the amendment as well as the text to be modified and the proposed one shall be appended 
therewith.

9.12. Except so far as the law may provide the General Assembly with due quorum shall be 
competent to pass any resolution by simple majority except for the following decisions 
which shall require a two-third majority:

(i) the administration of other rights; and

(ii) the modification of the Statutes.
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9.13. (i) Unless otherwise required votes at the General Assembly or any other meeting shall be 
carried out by raise of hand;

(ii) However, if requested by the Chairperson of the meeting or one tenth of the members 
present, votes shall be held by secret ballot;

(iii) In case of equality of votes whether on show of hands or on poll, the Chairperson of the 
meeting shall be entitled to a casting vote;

(iv) Abstention shall not be counted as votes.

Section 10 - Voting

10.1. Election of members to serve on the Board shall be made during a General Assembly which 
shall be fixed by the Board.

10.2. (i) All members eligible and present at the General Assembly shall be entitled to vote at
any election held by the Society.

(ii) Any member may be represented by proxy.

(iii) The proxy shall be a member of MASA but can only be so for one member subject to 
Section 20 Para. 20.4(d).

Section 11 - Eligibility to stand as Candidate

11.1. To be eligible for election a candidate must be a member of the Society.

11.2. Subject to the following, no member shall be eligible to stand as candidate in more than 
one field-

fa) A member willing to stand as candidate in music category must have received 
royalties during the last two distributions prior to the date of election;

(b) For Literature and Journalism - candidates whose work has been published at least 
once;

(c) For Audiq-visual and theatrical - candidates should have deposited and performed at 
least 5 Audio-visual or theatrical works;

(d) For Publishers - Candidates should have published at least 5 Artistic, Scientific and 
Literary works;

(e) For Other Works candidates must satisfy the criteria fixed by the Board with evidence 
of knowledge and proof of work in any field on copyright matters other than the two 
above mentioned fields;

(f) To be eligible to stand as candidate, a member should be an active contributor to the 
Society as far as authors and related rights are concerned.

Page 8



1136 The Mauritius Government Gazette

Section 12 - Tenure of Office

12.1. The elected members shall hold office for a continuous period of 3 years and shall be eligible 
for reappointment and re-election for one additional term.

12.2. The Board shall hold the next AGM within three (3) months of the expiry of the three (3) 
years for election of new office bearers.

12.3. In case of death, resignation, disqualification of a member, and/or incapability of holding 
office, the Board shall, within one (1) month appoint a new member, not elected at the last 
election but who came out next on the list in his respective category.

Section 13 - The Board and Committees

13.1. The Board shall be the same as per the provision of the Copyright Act in force.

13.2. The Board shall consist of-

(a) a Chairperson, appointed by the Minister;
(b) a representative of the Ministry;
(c) a representative of the Attorney-General’s Office;
(d) a representative of the Ministry of Finance and Economic Development;
(e) a representative of the Ministry responsible for the subject of Industry and 

Commerce;
(I) a representative of the Ministry responsible for the subject of Information and 

Communication Technology;
(g) a representative of the Customs Department;
(h) a representative of the Industrial Property Office;
(i) a person having knowledge and experience in the field of Copyright and Related 

Rights, to be appointed by the Minister after consultation with such person as the 
Minister may deem appropriate; and

(j) 7 members of the Society, to be elected in accordance with the Rules of Election 
specified out in the Schedule.

13.3. The Chairperson and Members of the Board shall hold office as stipulated in this Statute 
and any other provisions of Law.

13.4. Each member of the Board shall have one vote. Members of the Board may not act as 
proxies for absent members.

13.5. The meetings of the Board shall be conducted by the Chairperson. In his absence, the 
Board shall appoint one of its members to chair the meeting.

13.6. The Board shall be competent to take decisions on any matter.

13.7. Subject to Copyright Act 2014, the Board may set up such Technical Committees as it 
may determine to assist it in the discharge of its functions as provided in Section 45A.

13.8. Each member of a Committee shall have one vote.

13.9. The Board may appoint any competent person in an advisory capacity, in the proceedings 
of a Committee.
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13.10. The Board shall nominate the Chairperson of any Committee among members of the 
Board.

13.11. The Committees shall meet whenever necessary. Three members of the Committee may 
at any time submit to the management a request for an urgent convocation of the 
Committee. The meeting must then take place within the next fortnight.

13.12. The Committee shall meet on the invitation of the management. Invitations to attend 
Committee meetings must be dispatched, at latest, five days (except in case of emergency) 
before the day of the meeting.

13.13. The Committees shall be competent to pass resolutions.

13.14. In the event of equality of votes, the Chairperson shall have a casting vote.

13.15. Members of Committees shall hold office for a consecutive period of three years. They 
shall be eligible for re-appointment for one additional term.

13.16. Members of Committees shall be paid an allowance to be fixed by the Board after 
consultation with the Minister.

13.17. The Board may appoint, and determine the composition of any ad-hoc Committee as it 
thinks fit.

13.18. All Chairpersons of Committees shall submit a report to the Board.

13.19. No member of the Board and/or Committees shall be absent from meetings without any 
valid reason.

13.20. Members of the Board or Committees representing the artists’ community having three 
consecutive absences or more without informing the Board shall automatically be 
dismissed or disqualified as member from the Board or Committees. Thereafter the Board 
will upon the advice of the Director appoint the next best candidate on the list of 
representation during the last General Assembly election, if any.

13.21. The Board shall appoint an Internal Control Committee which shall assist periodically 
the financial, non-financial and operational performance of the Society.

Section 14 - Responsibility of the Board

14.1. Subject to the Copyright Act and the Statutes, the Board shall be responsible for:

(i) Admitting and removing of members, as well as fixing the minimum amount of 
royalties for the admission of members;

(ii) Taking decisions concerning the distribution rules;

(iii) Dealing with all appeals lodged by members against any decision of the Director;

(iv) Preparing and convening meetings of the Annual General Assembly and 
Extraordinary meetings;

(v) Preparing and presenting of annual reports;
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(vi) Preparing and presenting of Financial Statements;

(vii) Supervising the conduct of business of the Society;

(viii) Setting up of Committees, Sub-Committees, Adhoc Committees and Technical 
Committees for the purpose of dealing with specific matters;

(ix) Designation of persons authorised to sign on behalf of the Society as stipulated under 
the Copyright Act, specifying the mode of signing;

(x) Appointing the Director and unless otherwise stipulated, fixing his salaries and other 
conditions of service;

(xi) Appointing the legal adviser/s and fixing fees to be paid and other conditions of 
appointment;

(xii) Appointing such staff under such conditions as may be necessary for the proper 
discharge of the functions and duties under the Copyright Act.

14.2. The Board shall meet whenever necessary on the invitation of the Chairperson. The 
invitation must be dispatched, at latest five (5) working days before the meeting except in case 
of emergency.

14.3. The Chairperson, or one third of the other members of the Board, may at any time request 
the urgent convocation of the Board. The meeting must then take place at the earliest time within 
the next two (2) weeks.

14.4. The Board shall be entitled to pass resolutions only if the quorum is attained. The 
Chairperson and eight (8) other members shall constitute a quorum.

(i) All decisions of the Board shall be taken by simple majority of the votes cast.

(ii) In the event of equality of votes for and against a motion, the Chairperson shall have a 
casting vote.

(iii) The members of the Board shall be paid such allowance or fees as the Board may decide 
after consultation with the Minister.

(iv) The Chairperson shall be paid a fixed indemnity on a monthly basis.

14.5. Appointment of Secretary to the Board -

A Secretaiy to the Board shall be appointed by the Board on such terms, remuneration and 
condition as it may think fit and the Secretary may be removed by the Board. The Director 
shall not act as or in place of the Secretary to the Board.
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Section 15 - Regulation of expenses and salaries

The Board shall regulate the general expenses of the Society and unless otherwise stipulated, fix 
the salaries and emoluments of all employees, in consultation with the Director.

Section 16>- Finance and Auditing

16.1. Subject to Section 48 of the Act, the Director of Audit shall audit the accounts of the 
Society each financial year.

16.2. Borrowing Powers

The Board may from time to time borrow, raise or secure the payment of such sum or sums 
of money as it may deem requisite for any purpose which it may deem expedient in the 
interests of the Society, but not so as to charge any right or interest of any member in 
respect of his works.

16.3. Financial year

MASA’s financial year shall start on the 1st July of each year or on any date as may be 
prescribed by the law.

16.4. The liabilities of MASA shall be secured only by the Society’s asset.

16.5. Any personal liability on the part of the members is hereby excluded.

16.6. Execution of cheques, etc.

All cheques, promissory notes, drafts, bills of exchange and other negotiable instruments, 
and all receipts for monies paid to the Society, shall be signed, drawn, accepted, endorsed 
or otherwise executed, as the case may be, by any two persons out of the following three 
signatories namely the Chairperson of the Board, the Director and the Chairperson of the 
Finance Committee.

16.7. Statement of Accounts

(i) All members shall be entitled to receive from MASA a statement of account for the last 
year of their membership and payment of the royalties due to them.

(ii) Members and associate members shall have no further financial claim against MASA 
over and above 5 years.

16.8. MASA will operate a separate and different bank account for each category of work so as 
to have a better insight into the dealings concerning these particular accounts.

16.9. This separate account system will enable MASA to deliver services only to those 
members/associate members who have contributed through their works to those 
respective accounts.

16.10. For any payment claimed in arrears, MASA shall apply a penalty fee of the order of not 
more than 15% per annum.

Page 12
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Section 17 - Notifications and Communications

Notifications by MASA shall be published in two dailies. Communications to members and 
associate members shall be by circular letter or by registered letter or through the medium of its 
bulletins or any other electronic and digital communication medium.

Section 18 - Distribution

The royalties collected shall be distributed by MASA according to the distribution rules of the 
Society.

Section 19 - Advances

(i) The Director shall subject to the approval of the Board have the power to approve 
advance, and any other expenses or allowances to a maximum of Rs 50,000 per item 
or to the limit that applicant can obtain.

(ii) The Finance Committee shall subject to the approval of the Board have the power to 
approve advance, and any other relevant expenditure as from Rs 50,000 up to Rs 
100,000.

(iii) The Board shall have the power to approve all sums above Rs 100,000/-.

(iv) In case of emergency, the Chairperson of the Board and the Director may approve an 
advance of not more than Rs 100,000/-subject to prior notification to the Board.

Section 20 - Rodrigues

20.1. The provisions of this Statute shall also apply to Rodrigues.

20.2. A panel of three members including a Chairperson shall be nominated by the Board to 
constitute a Consultative Committee for MASA Branch in Rodrigues in consultation with 
artists’ community.

20.3. This Consultative Committee shall:

(a) Meet once every three month in presence of the Officer who will act as Secretary for 
the purpose of the meeting and licensing officer;

(b) Monitor the implementation of policy decisions decided by the Board;

(c) Meet other organisations in Rodrigues in pursuance of the objectives of the Society;

(d) Hold an Annual Members Assembly in Rodrigues at least one month before the Annual 
General Assembly in Mauritius and submit any suggestion and, or recommendation 
to the Board.

20.4. Members Assembly in Rodrigues:

(a) The Members Assembly shall consist only of Members of MASA who have satisfied 
the provisions of the Statutes;

Page 13
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(b) The Members Assembly shall meet once a year and shall be presided over by the 
Chairperson of the Consultative Committee;

(c) The Chairperson of the Consultative Committee shall report back on the activities 
in Rodrigues during the General Assembly in Mauritius;

(d) The representative shall hold power to vote as proxy on behalf of Members in 
Rodrigues;

(e) The Chairperson of the Consultative Committee shall regularly report to the 
Chairperson of the Board through the Director on all matters pertaining to the policy 
and objectives of the Society;

(f) Employee/s working in Rodrigues MASA Branch shall be under the administrative 
responsibility of the Director and shall report directly to the Director of the Society.

Section 21 - Appointment of Director

22.1. The Board shall appoint a Director.

22.2. Duties and Powers:

(a) The Director shall be responsible for the general administration and management of 
MASA.

(b) The Director shall be accountable to the Board and shall be present in an advisory 
capacity at all the meetings of the General Assembly, the Board and Committees;

(c) The Director shall prepare business to be submitted to the General Assembly, the Board 
and Committees. He shall ensure that all decisions are effectively implemented;

(d) The Director may be assisted by such staff that may be assigned to him by the Board;

(e) The Director may delegate to any other person all such of his administrative powers as 
aforesaid as he may deem necessary for the full and proper administration of the affairs 
of MASA.

(f) The Director or his representative shall represent the interest of MASA for all national 
and international affairs pertaining to the objectives and functions of the Society.

Section 22 - Litigation

Pending proceedings - continuation of control of rights

If any proceedings have been instituted by or against the Society in respect of a member’s work, 
either in the name of the Society or of the member and such member ceases to be a member 
during the proceedings, any rights which have been vested in the Society by such member, or 
are controlled by the Society by virtue of his membership, shall remain so vested or controlled 
until such proceedings are finally disposed of.
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Section 23 - Miscellaneous

23.1. Deceased Member

A death grant as may be decided by the Board will be payable, from the Benevolent Fund, to 
his/her heirs after the death of a member. For their dealings with MASA, heirs shall appoint only 
one representative to act on their behalf.

23.2. Written Resolution

23.2.1. A resolution in writing, signed by all duly appointed Board members shall be deemed to 
be valid instrument as if it has been passed in a proper meeting.

23.2.2. Notice of a proposed written resolution must indicate the delay by which it is proposed 
that the Board members should adopt it.

23.2.3. If it is convenient, written resolutions could be a single document, signed by each 
member.

Date: .........................................................
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APPENDIX
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APPENDIX 1

Mauritius Society of Authors - MASA

Pursuant to the authority given by Section 23.2 of the MASA’ Statutes, we, the 
undersigned, Board members duly entitled to receive notice of Board meeting, hereby 
resolve:

THAT

(INSERT RESOLUTION)

Dated this......... day of....... 20xx

(Signature)
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Legal Notices and Advertisements
Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr & Mrs Vickram 
BHIKHAREE have applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change the name of 
their minor son Sulakshya into that of Sulaksh 
so that in the future he shall bear the name and 
surname of Sulaksh BHIKHAREE.

Objections, if any should be filed in the 
Registry of the Office of the Attorney-General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Dated 2nd March, 2018.
(Rec. No. 16/475034)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Hamid 
FANGOO & Mrs Fatemah Bibi PEERBUX 
have applied to the Honourable Attorney-General 
for leave to change the names of their minor son 
Muhammad Noor-Fah Bin Hamid into those 
of Muhammad Noor-Fah Peerbux Bin Hamid 
so that in the future he shall bear the names and 
surname of Muhammad Noor-Fah Peerbux Bin 
Hamid FANGOO.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the Office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
the publication.

Dated: 2nd March 2018.

Mr Hamid FANGOO & 
Mrs Fatemah Bibi PEERBUX

Applicants 
(Rec. No. 16/475004)

Third rt- Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr & Mrs Ashish 
DABEEDYAL have applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change their minor 
daughter’s names Grisha Lakshmi into that of

Yata so that in the future she shall bear the name 
and surname of Yata DABEEDYAL.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
28 days as from the last publication of this notice.

Dated at Port Louis, this 10th January, 2018.

Mr & Mrs Ashish DABEEDYAL
Applicants 

(Rec. No. 16/475006)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Marie Danielle 

Melissa PURAHOO, of 28, Stein Street, Beau 
Bassin, has applied to the Honourable Attorney- 
General for leave to change her names Marie 
Danielle Melissa into those of Bibi Sadia 
Yoosraliah, so that in the future, she may officially 
be known under the names and surname of Bibi 
Sadia Yoosraliah PURAHOO.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a 
period of 28 days as from date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Dated this 08th day of March 2018.

A. B. Atchia, S.A 
of 22, Lislet Geoffroy St, 

Cathedral Square, 
Port Louis 

Attorney for the Petitioner 
(Rec. No. 16/475042)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Nitin MOMPLE, 
residing at A3, Abercrombie, Les Salines, 
Port-Louis, has applied to the Honourable, 
the Attorney-General, for leave to change the name 
Nitin into those of Nitin Poran, so that in future 
he may be known under the names and surname of 
Nitin Poran MOMPLE.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within a 
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period of 28 days as from date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Dated at Port-Louis, this 15lh day of March 
2018.

Mrs K. D. Varmah
Room 405, Chancery House, 

Lislet Geoffroy Street, 
Port-Louis 

Attorney for the Petitioner 
(Rec. No. 16/475115)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Ms Diptee 

GEERDHARRY has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change her name 
Diptee into those of Zoyah Bibi Jannat Adeelah 
so that in the future she shall bear the names 
and surname of Zoyah Bibi Jannat Adeelah 
GEERDHARRY.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Dated: 20 February 2018.

Ms Diptee GEERDHARRY 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 16/475083)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Mohammad 

Rumi Mahmood ADAM of Royal Park, Lot 164 
B, Humber Lane, Balaclava, have applied to the 
Honourable Attorney-General for leave to change 
his names Mohammad Rumi Mahmood into that 
of Rumi so that in the future he shall bear the name 
and surname of Rumi ADAM.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the Office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
the publication.

Dated: 1st March 2018.

Mr Mohammad Rumi Mahmood ADAM
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 16/475065)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr & Mrs 

Beekram Sarju have applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change their minor 
son’s name Siddhesh into that of Mivaan so that 
in the future he shall bear the name and surname 
of Mivaan Sarju.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Date: March 2018.

Mr & Mrs Beekram Sarju 
Applicant

(Rec. No. 16/475061)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mahendranath 
GYA has applied to the Honourable Attorney- 
General for leave to change his surname GYA into 
that of GAYA so that in the future he shall bear the 
name and surname of Mahendranath GAYA.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
28 days as from the last publication of this notice.

Dated this 8th March, 2018.

Mahendranath GYA 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 16/475164)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Noel Jean-Claude 
Vinay, of 60, Gleneagles Road, Greenslide, 
Johannesburg, Republic of South Africa, has 
applied to the Honourable, The Attorney-General, 
for leave to change his surname “Vinay” into those 
of “St. Clair-Vinay”, so that in future he may bear 
the name and surname of “Noel Jean-Claude St. 
Clair-Vinay”.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the Office of the Attorney-General,
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within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Dated at Port Louis, this 20th March, 2018.

A. Rajah 
of 56, Sir William Newton Street, 

Port Louis.
Petitioner’s Attorney

(Rec. No. 16/475179)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Ms Manevi 

MURUGESAN has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change her name 
and surname Manevi MURUGESAN into those 
of Begum Kouraisha GHOORAH so that in the 
future she shall bear the names and surname of 
Begum Kouraisha GHOORAH.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
28 days as from the last publication of this notice.

Dated this 2nd March, 2018.

Manevi MURUGESAN (Ms) 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 16/475190)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr 

Lakshmeekumaara AWOOTAR has applied 
to the Honourable Attorney-General for leave to 
change his name Lakshmeekumaara into that of 
Avnish so that in the future he shall bear the name 
and surname of Avnish AWOOTAR.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Dated: 27 February 2018
(Rec. No. 16/475123)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mrs Jaggadambal
PATTEN (born MOOTOOCURPEN) has 

applied to the Honourable Attorney-General for 
leave to change her name Jaggadambal into that of 
Maya so that in the future she shall bear the name 
and surname of Maya MOOTOOCURPEN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Dated: 8 March 2018

(Rec. No. 16/475121)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Mohammad 
Hamil KAREEMUN has applied to the 
Honourable Attorney-General for leave to 
change his name Mohammad Hamil into those 
of Mohammad Aamir Hussein so that in the 
future he shall bear the names and surname of 
Mohammad Aamir Hussein KAREEMUN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Dated: 8 March 2018

(Rec. No. 16/475154)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr & Mrs Vikash 
MULLOO of Birla Road, Cottage, have applied 
to the Honourable Attorney-General for leave to 
change the name of their minor son Harsh into 
those of Yog Yura so that in the future he shall bear 
the names and surname of Yog Yura MULLOO.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the Office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
the publication.

Dated: 1st March 2018.

Mr & Mrs Vikash MULLOO
Applicants 

(Rec. No. 16/475150)



1148 The Mauritius Government Gazette

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Stephan Kevin 
CARDIN has applied to the Honourable Attorney- 
General for leave to change his names Stephan 
Kevin and to replace it by Baptiste Pierre Charles 
so that he may henceforth bear the names and 
surname of Baptiste Pierre Charles CARDIN.

Objections if any, to the granting of the said 
application should be filed in the Registry of the 
Office of the Attorney General within a period of 
28 days as from the last date of the publication of 
this notice.

Dated at Port Louis this March 2018.

Stephan Kevin CARDIN 
of 35 Residence Les Tarniers, Flic en Flac

Applicant 
(Rec. No. 16/475144)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr & Mrs 
Prameshwar GOOLJAURY, acting as legal 
administrators of their minor son, Mokshamsingh 
GOOLJAURY of L’Agrement, Saint Pierre, 
have applied to the Honourable Attorney- 
General for leave to change the name of their son, 
Mokshamsingh into that of Madhav, so that in 
the future, he may officially be known under the 
name and surname of Madhav GOOLJAURY.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a 
period of 28 days as from date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 20th day of March 2018.

Mr & Mrs Prameshwar GOOLJAURY
Petitioners 

(Rec. No. 16/475172)

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
05,h day of July 2018 at 1:30 p.m. shall take place 
before the Master’s Bar of the Supreme Court of 

Mauritius situate at Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, 
the SALE BY LEVY prosecuted at the request 
of LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION OF 
INDIA, a Corporation established under the 
provision of the Life Insurance Corporation Act' 
XXXI of 1956 of India, represented by its General 
Manager, having its branch office at LIC Centre, 
President John Kennedy Street, Port-Louis, 
against Mr. Rajdhani RAMPARSAD, of Royal 
Road, Petite Retraite, of the following immovable 
property:

Une portion de terrain situee au quartier de 
Flacq lieu dit Petite Retraite, de la contenance de 
202.35m2 et bornee d’apres un rapport avec plan 
figuratif y joint, dresse par Monsieur Thacoor 
Soobodh PRO AG, arpenteur jure, le 13/11/2003 
enregistre au Reg. L.S. 51/1582, comme suit:

Du premier cote, par Avenue des Kestrels, une 
reserve 1 metre de large entre, sur 14 metres;

Du deuxieme cote, par le surplus du terrain sur 
14 metres et 65 centimetres;

Du troisieme cote, encore par le surplus du 
terrain sur 13 metres 75 centimetres;

Du quatrieme et dernier cote, par Kishun 
GUNOWA sur 14 metres et 45 centimetres.

And together with all that exist thereon or 
that may depend or form part thereof without 
any exception or reservation and the whole 
morefully described in deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V. 5550/20 and PIN No. 1410090051.

There exists on the above described portion of 
land a concrete building under slab provided with 
water and electricity supplies.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription 
of legal mortgage upon the said property are 
warned that they must exercise their right before 
the transcription of the judgment of adjudication, 
failing which they shall forfeit such right.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 13/03/2018.

M. MARDEMOOTOO SA 
of 3rd Floor, Les Jamalacs Building, 

Vieux Conseil Street 
(opp. Port Louis Theatre), Port Louis. 

Attorney in charge of the sale 
(Rec. No. 16/475175)
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SALE BY LICITATION
Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 10th 

day of May, 2018, at 1.30 p.m. shall take place 
before the Master’s Bar situate at Jules Koenig 
Street, Supreme Court Buildings, Port Louis,the 
Sale by Licitation prosecuted at the request of 
Nokamah Bungaroo & Anor against Elama 
Bungaroo, of a portion of land of the extent of 
7 5%oo perches or 316.56 m2 situate in the district 
of Plaines Wilhems place called Vacoas and 
bounded Towards the North by G. Narainen or 
assigns on 17.68 mts and towards the West by 
Kistnah Narainen on 16.23 mts, together with all 
that may depend or form part thereof without any 
exception or reservations and the whole morefully 
described in the memorandum of charges filed in 
the above matter.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication, failing which they shall 
forfeit such right.

Dated at Port Louis, this 19th day of March 2018.

(sd) M. Iqbal DAUHOO 
of Cathedral Square, Port Louis.

Attorney in charge of the sale 
(Rec. No. 16/475174)

Kemp Chatteris

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 117 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009 

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INDIA GROWTH 
(MAURITIUS) LIMITED

(In Member’s voluntary winding up)

Notice is hereby given that on 2 February 
2018, a resolution of the sole shareholder was 
passed, whereby ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN 
INDIA GROWTH (MAURITIUS) LIMITED 
(the “company”) would be wound up voluntarily 
under Section 137 of the Insolvency Act 2009 and 
Mr Stephen Robert Konfortion, FCA, Registered 
Insolvency Practitioner, has been appointed as 
liquidator of the company. The commencement 
date of liquidation is 2 February 2018.

Any enquiries should be sent to Mr Stephen 
Robert Konfortion, FCA, Kemp Chatteris, 3rdFloor, 
Ceme House, la Chaussee, Port Louis, Mauritius.

Dated this 20 March 2018.

Stephen Robert Konfortion, FCA 
Registered Insolvency Practitioner 

Liquidator
(Rec. No. 16/475167)

Kemp Chatteris

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 117 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

GIP India Investment Ltd
(In Member’s voluntary winding up)

Notice is hereby given that on 9 March 2018, 
a resolution of the sole shareholder was passed, 
whereby GIP India Investment Ltd would be wound 
up voluntarily under Section 137 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009 and Mr Stephen Robert Konfortion, 
FCA, Registered Insolvency Practitioner, has been 
appointed as liquidator of GIP India Investment 
Ltd. The commencement date of liquidation is 
9 March 2018.

Any enquiries should be sent to Mr Stephen 
Robert Konfortion, FCA, Kemp Chatteris, 3rd Floor, 
Ceme House, la Chaussee, Port Louis, Mauritius.

Dated this 19 March 2018.

Stephen Robert Konfortion, FCA 
Registered Insolvency Practitioner 

Liquidator 
(Rec. No. 16/475167)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 117(l)(a) 
OF THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

Millernium Architects Mauritius Ltd
(In Liquidation)

(In shareholder’s voluntary winding up)

Notice is hereby given that on 08th March 2018, a 
special resolution was passed, whereby Millernium 
Architects Mauritius Ltd (In Liquidation) would 
be wound up under Section 137(l)(b) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009 and that Mr Nazeer Ahmud 
Bhugaloo, FCCA, ADIT Registered Insolvency 
Practitioner, has been appointed as liquidator of 
the Company.

Notice is also given to any person, who reckons 
that the Company holds property belonging to him 
or property in which he has rights should submit
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his claim in writing to the liquidator with all 
supporting documents in respect of such ownership 
or right by 30th April 2018.

All persons holding any property documents, 
books and records of the above Company 
are requested to deliver them forthwith to the 
Liquidator.

Further notice is given that all sums due to the 
Company should be payable to the Liquidator and 
receipts for such payments shall only be valid if 
they bear the signature of the Liquidator or his duly 
appointed representative/s.

All correspondences should be addressed to:

Nazeer Ahmud Bhugaloo. FCCA. ADIT
Registered Insolvency Practitioner
5th Floor, City Centre Bldg,
31, Cnr La Corderie &
Leoville L’homme Streets,
Port Louis.
Tel No: (230) 242-1111/ 242-3339 / 242-3340
Fax No: (230) 242-3061
Email: naz.bhugaloo@morismu.com

Dated: 20th March 2018.
(Rec. No. 16/475168)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 117(1) (a) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

ARM Private Equity International Limited
(In Shareholder’s Voluntary Winding-up)

I, Mr Shareef Ramjan hereby notify that:

I have been appointed as liquidator of the above 
named company by virtue of a shareholder’s 
resolution dated 08 February 2018.

The commencement date of the liquidation is 
08 February 2018 (date of shareholder’s meeting).

Any inquiries by any Shareholder or creditors 
may be sent to me at the following address:

My contact details are as follows:

Mr. Shareef Ramjan (FCCA)
C/o More Bheenick,
Telfair, Moka
Republic of Mauritius
Tel: + 230 460 9000
Fax: +230 208 9803

Dated this 08 February 2018.

Shareef Ramjan (FCCA) 
Liquidator

(Rec. No. 16/475134)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

GREEN-BIKE DISCOVERY (MAURITIUS) LTD

Notice is hereby given that:

(1) Mr Ruben Mooneesawmy, Registered 
Insolvency Practitioner, holding office at Unit 
12D Moka Business Centre, Mount Ory, 
Bon Air Road, Moka, has been 
appointed Provisional liquidator of 
Green-Bike Discovery (Mauritius) Ltd (the 
‘Company’).

(2) In compliance with Section 137(4) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009, a declaration has been 
lodged with the Registrar of Companies to 
that effect.

All persons holding any property, documents, 
books and records of the above Company are 
requested to deliver same forthwith to the 
Provisional Liquidator.

Further notice is hereby also given that all sums 
due, and/or payable, to the Company become 
payable and should be remitted to the Provisional 
Liquidator and receipts for such payments shall 
only be valid if they bear the signature of the 
Provisional liquidator or his duly appointed 
representative/s.

By order of the Board
(Rec. No. 16/475155)

CORPORATE AND BUSINESS REGISTRATION 
DEPARTMENT

Insolvency Service 
OFFICIAL RECEIVER’S OFFICE

One Cathedral Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis
Tel. No.: 202 0600

In the matter of:~
My Ref: SC/COM/PET/01286/2015

The Insolvency Act
and

mailto:naz.bhugaloo@morismu.com
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In re: Queenswear Ltd
(In Liquidation)

Notice is hereby given that the Bankruptcy 
Division of the Supreme Court of Mauritius has on 
13th day of January, 2017 at 10.45 hours, ordered 
that the above-mentioned Company be wound up 
under the provisions of the Insolvency Act 2009 
and that Ag. Official Receiver, be appointed 
Provisional Liquidator of the Company.

Notice is also given that the Meeting of 
Contributories will be held at the Corporate “and 
Business Registration Department, One Cathedral 
Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, on 
Tuesday the 27th day of March, 2018 at 11.15 
hours and that the Meeting of Creditors will be 
held at the same place and on the same day at 11.00 
hours.

Notice is also given that in case creditors having 
any claim whatsoever against the said company 
and for that claim to be considered, a proof of 
debt verified by an affidavit in accordance with the 
Insolvency Act 2009 must be lodged with me not 
later than 10.45 hours on the 27th day of March, 
2018.

Persons having in their possession any goods, 
chattels and other property whatsoever belonging 
to Queenswear Ltd are warned that they must 
deliver over same to me.

Dated: 20th March 2018.

V. Virasami
Official Receiver & Provisional Liquidator

(Rec. No. 16/475176)

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MAURITIUS

(BANKRUPTCY DIVISION)

In the matter of-
THE INSOLVENCY ACT

And in the matter of-
GERARD REX CANGY

Petitioner

V/S
SOCIETE Y. ALLEGARREE ET CIE

(hereinafter called “the Company”)

Respondent

In the Presence of-

1. - The Registrar of Companies
2. - Yasine Allegarree

Co-Respondent

Notice is hereby given that a Petition for the 
the Compulsory Winding Up of the above-named 
Company was lodged on the 09th day of March 
2018 before the said Court by the undersigned 
Attorney, on behalf of the abovenamed Petitioner 
by electronic filing under the Court (Electronic 
filing of Documents) Rules 2012. And that the said 
petition is registered as Cause Number SC/COM/ 
PET/00249/2018 and made returnable on Monday 
the 26th March 2018, for the Respondent to give 
its stand through the Electronic Filing System and 
any creditor or contributory of the said Company, 
desirous to support or oppose the making of an 
order of the petition, by making the necessary 
appearance by electronic filing either through a 
Solicitor or in person at the Public Service Bureau 
located at the Commercial Division of the Supreme 
Court of Mauritius, Jules Koenig Street, Port 
Louis, a copy of the petition will be furnished to 
any creditor or contributory of the said Company 
requiring the same by the undersigned, on payment 
of the regulated charge of the same or may be 
obtained on the electronic filing system.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 20th day of March 2018.

H. GUNESH 
of Block B, 2nd Floor, Astor Court, 
Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis.

Attorney for the Petitioner

(Rec. No. 16/475171)

Second & Last Publication

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that I, RAOUL JEAN 
PERCY STANLEY, have applied to the Central 
Water Authority for a ground water licence to use 
ground water from BH No. 881 at Beau Climat for 
Agricultural purposes.

Any person wishing to. object to the renewal 
may do so within 21 days from the publication of 
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this notice by lodging the objection in writing to 
the Authority stating reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:
The Water Resources Unit
3 rd Floor
Royal Commercial Centre
St. Ignace Street
Rose Hill

Date: 3/3/2018.

(Rec. No. 16/474897)

First Publication

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that Mauritius 
Gymkhana Club has applied to the Central Water 
Authority for a groundwater licence/renewal of 
a groundwater licence to use groundwater from 
BH No. 892 at Suffolk Road, Vacoas for non­
domestic purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the first 
licence/renewal may do so within 21 days from the 
publication of this notice by lodging the objection 
in writing to the Authority stating the reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3rd Floor, Royal Commercial Centre
St Ignace Street,
Rose Hill
Dated 14th March 2018.

Club Manager 
Mauritius Gymkhana Club 

Applicant 
(Rec. No. 16/475152)

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that we, The General 
Construction Co. Ltd have applied to the Central 
Water Authority for a ground water license to use 
ground water from Borehole SW 74D at St. Martin, 
Canot for industrial purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the granting of 
the first license renewal may do so within 21 days 

from the publication of this notice by lodging the 
objection in writing within the Authority stating 
reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:
The Water Resources Unit
3rd Floor, Royal Commercial Centre,
St. Ignace Street,
Rose Hill.

(Rec. No. 16/475140)

NOTICE UNDER ACT SECTION 9 SUBSECTION 
3 OF THE LAND SURVEYORS ACT 1979

Notice is hereby given that I, M. IRSAAD 
NUCKCHADY, Land Surveyor, at the request 
of Mr Sheik Ahmad SOHAWON, will survey a 
portion of land of approximate extent 4129.00m2 
transcribed in Volume 1985 No. 82, situate in the 
district of Riviere Du Rempart, place called ‘The 
Vale’, Grand Bay.

The said survey will start on Monday the 
09th day of April 2018 as from llhrsOO and will 
continue on the following days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties are 
requested to be present at the said survey on 
the aforesaid day and hour and to bring along 
with them all title deeds, plans and whatever 
like documents concerning their properties so 
as to enable me to establish correctly the limits 
separating the aforesaid portion of land from the 
adjoining properties.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port-Louis, this 19th March 2018.

M. Irsaad Nuckchady 
Land Surveyor 

of 4, Sir Virgil Naz Street 
Port Louis 

(Rec. No 16/475145)

NOTICE TO ATTEND SURVEY UNDER 
THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given that, I, Shalendre 
Ghunowa, the undersigned Land Surveyor shall at 
the request of Mr. Nankeswar Hujjaree proceed 
with the survey and fixing of boundary stones
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of a portion of land of an extent of four hundred 
and twenty six and twenty seven hundredths 
square metres (426.27m2), situate in the district 
of Flacq, place called Sebastopol and belonging 
to Mr. Nankeswar Hujjaree by virtue of a deed 
transcribed in TV 6811/5.

The said survey will start on Saturday 7th of 
April 2018 at 9.30 a.m. and will continue on the 
following working days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties of the 
land referred above are hereby called upon to attend 
the said survey on the aforesaid date and time and 
to produce to me or to any other Land Surveyor 
deputed by me in case of any impediment, their title 
deeds or any other document which will allow me 
to establish the boundaries of the abovementioned 
property.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 13th of March 2018.

Shalendre Ghunowa 
Sworn Land Surveyor 

(Rec. No. 16/475131)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 9 (l)(b) OF 
THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given that I, P. G. Bruno 
DUMAZEL, Sworn Land Surveyor, shall at the 
request of Mr. Zulfekar DOMUN (spouse of 
Mrs. Bibi Shamnaaz DINALLY) proceed with 
the survey and fixing o«f boundary stones of a 
portion of land, situated in the district of Savanne, 
place called Riambel and belonging to him as per 
title deed transcribed in TV 9131/55.

The survey will be carried on Thursday 12th 
April 2018 at 1 IhOO a.m. and will continue on the 
following days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties of the 
portion of land above referred to, are called upon 
to attend the survey on the aforesaid date and time 
and to produce to me or to any other Land Surveyor 
deputed by me in case of impediment, their 
relevant title deeds or any other document which 
will allow me to establish and fix the boundaries of 
the abovementioned property.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 28th day of February 
2018.

P. G. Bruno DUMAZEL 
Sworn Land Surveyor 

(Rec. No. 16/475141)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 9(l)(b) OF 
THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given that I, Mr Gangess 
Puran NAIDOO, Professional Surveyor shall at 
the request of Mr Sakkir RAGOO to survey a 
portion of land of the respective extent of 1 Arpent 
situate in the district of Grand Port place called 
Rose Belle belonging to them as per TV 850 
No. 204.

The said survey will start on Thursday 12th April 
2018 at lOhrsOO in the morning and will continue 
on the following days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties are 
requested to be present at the said survey on the 
aforesaid day and hour and bring along with 
them all their title deeds, plans and whatever like 
documents concerning their properties so as to 
enable me to establish correctly the limits separating 
the aforesaid portion of land adjoining properties.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis this 16th March 2018.

Gangess Puran Naidoo 
Professional Surveyor 

(Rec. No. 16/475165)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 9(l)(b) OF 
THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given that I, Mr Gangess 
Puran NAIDOO, Professional Surveyor shall at 
the request of Mr Yoshi Ruben Duprey GOPAUL 
to survey a portion of land of the respective extent 
of 183Z(P situate in the district of Plaines Wilhems 
place called La Caveme, Vacoas belonging to them 
as per TV 1592 No. 99.

The said survey will start on Thursday 12th day 
of April 2018 at 12hrs30 in the afternoon and will 
continue on the following days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties are 
requested to be present at the said survey on the
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aforesaid day and hour and bring along with 
them all their title deeds, plans and whatever like 
documents concerning their properties so as to 
enable me to establish correctly the limits separating 
the aforesaid portion of land adjoining properties.

Under all legal reservations.
Dated at Port Louis this 20th March 2018.

Gangess Puran Naidoo 
Professional Surveyor 

(Rec. No. 16/475165)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 42 OF 
THE FOUNDATION ACT 2012

PICANA FOUNDATION
(the ‘Foundation’)

(In Voluntary Winding-up)

Unanimous resolutions of the Members of 
Council of the Foundation passed on 19 March 
2018 in lieu of holding a meeting whereby the 
following resolutions were passed:

1. That the Foundation be wound up voluntarily 
under Section 42 of the Foundation Act 
2012.

2. That Mrs. Imalambaal Kichenin of JurisTax 
Ltd, situated at Level 1, Ebene House, 
Hotel Avenue, 33 Cybercity, Ebene, 72201, 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator and that 
her remuneration be fixed at a later date.

3. That the liquidator be and is hereby 
empowered to divide amongst the 
beneficiaries, in specie or in kind the whole 
or any part of the assets of the Foundation.

Dated this 20th day of March 2018.

Mirahbye Dhurma-Banarsee 
Member of Council 

(Rec. No. 16/475167)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 42 OF 
THE FOUNDATION ACT 2012

RAVELLOS FOUNDATION 
(the ‘Foundation ’)

(In Voluntary Winding-up)

Unanimous resolutions of the Members of 
Council of the Foundation passed on 19 March 

2018 in lieu of holding a meeting whereby the 
following resolutions were passed:

1. That the Foundation be wound up voluntarily 
under Section 42 of the Foundation Act 
2012.

2. That Mrs. Imalambaal Kichenin of JurisTax 
Ltd, situated at Level 1, Ebene House, 
Hotel Avenue, 33 Cybercity, Ebene, 72201, 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator and that 
her remuneration be fixed at a later date.

3. That the liquidator be and is hereby 
empowered to divide amongst the 
beneficiaries, in specie or in kind the whole 
or any part of the assets of the Foundation.

Dated this 20th day of March 2018.

Mirahbye Dhurma-Banarsee 
Member of Council 

(Rec. No. 16/475167)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 55 (3) OF 
THE LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given that the General Partner 
and Limited Partner of “Oxbridge Technology and 
Innovations Fund LP”, a limited partnership set-up 
in Mauritius having its registered office at IFS Court, 
Bank Street, TwentyEight, Cybercity, Ebene 72201, 
Republic of Mauritius (the “LP”), have pursuant 
to a unanimous partners agreement dated 14/03/17 
approved the dissolution of the LP in accordance 
with Section 55(l)(d) of the Limited Partnerships 
Act 2011 with effect as of 3 April 2018.

Dated this 16th March 2018.

General Partner 
(Rec. No. 16/475135)

APPLICATION OF REMOVAL OF COMPANY

Notice is hereby given that the company 
MORNING PRESS LTD having its registered 
office at Montage Ory Road (Next to Le Ravin), 
Moka, Mauritius is applying to the Registrar of 
Companies for its removal from the Register under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged 
in full its liabilities to all its known creditors and 
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distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
Constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 313 
shall be delivered to the Registered of Companies 
not later than 25th April 2018.
(Rec. No. 16/475153)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “PERIOTEETH 
LTD” has, by special resolution passed on 13th 
March 2018, changed its name to “Aesopus Ltd” 
as evidenced by a certificate issued by the Registrar 
of Companies on 16th March 2018.

Dated this 19th March 2018.

Aiglemont Conseil Ltee 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475151)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that ‘ADS Consulting 
Ltd’ has by special resolution on 27 February 
2018, changed its name to ‘ADS Learning Ltd’ 
as evidenced by the Certificate of Incorporation 
on change of name given under the hand of the 
Registrar of Companies dated 6 March 2018.

This 15th day of March 2018.

Sunibel Corporate Administrators Ltd 
Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475170)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Adenia Investment 
Ltd, a private company limited by shares, has by 
a shareholders’ written resolution dated 9th March 
2018, changed its name to Vronbisman Holding 
Limited, in accordance with Section 36 of the 
Companies Act 2001. A certificate to that effect 
has been issued by the Registrar of Companies.

Dated this 16th March 2018.

Mr. Feizal Moossa 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475184)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“SB GARAGE MECHANICS LTEE” having 
by Board Resolution changed its name, is now 
incorporated under the name of “DB MEAT 
PRODUCTS LTD” as evidenced by a certificate 
given under the seal of office of the Registrar of 
Companies dated 05th February 2018.

Dated this 26th February 2018.

Kavita Boholah 
Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475180)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that ‘ADS Learning Ltd’ 
has by Special Resolution on 6 March 2018, 
changed its name to ‘ADS Consulting Ltd’ as 
evidenced by the Certificate of Incorporation 
on change of name given under the hand of the 
Registrar of Companies dated 14 March 2018.

This 20th day of March 2018.

Sunibel Corporate Administrators Ltd 
Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475170)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “Management 
Hydrocarbure SA” has, by way of a special 
resolution, changed its name to “VALHAR SA” 
as evidenced by a Certificate of Incorporation on 
Change of Name given under the hand and seal of 
the Registrar of Companies on 26 February 2018.

Dated this 21st day of March 2018.

St Lawrence Management Limited 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475163)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “Global Petroleum 
Services” has by Special Resolution passed on 
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02nd February 2018 changed its name into that of 
“Imperium Fuel” as evidenced by a certificate 
issued by the Registrar of Companies on 26th 
February 2018.

Dated this 20th March 2018.

Vistra (Mauritius) Limited 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475158)

evidenced by a certificate given under the hand and 
seal of the Registrar of Companies dated 20th day 
of February 2018.

Dated this 14th day of March 2018.

Executive Services Limited 
Per Jean Benoit YENCANA 

Secretary 
. (Rec. No. 16/475132)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“ACTIV UNIVERSAL SOLUTIONS LTD” having, 
by special resolution changed its name, is now 
incorporated under the name of “Activ Solutions 
(Mauritius) Ltd” as evidenced by a certificate 
dated the 1st day of March 2018, issued by the 
Registrar of Companies.

Dated this 7th day of March 2018.

Activ Solutions (Mauritius) Ltd 
Director 

(Rec. No. 16/475142)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “RRK Holdings 
PCC” has, by special resolution passed on 
8 January 2018, changed its name to “RRK 
Holdings Limited” as evidenced by a certificate 
issued by the Registrar of Companies on 14 March 
2018.

Dated this 19 March 2018.

BTG Management Services 
(Mauritius) Limited 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475137)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Private Company 
“WeDo CREATIVE LTD” has by a special 
resolution passed on 6 February 2018 changed 
its name to “THE FABRIK DIGITAL LTD” as

NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF THE 
COMPANY UNDER SECTION 309(l)(d) OF 

THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“SD Leisure Management Ltd” a Global Business 
Category Two Company having its registered 
office at Unit 21, Circle Square Business Park, 
Forbach, Mauritius is applying to the Registrar 
of Companies for its removal from the Registrar 
under Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 
2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to cany on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 2001 
should be delivered to the Registrar of Companies 
not later than 28 days of the date of this notice.

Dated this: 21st March 2018.

Registered Agent
(Rec. No. 16/475162)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 309(l)(d) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the company named 
Synergy Petroleum Co Ltd having its registered 
office at Suite G13 St James Court Building, 
St. Denis Street, Port Louis 11411 is applying to 
the Registrar of Companies for the removal of the 
company from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Objections to the removal if any, should be filed 
with the Registrar of Companies not later than
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2 weeks from the date of publication of this notice.

Secretary 
(Rec. No. 16/475188)

Dated this 21st March 2018.

Secretary
(Rec. No. 16/475178)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Hercules Fitness 
Centre Ltd, a Domestic Company and having its 
registered office at Royal Road Midlands is on this 
22nd day of March 2018 applying to the Registrar 
of Companies to be removed from the Registrar 
of Companies under Section 309(l)(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the company 
has ceased to carry business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by not later than 28 days from the date of the notice.

Date: 22nd March 2018

Director 
(Rec. No. 16/475187)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT 2001

1. Notice is hereby given that the Company “GG 
Holdings Company, Inc” having its registered 
office at IFS Court, Bank Street TwentyEight, 
Cybercity, Ebene 72201, Mauritius, is applying 
to the Registrar of Companies for its removal 
from the Register under Section 309(l)(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

2. Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged 
in full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and 
has distributed its surplus assets in. accordance 
with its Constitution and the Companies Act 
2001.

3. Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 
2001 should be delivered to the Registrar of 
Companies not later than 21st April 2018.

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001 

Smartway Investment Limited

Notice is hereby given

(1) That the above Company holding a Category 
1 Global Business Licence and having its 
registered office at Rogers Capital Corporate 
Services Limited, St Louis Business Centre, 
Cnr Desroches & St Louis Streets, Port Louis, 
Mauritius is to be removed from the register 
of companies under Section 309(l)(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

(2) That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors and distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its constitution and 
the Companies Act 2001.

(3) That any objection to the removal under 
Section 313 shall be delivered to the Registrar 
of Companies not less than 28 days after the 
dale of the notice, at latest by 18th April 2018.

Date: 20th March 2018

Rogers Capital Corporate Services Limited 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475169)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001 

Trinity Capital (Four) Limited

Notice is hereby given

(1) That the above Company holding a Category 
1 Global Business Licence and having its 
registered office at Rogers Capital Corporate 
Services Limited, St Louis Business Centre, 
Cnr Desroches & St Louis Streets, Port Louis, 
Mauritius is to be removed from the register 
of companies under Section 309(l)(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

(2) That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, discharged in full its liabilities to all 
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its known creditors and distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its constitution and 
the Companies Act 2001,

(3) That any objection to the removal under 
Section 313 shall be delivered to the Registrar 
of Companies not less than 28 days after the 
date of the notice, at latest by 18th April 2018.

Date: 20th March 2018

Rogers Capital Corporate Services Limited 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475169)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001 

MIDDLETON INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

Notice is hereby given

(1) That the above Company holding a Category 
1 Global Business Licence and having its 
registered office at Rogers Capital Corporate 
Services Limited, St Louis Business Centre, 
Cnr Desroches & St Louis Streets, Port Louis, 
Mauritius is to be removed from the register 
of companies under Section 309(l)(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

(2) That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors and distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its constitution and 
the Companies Act 2001.

(3) That any objection to the removal under 
Section 313 shall be delivered to the Registrar 
of Companies not less than 28 days after the 
date of the notice, at latest by 18 April 2018.

Date: 20 March 2018

Rogers Capital Corporate Services Limited 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475169)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

TOP BRIGHT INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notice is hereby given

(1) That the above Company holding a Category
1 Global Business Licence and having its 

registered office at Rogers Capital Corporate 
Services Limited, St Louis Business Centre, 
Crtr Desroches & St Louis Streets, Port Louis, 
Mauritius is to be removed from the register 
of companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001,

(2) That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors and distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its constitution and 
the Companies Act 2001.

(3) That any objection to the removal under 
Section 313 shall be delivered to the Registrar 
of Companies not less than 28 days after the 
date of the notice, at latest by 18 April 2018.

Date: 20 March 2018

Rogers Capital Corporate Services Limited 
Company Secretary

(Rec. No. 16/475169)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

1. Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“UT HOLDINGS (MAURITIUS) LTD” 
having its Registered Office at IFS Court, 
Bank Street, TwentyEight, Cybercity, Ebene 
72201, Mauritius, is applying to the Registrar 
of Companies for its removal from the Register 
under Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 
2001.

2. Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged 
in full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and 
has distributed its surplus assets in accordance 
with its Memorandum and Articles and the 
Companies Act 2001.

3. Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 
2001 should be delivered to the Registrar of 
Companies not later than 19th April 2018.

Dated this 19th March 2018.

Secretary

(Rec. No. 16/475157)
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

1. Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“SOUTH ASIA SOFTWARE EXPORTS LTD” 
having its Registered Office at IFS Court, 
Bank Street, TwentyEight, Cybercity, Ebene 
72201, Mauritius, is applying to the Registrar 
of Companies for its removal from the Register 
under Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 
2001.

2. Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged 
in full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and 
has distributed its surplus assets in accordance 
with its Memorandum and Articles and the 
Companies Act 2001.

3. Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 
2001 should be delivered to the Registrar of 
Companies not later than 19th April 2018. 
Dated this 19th March 2018.

Secretary
(Rec. No. 16/475157)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

1. Notice is hereby given that the Company “Tiger 
Global Nine Holdings” having its Registered 
Office at Tiger Global Mauritius Office, Bank 
Street, TwentySeven, Cybercity, Ebene 72201, 
Mauritius, is applying to the Registrar of 
Companies for its removal from the Register 
under Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 
2001.

2. Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged 
in full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and 
has distributed its surplus assets in accordance 
with its Constitution and the Companies Act 
2001.

3. Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 
2001 should be delivered to the Registrar of 
Companies not later than 16 April 2018.
Dated this 15 March 2018.

(Rec. No. 16/475122)
Secretary

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

1. Notice is hereby given that the Company 
BRIC II Mauritius Trading, a Global 
Business Company CATEGORY 1 having its 
registered office at C/o CITCO (MAURITIUS) 
LIMITED, 4th Floor, Tower A, 1 Cybercity, 
Ebene, Mauritius, is applying to the Registrar 
of Companies for its removal from the Register 
under Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 
2001.

2. Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged 
in full its liabilities to all its known creditors, 
and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

3. Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 
2001 should be delivered to the Registrar of 
Companies of this notice, not later than 28 
days of the date of this notice.

Dated this 16th March 2018.

Company Secretary
(Rec. No. 16/475189)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Binger Management 
Ltd holding a Category 1 Global Business Licence 
and having its Registered Office at 4th Floor, 
Ebene Skies, Rue de L’lnstitut, Ebene, Mauritius, 
is applying to the Registrar of Companies to be 
removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
no later than 28 days from the date of this notice.
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Date: 16th March 2018

Mauritius International Trust
Company Limited 

Corporate Secretary 
(Rec. No. 16/475186)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that COLWAY 
INVESTMENTS LIMITED holding a Category 1 
Global Business Licence and having its Registered 
Office at 4th Floor, Ebene Skies, Rue de L’lnstitut, 
Ebene, Mauritius, is applying to the Registrar 
of Companies to be removed from the Register 
of Companies under Section 309(l)(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
no later than 28 days from the date of this notice.

Date: 16th March 2018

Mauritius International Trust 
Company Limited 

Corporate Secretary 
(Rec. No. 16/475186)

Dated this 24th March 2018.

LINLEY JUSRUTH 
Director 

(Rec. No. 16/475177)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that:
HEDGE & EDGE BUSINESS CONSULTING 

(HEBC), a Category 2 Global Business Licence 
Company having its Registered Office at St. James 
Court, Suite 308, St. Denis Street, Port Louis, 
Republic of Mauritius, is to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d)(i) 
of the Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with its constitution and the Companies 
Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 313 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to 
the Registrar of Companies not less than 28 days 
after the date of this notice, at latest by 14th of April 
2018.

Dated this 16th day of March 2018.

First Island Trust Company Ltd 
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 16/475139)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “ECO JET 
SOLUTIONS LTD”, is a domestic company, 
having its registered office at Block N102 
Residence Alpha La Tour Koenig, is applying to be 
removed from the Registrar of Companies under 
Section 309 (1) (d) (i) of the Companies Act 2001.

The Company has never operated and has 
discharged all its liabilities.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 
shall be made to the Registrar of Companies not 
later than 28 days from the date of this notice.

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Unique Way Ltd, a 
Company, having its registered office at c/o AAA 
Corporate Secretarial Services Ltd, 1st Floor, The 
Exchange, 18 Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius is to be 
removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 2001 on 
the ground that the Company has ceased to carry 
on business, has discharged in full its known 
liabilities to all its creditors and has distributed its 
surplus assets in accordance with the Companies 
Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 313 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to 
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the Registrar of Companies within 28 days as from 
the date of publication.

Date: 06 March 2018.

AAA Corporate Secretarial Services Ltd 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 16/475130)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mrs. Shavitree Rughoonauth of Tagore 
Lane, Le Hochet, Terre Rouge have applied to 
the Director General of the Mauritius Revenue 
Authority for the issue of a new Licence of Dealer 
in Liquor & Alcoholic products-wholesale in 
respect of premises situated at 52, Cocoterie Road, 
Roche Bois.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, c/r Monseigneur 

Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from the date published in the Gazette.

(Rec. No. 16/475124)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mrs. Indranee Foolchand of Ramphul Road, 
Melrose has applied to the Director General of the 
Mauritius Revenue Authority for the issue of a new 
licence of retailer of liquor and alcoholic products 
(off) in respect of premises situated at Ramphul 
Road, Melrose.

Any objection to the issue of the above 
licence, should be made to the Director General, 
Mauritius Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r 
Monseigneur Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, 
Port Louis within 21 days as from date published 
in the Gazette.

Indranee Foolchand (Mrs.) 
(Rec. No. 16/475173)
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of the Director of Audit

To THE COUNTIL

of The Mi nicipal Council of Curepipe

Report on the Financial Statements

I have audited the financial statements of the Municipal Council of Curepipe which comprise the 
balance sheet as of 30 June 2016, and the income and expenditure account and the cash flow 
statement for the six-month period then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is lo express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I 
conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions. 
Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

I rL Moor. Air Mmiriini'. Centre. John Kennedy Street, Port Louis Mauritius 
lei.: 212 2096-97/ 211 0882 Fax: (230) 2 I I 0880
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I believe that the audit evidence 1 have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Municipal Council of Curepipe as of 30 June 2016, and of its income and expenditure and cash 
flows for the si.x-month period then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in Mauritius.

Emphasis of Matter

Recovery of Debts

I draw attention to Note 3 of the financial statements in respect of debtors.

The General Rate Debtors figure of Rs 34,501,455 included long outstanding debtors totalling 
Rs 17,889,591, which related to years prior to 2013. Out of the sum of Rs 19,104,115 due as at 
1 January 2016, an amount of Rs 1,214.524, representing 6 per cent was recovered during the 
six-month period ended 30 June 2016. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Management's Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
described above, management is also responsible for ensuring that the activities, financial 
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the laws 
and authorities which govern them.

Auditor's Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility to express an opinion on the financial statements described 
above, my responsibility includes expressing an opinion on whether the activities, financial 
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are, in all material respects, in 
compliance with the laws and authorities which govern them.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my opinion.
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Opinion on Compliance

Local Government Act

In my opinion, in all materal respects, the activities, financial transactions and information 
reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the Local Government Act.

Other Matter

The financial statements for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016 were received at my 
Office on 13 October 2016. Following examination of the financial statements, various 
amendments were required. The final amended financial statements were submitted on 4 
September 2017.

Public Procurement Act

The Municipal Council of Curepipe is responsible for the planning and conduct of its 
procurement. It is also responsible for defining and choosing the appropriate method of 
procurement and contract type in accordance with the provisions of the Act and relevant 
Regulations. My responsibility is to report on whether the provisions of Part V of the Act 
regarding the Bidding Process have been complied with.

In my opinion, the provisions of Part V of the Act have been complied with as far as it appears 
from my examination of relevant records.

K.C. Tse Yuet Cheong (Mrs)
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14,
Air Mauritius Centre,
Port Louis

28 February 2018
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AMENDED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED 
30 JUNE 2016

Table of Contents

1 Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2016

2 Income & Expenditure Account 
for the period ended 30 June 2016

3 Cash Flow
for the period ended 30 June 2016

4 Notes to Accounts
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UIHQSHKT 
aj at JO June TOU

2015
Rs

Note 2016
Rs Rs

382,302,094.22
401.793.737.42

FIXED ASSETS
Capital Outlay
Other Long Term Outlay

2.01
2.03

323,738.599.00
407,455,353.00

784,095,831.64
241,500,000.00 ' Long Term Investment 2.04

731,193,952.00
248,500,000.00

1,025,595,831.64 979,693,952.00

1,415,476.94
82,871,953.94
6,928,473.00

89,343,802.35'

CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks
Debtors
Advances
Cash and Bank

3.00
1,843,821.00

84.561,995.00
6,853,95100

78,141,250.00
180,559,706.23 171,401,017.00

28,257,889.11
581,725.82

7,859,543.16
7,462,862.32

Less CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors
Deposits
Prepayments
Bank 4.00

30.476,867.00
511,19900

10,109,826.00
9,201,844.00

44,162,020.41 50,299,736.00
136,397,685.82 Net Current Assets 121,101,281.00

1,161,993,517.46 1.100,795,233.00

992.167.882.36
115,841,972.72

FINANCED BY
General Fund
Pension Fund

5.00
6.00

933,393,851.00
111,497,827.00

1,108,009,855.08 1,044,891,678.00

PROVISIONS

11,058,767.42
38,670,881.85

49,729,649.27

Passage Fund
Employees Benefit Obligation

11,961,860.00
39,734,889.00

51,696,749.00

30.8.2017

Amended Financial Statements for period 1 1.2016IO 30 6 2016
The Municipal Council of Curepipe
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INCOME AND EXP0IDM ACCOUNT

for the perid ended JO June 1016
2015

Rs
Note 2016

Rs Rs
INCOME

256,330.000.00 Government Grant-In-Aid 125,421,255.00
33,160,46019 General Rate 17,229,097.00
11,704,216.39 Investment Income 4,452,950 00
10,162,34267 Rentals 8,937,599.00

24,050,975.00 Fees under 12th schedule 12,502,175.00
6,934,762.30 Permits 2,650,554.00

11,247,202.43 Other Income 4,924,965.00
353,589,958.98 176.118,595.00

EXPENDITURE

189,104,538.36 Staff Cost 7.00 99,179,147.00
49,538.732.45 Supplies and Services 30,016,526.00

4,237,018.55 Transport Costs 2,070,210.00
29,026,802.97 Other Administration Costs 8.00 20,463,539.00

2,534,091.19 Social and Cultural Activities 958,309.00
1,693,000.00 Grants and Subsidies 1,973,700.00

29,144,689.83 Contribution to Funds 1,992,099.00
46.192,960.97 Pensions and Gratuities 32.016,038.00

351,521,83432 188,669,568.00

2,068,124.66 Deficit for the Year (12,550,973.00)

Amended Financial Statements • for period 1.1.2016 (0 30.6 2016
The Municipal Council of Curepipe
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(ASH FIOW CTATfMfNT
For the period endeiBO June 1016

2015 
Rs Rs

2016
Rs 1 Rs

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
256,330,000.00 Cash received from Grant-In-Aid 125,766,150.00

30,144.805.07 Cash received from Rates and Taxes 19,109,068.96
19,981,600.00 Cash received from Fees - 12th Schedule 11,082.350.00
22.105,701.41 Cash received from other sources 14,962,736.29

328,562,106.48 170,940,305.25
(82,926,657.92) Cash payments to Suppliers/Contractors, etc 59,561,773.55

(232,217,337.02) Cash paid lo and on behalf of employees 122,395,759.12
(315,143,994.94) (181,957.532.67)

13,418,111.54 Net Cash ln(low/(Outflow) from Operating Activities 1.017,227.42)

RETURNS ON INVESTMENT AND SERVICING OF
FINANCE

12,237,399.91 Interest received on Investment 6,673,535.58

12,237,399.91 Net Cash lnflow/(Outflow) from R.O.I and S.O.F 6,673,535.58

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(243,839,500.00) Investments made during year (153,200,000.00)
213,829,872.00 Investments matured during year 146,215,968.00

(3,124,887.61) Payments to increase Capital Outlay (3.711,470.37)
(11,768,093.22) Payments to increase Other Long Term Outlay (5,428,313.55)

643,000.00 Receipts from sales of fixed assets 700,000.00
(44,259,608.83) Net Cash lnflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities (15,423,815.92)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
50,237,595.49 Government Grants 6.825,973.45

6.825,973.45
50,237,595.49 Net Cash lnflow/(Outflow) from Financing Activities (1,924,306.89)

31,633,498.11 Increaset(Decrease) in Cash -------- J12.941.534.3 1),

Amended Financial Statements ■ lot period 1 1 2016 to 30.6.2016
The Municipal Council ol Curepipe
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»OTB TO A((081TS
100 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.01 The Accounts have been prepared on a historical cost basis in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 

and the Local Government Act 2011.
1.02 Sluck is valued on a weighted average cost basis.
1.03 No depreciation is charged in the Accounts.
1.04 All income have been taken on an accrual basis except for Permits, Suitors Monies and Burial & Cremation Fees 

which have been accounted for on a cash basis
1.05 A provision for baddebte of 15 % has been made on General Rate. 25 % on Tenant tax. 36 % on Rental Forum

2.0Q FIXED ASSET
CAPITAL OUTLAY

Balance @
01 Jan 2016

Rs

Additions /
Acquisitions

Rs

Revenue 
Contribution

Rs

Disposals, 
written oris & 
Transfers 

Rs

Balance @
30 June 2016

Rs
Capital Outlay Schedule
Computer Equipment 14,834,892.05 351,125 00 15.186,017.05
Buildings 223.978,640,10 2,091,205.00 73,809,90 63,837.630.69 162,306,104.39
Lands 2.206,238.00 1,045,019.00 3,251,257.00
Equipment and others 31,419,017.49 860,642.25 852.255.00 33.131,914.74
Traffic Centre 23,018,950.03 23,018,958.03
Plants & Vehicles 64,283,234.32 64,283,234 32
Childrens Recreation Parc 10,296.140.39 10,296,140.39
Crematorium - Bigarade Cemetery 11.573,531.03 11,573,531.03
Stele Sir G. Duval 369.200.00 369.200.00
Total 381.979,851.41 3.996,866.25 1,277,269.98 63.837.630.69 323,416.356.95
Housing Estates
Pitot 297,379.81 297,379.81
Curepipe Camp 24,663 00 24,663.00
Low cost Housing 000 0.00
Total 322.242.81 0.00 0.00 0.00 322.242.61
TOTAL 382.302,094.22__________________________ 0.00 323.738.599.76

2 02 Vested land and some existing lands were not accounted in the Financial Statements
2.03 Other Long Term Outlay Schedule

Drains 186.607.268.00 1.028,156.18 187.635,424.18
Streets 118.542.256.95 118.542,256.95
Upgrading & Land scaping 17,395.669-07 3.162.410.33 39.55000 20.597,629.40
Extension ofTown Limits 1960 427,325.73 427,325.73
Extension ofTown Limits 1963 40.280.59 40,280.59
Street Lighting 10.891.607.39 10,891.607.39
Footpath & Bridges 108.736.77 W36.77
Pavements 49,006.683.41 49.006,683.41
Sports Infrastructure 18.773,909.50 1,431.500.00 20,205,409.50
Total 401,793,737-42 5,822,066,51 39,550.00 0.00 407,455,353.93

2.04 INVESTMENT ANALYSED BY FUND
General Fund 
Passage Fund 
Pension Fund 
Total

143.500.000.00
10.000,000.00
95,000.000.00

248.500.000.00
2.05 Assets as from Rs,2,000 have been capitalised. 

•jnanmal Statement 2016:ipal Council of Curepipe Noles to Accounts Page }
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rotes to akoumts
3.00 DEBTORS___________________________________________________________________

Rs Rs
General Rate 34,501,454.66
Less - Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts (5,175,218.20) 29,326,236.46
Self Assessment - Local Rate 835,865.61
Tenant Tax 14,485,767.51
Less - Provision for Bad A Doubtful Debls (3,621,441,88) 10.864,325.63
Entertainment Tax 344,116.00
Rent-Housing Estates 59,250.00
Rent • Phoenix Camp Mineral (Jan Palach) 1,250.00
Sale of Residence Koenig 2,922.50
Lease of Land 414,170.68
Paid Toilet at Ian palache 196,000.00
Rental Jan Palach Commercial Spaces 233,246 50
Square Bruce Market 946,220.00
Bustoll 662,238.00
Rental Forum 1,031,550.00
Less - Provision lor Bad A Doubtful Debts (371,800.00) 659,750.00
Fees under 12th schedule 15,680,500.00
Trade Waste A Refuse Collection 367.300.00
Market and fair 15,327.123.56
Pubficity/advertising space 2.932,884.63
Interest Receivable 4,329.823.91
Sundry Debtor 218.40
Occasional fair square bruce 1,300.000.00
Debtors tor car loan 58,554.00
Total 84,561,995.88

4.00 BANK

Balance as per bank statement 30 June 2016 683,485.68
Unpresented cheques as at 30 June 2016 (10,177,813.06)
Prior year adjustment and adjustment for 2016 292,482.47
Balance as per cash book 30 June 2016 (9,201,844.91)

5.00 GENERAL FUND

Opening balance at 01 January 2016
Deficit for the year
Grant from Government for financing of projects
Contribution into the Cyclone & Natural Disaster Fund
Vested land and other land not accounted before
Payment of pensions for year exceeds budgeted amount
Sale of asset
Expenditure accrued reverted to revenue
GRF Revenue Contribution (Financing for purchase of assets from recurrent expenditute codes) 
Closing balance at 30 June 2016

992,167,882.36
(12,550,973.00}

6,825,973.45
25,000,00

1,045,019.00
311,350.00 

(63,837,630.69) 
8,090,410.00 
1,316,819.98

933,393,851.10

6.00 Pension Fund
Rs

:inancfal Statement 2016:iDal Council uf Cinupipe Notes (0 Accounts Page 2
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NOTES TO KWS
Opening balance al 01 January 2016
Withdrawal during the year
Additional contribution from savings under recurrent expenditure
Additional Contribution from Pension Fund to meet recurrent expenditure 
Additional contribution for past service liability (See note below)

Closing balance at 30 June 2016

115.841.97272

(4,032,795.31)
0.00

(311.35000)
0.00

Tm?497.827.41—

According lo the actuarial report prepared by SICOM Ltd in July 2016. ihe past service liability lor period prior to 01 July 2003 for The Municipal 
Council of Curepipe is estimated at Rs320.46 Million. Hence (he additional sums are being provided for future payment of retirement benefits.

PENSION FUND AT SICOM

A Defined Benefit Pension Scheme was set up in the PRB 2008 and the 18% contribution was placed in a Pension Fund as per LGA 2011 
Section 81 as amended. In January 2013 the contribution which amounted to Rs 79,657.500 was transferred to SICOM and monthly contribution 
is continuously being made to the fund.
The Merkel Value of ihe fund as at 30.6.2016 stood at Rs 140,143.061.77. Gratuities and pensions are heing paid out of the fund by SICOM and the 
Council has to bear Ute liability prior to July 2008. date of setting up the contribution Scheme.

Rs

STAFF COSTS
Amount Paid

Rs
Salaries 64,978,576  .00
Allowances 7.799.640.00
Overtime 6,091.141.00
Travelling & Transport 5,277,721.00
Uniform 2,292,252.00
Passage Costs 3.000.000.00
Pension Contributions 9.3116.209.00
Training & Other Expenses 353,600.00
Total Staff Costs 9J,179j4L00

8.00 OTHER ADMINISTRATION COSTS

This includes:

Legal & Professional Fees
Overseas Mission

312,880.00
257,959.00

financial Statement 2016 
dpal Council of Curepipe Nolej lo Accounts Page .1

(Rec. No. 16/475185)
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report of the

DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

On the Financial Statements
of the Municipal Council of Quatre Bornes 
for the year ended 31 December 2015

- NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE.
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Council of

The Municipal Council of Quatre Bornes

Report on the Financial Statements

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Municipal Council of Quatre 
Bornes, which comprise the Balance Sheet as of 31 December 2015, the Income and 
Expenditure account, and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I 
conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit 
Institutions. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence 1 have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified audit opinion.

14'i’ ploor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius 
Tel.: 212 2096-97/ 211 0882 Fax:(230)2110880
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Passage Fund - Rs 5,240,329

The ‘Passage Fund’ figure of Rs 5,240,329 did not reflect the actual liability of the Council 
for passages as entitlements to passage benefits have not been worked out.

Provision for Sick Leaves - Rs 16,738,550

The liability in respect of Sick Leave as at 31 December 2015 has not been computed. Hence 
the accuracy of the figure could not be ascertained as well as whether the provision would be 
sufficient to meet the sick leave liability of the Municipal Council.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion paragraph, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Municipal Council of Quatre Bomes as of 31 December 2015, and of 
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Management’s Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements described above, management is also responsible for ensuring that the activities, 
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance 
with the laws and authorities which govern them.

Auditor’s Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility to express an opinion on the financial statements described 
above, my responsibility includes expressing an opinion on whether the activities, financial 
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are, in all material respects, 
in compliance with the laws and authorities which govern them.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion.

Opinion on Compliance

Local Government Act

In my opinion, in all material respects, the activities, financial transactions and information 
reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the Local Government Act.
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PjibUc Procurement Act
KT
The Municipal Council of Quatre Bomes is responsible for the planning and conduct of its 
procurement. It is also responsible for defining and choosing the appropriate method of 
procurement and contract type in accordance with the provisions of the Act and relevant 
Regulations. My responsibility is to report on whether the provisions of Part V of the Act 
regarding the Bidding Process have been complied with.

In my opinion, the provisions of Part V of the Act have been complied with as far as it 
appears from my examinations of the relevant records. 1

K.C. Tse Yuet Cheong (Mrs)
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14,
Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS 

6 March 2018
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BALANCE SHEET 
as at 31 December 2015

Note » 2015
Rs -

FIXED ASSETS
|T417,826,289‘
’ -219,365,186

Capital outlay
Other Long Term Outlay

2.01

2.02

468,161,030
232,625,195

637,191,475 <

/■>'’3,415,899
74,334,342 

-v 147,609’

236,363,587
. . 43,765,949

358,027,3t

1,653, .
,8,579,39 

$$ 5,641;1, 
W -,4,493;71g

F327,659,7;

CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks
Debtors
Advances
Employee Pension Defined Benefits Assets 
Investments
Cash & Bank Balances

LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors
Income received in advance
Sundry Creditors
Deposits

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

1.02

3.00

1.06(b)

3,538,422
83,408,559 

115,494'
52,565,239

260,277,425 ‘L
34,763,658-

434,668,797

22,729,395'
6,335,1981 4
5,961,312-i /'
5,364,276'

40,390,181 '

FINANCED BY
General Fund

PROVISIONS
Passage Fund

OTHER BALANCES
Other Balances

T.-964,851,209

MRS J.S RADDHOA 
MAYOR

ft

980,

1,095,064,84*

V.SEEPARSAD 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

1
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7AICOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
For the year ending 31 December 2015

Note :*•  2015'

INCOME

Government Grant-In-Aid

General Rates

Investment Income

Rentals

Trade Fees

Taxes

Building and Land Use Permits

Other Income

EXPENDITURE

Staff Costs

Supplies & Services

Transport costs

Other Administration Costs

Social and Cultural Activities Expenses

Grants and Subsidies

Contribution to Funds/Provisions

Pensions and Gratuities

Surplus For The Year

4

5

1.06

4.01

1.05

1.04

1.08

2
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ending 31 December 2015

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

231f192,555 Cash received from Grants-ln-Aid

41;892,861 Cash received from rates and taxes

Cash received from Fees-8th & 11th Schedules33,195,000

; 32,747,706 Cash received from other sources
<' 339,028,122

&gsr -^76.864,960) Cash payments to Suppliers/Contractors

*:£ (234,066,609) Cash paid to and on behalf of employees

Net cash Inflow from Operating Activities.28,096,553

RETURNS ON INVESTMENT AND SERVICING OF FINANCE

Interest received on Investment

Net Cash Inflow from R.O.I and S.O.F

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investments

' . 20,200,623.

^>2P£00.623

? (64,785;000;00)

(22,227,605^00) Payments to increase Capital Outlay

(10,017,275.00)
’•'Wt
^5”^002,580.s

Payments to increase Long Term Outlay

Receipt from sale of fixed assets1

(961Q27,300)

^1813157390
' r. ' 4-

48;315,390

(29,414,734)
73,180,682 

''X43,765,948

Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Government Grants Received

Net Cash Inflow from Financing Activities

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash equivalents 
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at 01 January 
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at 31 December

3
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1.00 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.01 The Accounts have been prepared on a historical cost basis.
1.02 Stock has been valued on weighted average cost basis.
1.03 No Depreciation is charged in the Accounts.
1.04 All income and expenditure have been dealt with on the accrual basis.
1.05 Interest on Investments have been accounted for on the accrual basis and credited to the Income and

Expenditure Account.
1.06 Pension Obligations:-(a) In line with the Local Government Act 2011, our Pension Fund created after PRB 2008, to meet our pension liability as from July 2008 for municipal employees has been transferred to Sicom Ltd in January 2013. During the year 2015 our total contributions representing employer's contributions of 12 % and employee's contributions of 6% amounted to Rs 26,978,388.64 for Defined Benefit Scheme and for Defined Contribution Scheme Rs. 489,303.72.

The market value of the fund as at 31.12.15 stood at Rs 183,315,494.27 (computed by Sicom Ltd).
(b) FIGURES FOR IPSAS25 ADOPTION FOR YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015________________

Amounts recognised in statement of financial position at 
end of yean
Present value of funded obligation 
(Fair value of plan assets) (183,315,494) 

(26,688,552)
Present value of unfunded obligation 
Unrecognised actuarial gainZ(loss) 
Unrecognised transition amount
Liability recognised in 
statement of financial position at end of year

(25,876,687)

(52,565,239)
Amounts recognised in statement of financial performance:
Current service cost 
(Employee contributions) 
Fund expenses 
Interest cost 
(Expected return on plan assets) 
Actuarial lossZ(gain) recognised 
Past service cost recognised 
Transition effect of adopting IAS 19 
Total, included in staff costs

19,461,377 
(8,992,741) 

495,074 
7,705,419 

(11,104,218)

7,564,911

Movements in liability recognised in statement of financial position: 
At start of year
Total staff cost as above
(Actuarial Reserves transferred in) 
(Contributions paid by employer) 
At end of year

(41,530,354) 
7,564,911
(614,314) 

(17,985,482) 
(52,565,239)

Actual return on plan assets:
Main actuarial assumptions at end of year:
Discount rate
Expected rate of return on plan assets
Future salary increases
Future pension increases
The assets of the plan are Invested In funds managed by State Insurance Company of Mauritius Ltd. 
The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields on bonds.
FIGURES FOR IPSAS25 ADOPTION FOR YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation 

Present value of obligation at start of period

Current service cost

Interest cost

(Benefits paid)

Liability (gainj/loss

Present value of obligation at end of period

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at start of period

Expected return on plan assets

Employer contributions

Employee contributions

Year ending 31 December 2015

Rs

118,544,913

19,461,377

7.705,419

(1,651,612)

____________12,566,845

156,626,942

155,111,198

11,104,218

17,985,482

8.992.741
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Actuarial Reserves transferred in 614,314

(Benefits paid * other outgo} (2,146,686)

Asset gain/(lo$$) ___________ (11,345,773)

Fair value of plan assets at end of period _ 1^3,315,494

Distribution of plan assets at end of period

Percentage of assets at end of year 2015

Fixed interest securities and cash 58.1 %

Loans 4'3*

Local equities 15.9%

Overseas bonds and equities 21

Property ___________°~7%

Total 1Q0%

Additional disclosure an assets issued or used by the reportins entity

Percentage of assets at end of year 2015 (K)

Assets held in the entity's own financial instruments 0

Property occupied by the entity 0

Other assets used by the entity 0

History of obligations, assets and experience adjustments
Year 2015

Currency Rs

Fair value of plan assets 183,315,494

(Present value of defined benefit obligation) (156,626,942)

Surplus/fdeffcit) 26,688,552

Asset experience gainf(loss) during the period 01,345,773)

Liability experience gain/(loss) during the period (12,566,845)

(b) Regarding our pension liability prior to July 2008, no specific fund was set up for same.Followmg the computation of our pension liability prior to July 2008 by Sicom Ltd provisions were made in previous financial years for that purpose. In Financial year 2015, an additional provision of Rs 6,575,000 has been made in the Accounts to meet our pension obligation.
1.07 Pending Litigation 8> other obligation*  "Mlse en Demeure" has been served by the following Companies on the Counclk-

Mechanisation Company Ltd for non payment of Rs 429.614.40 together with interest and costs as regards to contract for supply of two tractors and three trailers. The above sum represented liquidated damages applied by the Council for delay in the supply of the tractors & trailers.
As at balance Sheet date the above cases were not yet resolved.

1.08 OTHER INCOME____________________________________

This includes:
Fees-Financial Controllers Department-Advertisement Publicity 
Library
House Refuse-Removal of Abnormal Refuse
Processing Fees
Fees Crematorium
Stock Adjustment Insurance Receipt 
Admission Charges 
Penalties >
Miscellaneous Income
End of Year Fair-Quatre Bomes
Scavenging Fees
Suitors Monies-Financial Controller DeptOthers

2.00 FIXED ASSETS 
CAPITAL OUTLAY

2.01 Capital Outlay Schedule Land & Buildings
Vehicles
Office Equipment, Furniture & Fittings

Computers
Plant & Equipments
Donated Assets

,290,967,351; •„*
'Ti.nofen .
•f1.79B.613 ■
19013.877

. 25,990,807

■amwzz..

'ijjos.tjar

•70,^79,773 
^,005908 

' 18 t<6,840 (J ■
23.1?>,4q8 

.i/. 184.095

5
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NQTES TO THE ACCOUNTS(Ctnd)

Others:-
- Construction of Fencing and Gates at Municipal Garage
-Renovation of Fish.Beef and Ofal Sections atQBomes Market “Embellishment of 22 Municipal Green spaces-Convert Part SSR Gallery to Archive section-Artificial turfing jonquilles Children Palyground -Renovation of sports Complexes Dev Project 2014- Upgrading of green spaces Dev Projects 2014 -Resurfacing and tarring at Palma Social Hall/Candos Market Thall/Yard -Construction of Children Playground at Ebene -Purchase of decorative led lighting-Small assets Minor Capital Projects:- Purchase of Halogen Bulbs at St Jean Football Ground
-Purchase of Rope Mgn & Power cord for decoration in Town Hall Complex
- Additional Turfing at Les Jonquilles Children Playground

2.02 Other Long Term Outlay Schedule Roads
Drains & Bridges
Street Lighting
Donated Assets
Others:-- Refuse Depots- Installation of lighting points Le Pavilion- Lighting at Town Hall Yard- Footpath & Handrails within the town

3.00 DEBTORS____________________________________ ______

General RatesTenants TaxCar LoanMarket & FairsTrade FeesScavenging FeesAdvertisementRentInterest AccruedOthers;-- Advances- Debtors Capital Grants- Sundry Debtors- Debtors Bustolls- Debtors GRF to TELETHON Fund- Debtors Lease of site for display -Miscellaneous Inc Debtors
113.034,SSf '

The total amount of Rs 14.6 m for Tenants Tax includes an amount of Rs 6.5m owed by Infinity BPO Ltd which might not be recovered as the company is in liquidation.A increase in provision for bad debts of Rs 3.34 M has been maintained in the Accounts in year 2015 for otherdebtors.Provision for bad debts is based on past experience.
6

^ ■35876,466.'. ^O^OOXXXk- • .jii.zw.ojo.
‘ f 13,791:033 ■. VI.800.00ft~ 26,200,245 ' ’ J / 5300,000'‘ M 027*37-  t ; . V
- , y,25p,865”- A15,132.904, . >, 'J,

•34890" ’ ! " f
.(186*67$  5’ i3.730 K ’«;• * ..
26 626' J. , ‘t 

i;’-V
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4,66 STAFF COSTS

SalariM a Wages
Bonus
Travailing
Overtime
Unifoma
Passages
Sick Leave
Others:.
Allowances
Training Reas
Staff Wetfora
Insurance-Employees
National Pension and Saving Fund 

Contribution to Pension Fund 
Contribution to Family Protection Scheme

4,01 PENSIONS AND GRATUITIES

,<152.450,16100 
^>.1^07,^00

:B XmMiNW10 £ ,S.«4',lHW
<’\J '. I J*4i4O7.OO : 

r'asa^ooD-oo
,» J<e J- «

8
fV'-’UO43SS.OO
« • ■ .71.72’00

I
> MSBSOO 
. . 48*118.00  
iVi.w.sis.'oo 
rfv!u4f?,IM<00-

Employees who retired as at 31 December 2012 
Employees who retired after 31 December 2012 
Total

Peqatone Pfid \
■ *■  » *1  a

- *•-  ■ - •»!

.■fflW-- ■...? 
2AM0,213.00 

„ 3,013,078 00
| W&Wltalit

6.00 OTHER ADMINISTRATION COST_________________

This Includes
Insurances
Advertising
Overseas Missions
Lsgal/Court Foos
Postages
Allowance to Mayor a Councillors
Othsrs:-
■Rent and Ratos
.Electoral Expanses Council
• Audit Fees
•Entertainment -Public welfare
- Entertainment-Municipal Library
•Entertainment ■ Council 
•entertainment > MOdlMeque
• Contribution • Council Subscription AHA
■ Publications

6,60 OTHER BALANCES_______________________________

thia Includes:
Provisions Cleaning Environment Day Llabllltlaa 
Provision tor Passeges-Llebllltles 
Provision tor payment of electoral Expanses 
Provisions for Pension Gratuities and Other Uabtltttes 
Provision ofr Rodent Control Liabilities 
Provision tor Sick Leave Liabilities 
Capital Receipt Unapplied Housing
Loan Reedeemed Capitol 
Loan Roedeomed Housing 
Provision tor Loss
Revenue Account Housing 
Telethon Fund 
others

(Rec, No, 16/475166) 7
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Council of

The Municipal Council of Quatre Bornes

Report on the Financial Statements

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Municipal Council of Quatre 
Bomes, which comprise the Balance Sheet as of 30 June 2016, the Income and Expenditure 
Account, and Cash Flow Statement for the six months period then ended and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I 
conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit 
Institutions. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial' 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified audit opinion.

14"’ Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius 
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0882 Fax; (230) 211 0880
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Passage Fund - Rs 5,345,136

The ‘Passage Fund’ figure of Rs 5,345,136 did not reflect the actual liability of the Council 
for passages as entitlements to passage benefits have not been worked out.

Provision for Sick Leaves - Rs 22,174,280

The liability in respect of Sick Leave as at 30 June 2016 has not been computed. Hence the 
accuracy of the figure could not be ascertained as well as whether the provision would be 
sufficient to meet the sick leave liability of the Municipal Council.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion paragraph, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Municipal Council of Quatre Bornes as of 30 June 2016, and of its 
financial performance and its cash flows for the six months period then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Management’s Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements described above, management is also responsible for ensuring that the activities, 
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance 
with the laws and authorities which govern them.

Auditor’s Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility to express an opinion on the financial statements described 
above, my responsibility includes expressing an opinion on whether the activities, financial 
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are, in all material respects, 
in compliance with the laws and authorities which govern them.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion.

Opinion on Compliance

Local Government Act

In my opinion, in all material respects, the activities, financial transactions and information 
reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the. Local.Gcivernrnent..Aci..
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Public Procurement Act

The Municipal Council of Quatre Bomes is responsible for the planning and conduct of its 
procurement. It is also responsible for defining and choosing the appropriate method of 
procurement and contract type in accordance with the provisions of the Act and relevant 
Regulations. My responsibility is to report on whether the provisions of Part V of the Act 
regarding the Bidding Process have been complied with.

In my opinion, the provisions of Part V of the Act have been complied with as far as it 
appears from my examinations of the relevant records.

K.C. Tse Yuet Cheong (Mrs)
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14,
Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

2 March 2018
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BALANCE SHEET 
as at 30 June 2016

2015 Note 2016
Rs Rs Rs

FIXED ASSETS
468,161,030 Capital outlay 2.01 473,264,930
232,625,195 Other Long Term Outlay 2.02 232,900,339

700,786,225 706,165,269

CURRENT ASSETS
3,538,422 Stocks 1.02 3,739,452

83,408,559 Debtors 3.00 88,504,350
115,494 Advances 135,265

52,565,239 Employee Pension Defined Benefits Assets 1.06(b) 57,426,807
260,277,425 Investments 275,277,425

34,763,658 Cash & Bank Balances 34,077,203
434,668,797 459,160,502

LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
22,729,395 Creditors 23,549,439
6,335,198 Income received in advance 6,173,685
5,961,312 Sundry Creditors 3,265,913
5,364,276 Deposits 5,306,171

40,390,181 38,295,208

394,278,616 NET CURRENT ASSETS - ’ 420,865,294

1,095,064,841 TOTAL ASSETS 1,127,030,563

FINANCED BY
-

980,522,060.00 General Fund 1,003,072,757.00

... ...., •>'
PROVISIONS

5,240,329 Passage Fund 5,345,136

OTHER BALANCES '■ - -S'
109,302,452 Other Balances 6.00 • ■ ■ ■ -S' ■> • . 118,612,670

1,095,064,841 . /I . ✓—__ 1,127,030,563

MRS J.S RADDHOA 
MAYOR

V.SEEPARSAD 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

1
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INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
For the period 6 months ending 30 June 2016

INCOME

237:576,000

43,458,833

' 12s86S851n

V',” *4^1^  '•“A »
>*:  Ml376;877:

fl5;33&hg9v

Government Grant-In-Aid

General Rates

Investment Income

Rentals

Trade Fees

Taxes

Building and Land Use Permits

Other Income

15362,289,330

<,„y>

t-5. 232,214,046
- J '» ’ -«sp*

j ,40,117,409;

• 9,229,403 •

9355,584': 

» ' - ->3,055,474 

I' ‘ 999,552,

* 21,004,091 

| 28,105,890

1 344,681,449

T 17,607,881’» . ______________

EXPENDITURE

Staff Costs

Supplies & Services

Transport costs

Other Administration Costs

Social and Cultural Activities Expenses

Grants and Subsidies

Contribution to Funds/Provisions

Pensions and Gratuities

Surplus For The Period

2
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the period 6 months ending 30 June 2016

2015
Rs -

,2016,
'frstk - Ks

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

237,576,000

& ^46,623,933

Cash received from Grants-ln-Aid

Cash received from rates and taxes

,830,7-|0-' Cash received from Fees-8th & 11th Schedules

,363,249- Cash received from other sources 
,39.1-922 ,

,857738) Cash payments to Suppliers/Contractors

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees
c,

356,302

548.732

{234,177,282)

,548,732

8Q4.Q0)

8,852

38,852

8,840.00)

Net cash Outflow from Operating Activities

RETURNS ON INVESTMENT AND SERVICING OF FINANCE

Interest received on Investment

Net Cash Inflow from R.O.I and S.O.F

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investments

Payments to increase Capital Outlay

564.00). Payments to increase Long Term Outlay 
r •»!'.
42,6^50 > Receipt from sale of fixed assets

Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Government Grants Received

Net Cash Inflow from Financing Activities

03,072) 
7765,947

62,875

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash equivalents 

Cash & Cash Equivalents as at 01 January 

Cash & Cash Equivalents as at 30 June

3
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1.00 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.01 (a) The Accounts have been prepared on a historical cost basis.
1.01 (b) The Accounts have been prepared for a period of 18 months i.e 12 months (January to December 2015) & 6 months

{January to June 2016) and the comparative figures are for a period of 12 months (January to December 2014).
1.02 Stock has been valued on weighted average cost basis.
1.03 No Depreciation is charged in the Accounts.
1.04 All income and expenditure have been dealt with on the accrual basis.
1.05 Interest on investments have been accounted for on the accrual basis and credited to the Income and Expenditure Account.

1.06 Pension Obligations:'
(a) In line with the Local Government Act 2011, our Pension Fund created after PRB 2008, to meet our pension liability as from July 2008 for municipal employees has been transferred to Sicom Ltd in January 2013. During the period 2016 (January - June) our total contributions representing employer’s contributions of 
12 % and employee's contributions of 6% amounted to Rs 14,898,916 for Defined Benefit Scheme 
and for Defined Contribution Scheme Rs. 380,568.

The market value of the fund as at 30.06.16 stood at Rs 201.762,037.55 (computed by Sicom Ltd).
(b) FIGURES FOR IP5AS25 ADOPTION FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Amounts recognised tn statement of financial performance:

6-manth period ending 30 June 2016

Amounts recognised in statement of financial position at 
end of yean

Rs

Present value of funded obligation 
(Fair value of plan assets)

187,687,287
(201,762,038)
(14,074,751)

Present value of unfunded obligation 
Unrecognised actuarial gain/(loss) 
Unrecognised transition amount
Liability recognised in 
statement of financial position at end of year

(43,352,056)

(57,426,807)

Current service cost
(Employee contributions) 
Fund expenses
Interest cost 
(Expected return on plan assets) 
Actuarial loss/(gain) recognised 
Past service cost recognised 
Transition effect of adopting IAS 19 
Total, included in staff costs

10,978,034 
(4,965,427)

342,416
5,090,376 
(6,201,231)

419,174

5,663,342

Movements in liability recognised in statement of financial position:
At start of year
Total staff cost as above 
(Actuarial Reserves transferred in) 
(Contributions paid by employer) 
At end of year

(52,565,239) 
5,663,342 
(594,056) 

(9,930,854) 
(57,426,807)

Actual return on plan assets: 1,238,780
Main actuarial assumptions at end of year:
Discount rate
Expected rate of return on plan assets 
Future salary increases
Future pension increases

6.50%
6.50%
4.00%
3.00%

The assets of the plan are invested in funds managed by State Insurance Company of Mauritius Ltd. 
The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields on bonds.
FIGURES FOR IPSAS25 ADOPTION FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation 
Present value of obligation at start of period
Current service cost
Interest cost
(Benefits paid)
Liability (gain)/loss
Present value of obligation at end of period

6-month period ending 30 June 2016
Rs

156,626,942
10,978,034
5,090,376
(164,691)

_____ 15,156,626
187,687,287
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Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets 
Fair value of plan assets at start of period 
Expected return on plan assets 
Employer contributions 
Employee contributions 
Actuarial Reserves transferred in 
(Benefits paid + other outgo) 
Asset gainZ(loss)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period

183,315,494
6,201,231
9,930,854
4,965,427
594,056
(507,107)

_____ (2,737,917)
201,762,038

Distribution of plan assets at end of period 
Percentage of assets at end of year 
Fixed interest securities and cash
Loans
Local equities
Overseas bonds and equities 
Property
Total

2016
58.4%
4.5%
14.6%
21.8%

_____ 0.7%_____
100%

Additional disclosure on assets issued or used by the reporting entity

Percentage of assets at end af year
Assets held in the entity's own financial instruments 
Property occupied by the entity
Other assets used by the entity

2016 (%)
0
0
0

History of obligations, assets and experience adjustments
Year
Currency

2016
Rs

Fair value of plan assets
(Present value of defined benefit obligation)
Surplus/(deficit)

201,762,038 
(187,687,287) 

14,074,751
Asset experience gain/(loss) during the period 
Liability experience gain/(loss) during the period

(2,737,917) 
(15,156,626)

(b) Regarding our pension liability prior to July 2008. no specific fund was set up for same.Following the computation of our pension liability prior to July 2008 by Sicom Ltd provisions were made in previous financial years for that purpose. In the period 2016 (January - June), an additional provision of Rs 4,000,000 has been made tn the Accounts to meet our pension obligation.
1-07 Pending Litigation & other obligations:

(a) Claim from Mechanisation Company Ltd for non payment of Rs 429.614.40 together with interest and costs as regards to contract for supply of two tractors and three trailers. The above sum represented liquidated damages applied by the Council for delay in the supply of the tractors & trailers. As at balance sheet date judgment is still being awaited.
(b) EPI Contracting & Co Ltd has lodged a case against the Council claiming the sum of Rs 424,324.20.This sum represents liquidated damages applied by the Council for delay in implementation of the project "Supply.Fixing and Commissioning of one lift system al Belle Rose Municipal Complex". In addition a sum of Rs 42,432.42 being 10% Attorney’s Commission and the sum of Rs 6,364.86 representing 15% VAT has been claimed. As at balance sheet 
date the case has not yet been decided.

1-08 OTHER INCOME____________________________________ .

This includes:
Fees-Financial Controllers Department-Advertisement Publicity 
Library
House Refuse-Removal of Abnormal Refuse
Processing Fees
Fees Crematorium
Stock Adjustment
Insurance Receipt
Admission Charges
Penalties
Miscellaneous Income
Others

' 1/372,290.00
68,322-00

.*  146.5iO.Op 
184,5C<W3p.

5; 412.5WJ.o6; 
i&aw ^£-.20,Z99.cn- ^^395,184.00 

’14,025 00 
351.67i.QQ c so

- 2,097,001
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2.00 FJXHD ASSETS 
CAPITAL OUTLAY

2.01 Capital Outlay Schedule Land & Buildings

Vehicles
Office Equipment, Furniture S Fittings
Computers
Plant & Equipments
Donated Assets
Others;--Construction of Boundary wail at Doyen Fair Qbomes
-Renovation of Fish,Beef and 
Ofal Sections atQBomes Market- Palma Football Ground- 
Provision of Blockwall and Chainlink. Fencing- Palma Football Ground- Provision for lighting of football grounds-Upgrading of Children Garden at Jeewoonarain Ave Palma- Water Tank- Street Name Plate- Renovation of grotto at 
Residence Kennedy

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS(Ctnd)

2.02 Other Long Tenn Outlay Schedule Roads
Drains & Bridges
Street Lighting
Donated Assets
Others :-
- Refuse Depots- Installation of lighting points Le Pavilion
- Lighting at Town Hall Yard- Footpath & Handrails within the town

3.0D DEBTORS___________________________

General Rates
Tenants TaxCar LoanMarket & FairsMarket & Fairs Vella Cannosamy & food court Trade FeesScavenging FeesAdvertisementRentInterest AccruedOthers:-- Advances- Debtors Capital Grants
- Sundry Debtors- Debtors Bustolls- Debtors GRF to TELETHON Fund- Debtors Lease of site for display -Miscellaneous Inc Debtors

^256,144.234 
-TO,079,773 
J3,327 919 
J»%7^7,62B 
'23.613962

1616560

40,259,095

26 651

1,516560

1.595 514

35 87535.875
473.284.M0

310 748
44 783

310,748,44 783 ',156405

^7,oar,966
•’•J 16J.820^^WStfsass

gwatagagw
468.16W0

3 ftetAfnopM ',, QroA J Pr&s&Qfi'A* *4 1
?'’41,978,818*  14.599,618' <-4 5;784,432>• 12.954.129.37 7*0  ;

4O.8OG;a0Dl
J^,286.00Q*
£1,800,COP
5,300,000*

4 *37,375  
-3.5UX*8i-

w IS

> 31.178,818 -;3;273,618 ’ '5784,432 'H1.151.129 37,750 27,635.095 : $57,312 ,'>437.875- '■ 388X94 6t518,146
- 317.393 

-I 4486.677-1 <^7 ”X73o:- ‘ 33,313“,- 7 -633354 ‘r -66.962- ’ 170,270^

' 317,393 
•486.677 . 3.730 33313 r 63,335 
A 66.962 170270

11*190,350 29,688,000 88,604,350

The total amount of Rs 14.6 m forTenants Tax includes an amount of Rs 6.5m owed by infinity BPO Ltd which 
might not be recovered as the company is in liquidation.Provision for bad debts is based on past experience.
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4.(30 STAFF COSTS______________________________

This includes:
Salaries & Wages
Bonus
Travelling
Overtime
Uniforms
Passages
Sick Leave
Others:-
Allowances
Training Fees
Staff Welfare
Insurance-Employees
National Pension and Saving Fund 
Contribution to Pension Fund 
Contribution to Family Protection Scheme

5.00 OTHER ADMINISTRATION COST

This includes:Telephone
Advertising
Overseas MissionsLegal/Court FeesPostages
Allowance to Mayor & Councillors
Others:-
-Rent and Rates
- Audit Fees
• Entertainment -Public Welfare 
-Entertainment - Council
- Contribution - Council Subscription AUA

6.00 OTHER BALANCES

This Includes:Provisions Cleaning Environment Day Liabilities Provision for Passages-Liabilities Provision for payment of electoral Expenses Provisions for Pension Gratuities and Other Liabilities Provision ofr Rodent Control Liabilities Provision for Sick Leave Liabilities Capital Receipt Unapplied HousingLoan Reedeemed CapitalLoan Reedeemed HousingProvision for LossRevenue Account HousingTelethon Fund

fit

84,966,062^0 
... “.. J.woo

W53600 
. , > . 6,045,664 00

:> 2,753,800,00 
1,768 339,00 
544500000

‘45^ ''^'SbSM^SDO: 
,5^44,216.00 
3^' .2^668 00 

t 414.457.00.
1,611,079.00 / f 5 10,186,496.00

^ 1,725,855 00 
‘ '’ ’122,901,033

. „ , 154,069 00
_ 208 503 90

- 1,702 rc 00‘ ' 350 000 00
7. 1 811,038 30

_ . 287,500.00. V <460,000.00.
' .. 7,ooi(o

• s 152.581 CO
;. 175.000.00

~5 444,7V O0

S '1,843,605’5,070.064 ***’-'V x 3,734,390 \ ' 71'85&550
. 1,782.86711 22,174,2802M84,362 

' ,s “ 5,424452 1 3.548,448
- ? 73,753J > ^<^^50,292 

?309t600
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